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GENERAL REVIEW

The situation appears to justify a report of progress and achieve-
ment in the Iowa field of workmen's compensation. The work of
administration proceeds with greater efficiency from the benefit of
experience in one of the newer branches of the public serviee. While
entire satisfaction as to all details of legal provisions and depart-
ment activity does not and could not be expeeted to exist, one
who now asserts opposition to the general prineiples of the work-
men’s compensation system is a rare individual. On the part of
labor and of employment there is general satisfaction as to its pur-
pose and performance. Evidently this relationship tends to pro-
mote harmony and co-operation in dealing with industrial tragedy
more or less serious. It seems consistent to say that all interests
involved realize that in a general way there is mutual advantage,

It seems consistent to say that most individuals and interests in
this jurisdiction are disposed to sineerity of conduet and loyalty to
obligation. The pressure of misfortune rarely inclines a work-
man or dependent to practice fraud or deception. As a general
thing, beyond the importance of self-protection, the employer wants
his workmen to have a fair deal in case of misfortune. Most in-
surers feel it to be the part of business prudence as well as of
moral purpose squarely to meet all developing obligations, reserv-
ing, of course, the right of investigation where circumstances of
injury and extent of disability may reasonably be considered more
or less in doubt. Most of those concerned seem more and more dis-
posed to lay the eards on the table and gracefully to accept the
result of eandid disclosure. In this situation it is the purpose of
the department to have influence much in excess of authority. The
confidence of each and all is invited, and the extent to which coun-
sel not fortified by prerogative is availing, the department offers
its full capacity.

The general assembly has been rather conservative in dealing
with our proposals. It is mot the part of duty or discretion to
exercise impatience. It rather becomes us ecarefully to consider
the progress made in legislative provision and to await with equa-
nimity developments of the future. No amendment is proposed
which has not received careful department consideration as to its
general equity and its practical effect.

Two important changes were made by the 43rd general assembly.
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Increase of medical, surgical and hospital allowanee from $200.00
to $300.00 tends to better service for the injured workman and re-
lief to deserving doctors and hospitals, The department is mak.
ing good on its pledge to prevent excessive ehm:ge hPl:aﬂsl? of more
liberal provision. The amendment which carries reopening l:e_arA
ings to the workman instead of requiring him to come here with
his evidence is of very substantial value.

The misfortune of exclusion on the part of township employ-
ment has been almost wholly removed by change in the statute
which places most of such employees under county control and
coverage.

GRATIFYING CO-OPERATION

The extent to which practical working relations are maintained
between employers and insurers and this departm_ont as to details
of proceeding and the adjustment of claims is important to all
and most gratifying to us. Our compensation statute f‘lm-s not and
eannot be made to cover all phases, conditions and circumstances
developing in administration. In many sifuations there_ is no legal
provision or court interpretation that will serve definitely to de-
cide what to do or how to do it. To illustrate, what shall be re-
quired in cases following:

The loss of a portion of the distal finger phalange.

The measure of vision restored with the use of glasses.

Rules governing compensable hernia. bk

Treatment of compensable hernia in cases where operation is not
expedient or desirable.

Relief to be afforded for the loss of teeth as arising ont of em-
ployment. Wt

Definition of the term ““original proceeding’’ appearing in se¢
tion 1386.

Rules relating to occupational disease. -

Relief required in eases of partial temporary disability.

The relation of school teachers to compensation coverage.

As to date of filing memorandum of settlement. .

As to limits of agricultural, domestic, easual and clerical em-

loyment.
’ liules in definition of independent employment, and the con-
sideration to be given to the statutory term ‘‘for the purpose of
the employer’s trade or business.” )

In these and many other situations no statute or eourt interpretd-
tion points the way save, perhaps, by analogy or inference.
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administration is to proceed, order is to exist, and uniformity and
equity is to prevail, the department must announce and apply
definite rules which seem to be authorized in section 1431 of the
code, where it is provided that

It shall be the duty of the ecommissioner:

1. To establish and enforce all necessary rules and regulations not
in conflict with the provisions of this chapter and chapters 70 and 72 for
carrying out the purpose thereof.

5. In general to do all things not inconmsistent with law In carrying
out said provisions according to their true intent and purpose.

While this instruction seems to clear the way to ample and or-
derly proceeding, the commissioner is given no power to enforee
any rule or order except through litigation initiated by parties
to existing controversy. In effect this means if an employer or in-
surer chooses to challenge a department rule and the workman or
dependent, because of expense, fear of losing his job or otherwise,
does not initiate litigation, the rule fails of its purpose, regardless
of its bearing upon uniformity of requirement or any measure of
equity involved.

Such things do happen, but it is important to all concerned in
good administration and fair dealing all around that they are of
rare oceurrence and it is hoped and believed never to the enduring
advantages of the employer or insurer who refuses to play the game
consistently.

This section of our report is written, however, not in the first
instance to chide a rare offender but chiefly in grateful acknowl-
edgment of the very large measure of amicable co-operation on the
part of employers and insurers with the department in complying
with rules carefully considered and cantiously issued.

MISINFORMATION A8 TO CASUAL EMPLOYMENT

In section 1421 of the code, it is provided that easual employ-
ment is excluded from coverage only when it is **not for the pur-
pose of the employer’s trade or business.”” This provision practi-
cally affords coverage to easual employment in all oecupations not
otherwise by statute excluded.

In section 1361 it is provided without qualification that the com-
pensation statute shall not apply to ‘‘ persons whose employment is
of a easual nature.’”” This provision not only exists in the law
as surplusage but it is so misleading and mischbievous as to deserve
prompt elimination. It is frequently urged upon the department
for consideration and it is necessary absolutely to ignore such
appeal, though based upon definite statutory declaration.




8 REPORT OF INDUSTRIAL COMMISSIONER

SETTLEMENT METHODS

It is gratifying to be able to state that most insurers and em.
ployers (self-insured) meet liability in excellent spirit. They do
not split hairs in dealing with unfortunate workmen or their
bereaved dependents, They give to evident good. faith the benefit
of reasonable doubt. They do not find it necessary to resist ap-
peals for sympathetic dealing in meeting the requirement to pro-
tect the insurer against imposition and in reasonable regard for
actual obligation. They co-operate efficiently with the department
in perplexing situations and aid substantially in promoting har-
mony and in serving the hands of justice and equity.

There are other insurers and employers (self-insured), how-
ever, who are not so easy to work with. They are not so mueh
concerned as to what they ought to pay as to what they have to
pay. They drive close bargains with claimants. They take ad-
vantage of technical defenses. They plead the letter of the law
in violation of its commendable spirit. They cut corners with
workmen and with doctors and hospitals. They would confine rela-
tions with the department to the limit of absolute legal require-
ment,

Employers and insurers are not expected to keep open purse
to all demands upon them. For them to adjust so loosely and lav-
ishly as to reward dishonesty and invite imposition would he em-
barrassing to administration and unjust to society which ultimately
pays the bill,

On the other hand it is best for all coneerned to make settlement
with justice, leaning toward expedient generosity in situations of
absolute good faith rather than to forget that claimants are human
beings deserving of especial consideration in the shadow of indus-
trial tragedy.

It is gratifying to observe that insurers and employers pursuing
the more intelligent, liberal and sympathetie policy are the more
successful and substantial among those of their class as they
grow in public confidence and praetical efficiency.

EMPLOYMENT COVERAGE

It is deplorable that many Iowa workmen injured in compensable
relationship find relief beyond their reach when injury occurs.
The self-insurer and the insurance carrier realize their obligation
to the workman in traumatic distress. They are aware of risks
involved and they provide for all obligation contingencies. With
rare and honorable exception, the non-insuring employer is &

|
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bad actor. He bets with fate that there will be no accident and
when he loses he flunks his wager. Often he is judgment proof
and impudently defies the law. If he is not wholly immune from
financial recovery he is apt to be willing to spend more in litiga-
tion than would be required in settlement.

Among the smaller coal operators this situation is especially
gente. In this field it is urged in excuse that the insurance rate
is so high as to be practically prohibitive. It is nearly double
that eharged the larger operators. While insurers do not refuse
coverage at the higher rate they do not solicit these risks be-
cause of experience that shows such business to be very doubtful
a8 to remunerative results.

The bonding provision injected into section 1477 of the code
at the late session of the legislature is found practically unavail-
ing in the way of insurance relief. It does, however, provide
means for compelling employers either to insure or to stop send-
ing men into hazardous employment without provision for relief
in ease of injury. The situation is so serious in its peril to work-
men as to impel this department in the performance of duty im-
posed by statute to bring employers face to face with this im-
portant decision.

HERNIA AND COMPENSATION

It is a matter of rather common knowledge that congenital
physical eonditions tend to make many if not most men ensily
subject to hernial development. The inguinal rings are frequently
so formed as fairly to invite protusion of the intestine. A slight
jolt or strain may be the inciting cause. A cough or a sneeze has
been known to do the business. While in such cases years of toil
may fail 1o cause hernia it may appear when least expected and
from comparatively trivial cireumstance.

In ecompensation jurisdiction everywhere hernia has- been the
most perplexing of all industrial ailments. In earlier experience
doctors were practically united in the opinion that it could not
be considered as injury arising out of employment except in
the rare instances when its development is due to a blow to the
body in the vicinity of the outbreak. Compensation authorities
were not generally disposed to aecept this view, but the making
of rules for dealing with hernia has been a constant source of
embarrassment. Hardly any two states are agreed as to rules
relating to compensable hernia.

After much experience the Iowa Industrial Commissioner
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reached a conclusion which has for years been in very successful
and widely satisfactory operation. It is held in Iowa that where
hernial development is due to some specific aceident or incident
of employment occurring at a particular time and place and in
a definite manner, and but for which the workman would have
been able to continue in earning, the employer is held in obliga-
tion for all consequent disability.

In many cases, usnally for reasons of his own, the workman
prefers to wear a truss rather than submit to operation. In sueh
cases the commissioner has announced a rule that settlement on
a commuted basis may be made by paying to the workman a sum
representing compensation payment for six weeks as healing
period, and also the sums usually allowed for operation and hos-
pital charge. There is no specifie statutory provision for either
of these rules or any other rules covering such situations, It be-
comes necessary, however, to develop plans and provisions required
for workable administration.

Under these rules it may be confidently asserted that in hernia
cases Towa pays out more money to workmen than any other state
in accordance with the number employed and with less of re-
sistence and contention. To abandon them would be to produce
the confusion and contention so common elsewhere, increasing
litigation and making more uncertain the payment of compensa-
tion benefits.

AGRICULTURAL EMPLOYMENT

In most states agricultural employment is exempt from the
compulsory applieation of workmen’s compensation. There has
been no serious eriticism of this course and there should be none.
It does seem advisable, however, to extend the coverage of the
compensation system to such employment where farmers or own-
ers of farms on their own initiative choose to come within its
provision. The use of power machinery becomes more and more
common on the farm inereasing the peril of farm work. The farm-
er has no protection against the operation of the drastic law of
damage and in some cases it would be regarded as a privilege
to take chances under ecompensation, Tn Minnesota, Wisconsin and
in some other states at their own option farmers may take out
compensation insurance and there would seem to be no reasonable
objection to urge against this policy.

None of the abounding reasons for exempting farmers from
compulsory liability afford any support whatever to the inclusion
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of farms owned and operated by the state. The state, governing
boards and this department are frequently embarrassed by the
legal requirement to deny to workmen on state farms the relief
given to employees in other employment by the same institutions.
It seems fairly cowardly for the state to take care of a workman
injured on one side of its fence while refusing help to one in-
jured on the other side of the same fence. Properly understood
it is not believed that a single legislator would endorse such dis-
erimination and injustiee, but a bill to remedy this situation sub-
mitted by this department to the latest assembly was refused
consideration. This must have been due wholly to inadvertence
and it is hoped that the matter will soon receive the attention it
deserves.

UNSEEMLY HASTE IN SECURING PROOF

In cases of serious injury or of death insurers sometimes insist
upon interviewing the vietim or his dependents relative to cir-
cumstances affecting insurance liability as soon as an adjuster
can cover the intervening distance. This practice is always more
or less reprehensible. A workman suffering from the early effects
of a deplorable accident is in no condition for grilling interview
and in the shadow of industrial tragedy relatives are in no state
of mind to submit to inquisitorial torture.

There must have been legislative purpose in the statutory pro-
vision that any compensation settlement made within twelve days
of any injury sustained shall be presumed as fraudulent. Surely
it was not in the legislative mind that settlement in this con-
nection means merely signing on the dotted line. It is incon-
eeivable that under this measure of legal restraint the carrier may
within a few hours of injury or death ruthlessly proceed to shape
up its ease in defense, Within the rules of reasonable administra-
tion this practice is intolerable.

INSURANCE FPRECAUTION

At every opportunity it seems worth while to advise employers
lo exercise care in the placing of their compensation insurance.
There are plenty of good companies well known in [owa which
afford safety and good service. They have adjusters at convenient
points within the state. They are easily reached when necessary.
When for any reason they are derelict they may be advised by
the department, wherenpon they usually afford prompt service
and desirable co-operation.
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In view of these important considerations why should employers
deal with insurers little known who do not maintain adjustment
agencies within the state and who are apt to be unsatisfactory in
long range and dilatory adjustment.

DEALING WITH EXCESSIVE ACCIDENT EXPERIENCE

The awful waste of human energy and the immeasurable extent
of human distress due to injury in employment should make
more effective appeal for mitigation. There is ground for the
apprehension that in the state of Iowa there is especial need for
inerease of interest in this deplorable situation.

Self-insurers are doubtless least subject to eriticism in this eon-
nection among the several classes of employers. They are usually
better situated than most other employers for organized safety
promotion and they more distinetly sense the gain or loss of
employment experience. While many of these are reducing to
a minimum through safety provision the loss of life and of energy
and consequent distress, some plants of this group do not make
model record in such endeavor.

It would appear that death or injury is unusually frequent
in the Iowa mining industry. If there is organized endeavor to
reduce this loss and distress as is said to exist, it has been of
little value in effecting relief. Three insurance eompanies doing
business in Iowa have been forced into liquidation because of
losses in carrying mining hazard, due it may be readily assumed,
in part at least, to losses on Iowa risks while rates have gone
up and up until they are a serious burden to industry. This field
is now occupied almost wholly by a single company because the
business is not commonly deemed desirable, It would seem reason-
able to assume that better organization and more practical co-
operation between operators and miners such as exist in some
other coal fields would tend substantially to serve a deplorable
situation.

Experience shows that injury is much more frequent in the
smaller than the larger employments in proportion to the number
of men and the necessary hazard involved. On the part of some of
these employers there seems to be a tendeney to neglect safety
provisions and to let the workman and the insurer take the serious
consequences. This is very bad business poliey and absolutely
reprehensible in a moral sense.

The fact that statistics show that in the United States twenty-
two persons are injured every minute in working hours and that

"
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eight out of one hundred persons are certain to have their earn-
ing power impaired either partially or totally as result of acei-
dent consitutes powerful appeal for the exercise of every possible
provision for reducing this terrible total.

It is evident that all employers are not to blame for the ex-
cessive number of injuries oceurring. The Engineering World
makes this important statement:

“A notable example of the savings in both life and money which can
be brought about by consistent safety eNort in industrial plants has been
furnished by the accident prevention contest among metal manufacturers
which has just been completed by the Merchants' Assoclation of New
York City.

“It is stated that 1,183 lives were lost in New York City's industries
during 1928—the period of the Merchants' Association’s contest, Yet
among the 9,275 employees of the 93 manufacturers participating in this
contest not a single life was lost. There were but 269 lost-time accidents.
Thirty-six plants went through the contest without a lost-time accident.
Only 43 of the 269 accidents which did cause lost time carried partlal-
permanent disability.

“The winner of the contest was Frank J. Quigan, Ine., whose em-
ployees worked a total of 643,466 hours with no lost-time accidents. The
Metropolitan Iron Foundry was second with a total of 205,849 man-
hours without a lost-time accident. The experience of the Quigan firm
is of especial interest because of the demonstration it has provided of
financial savings brought about by organized safety work. In 1923
Frank J. Quigan, Inc., paid $3.08 per $100 of pay-roll for compensation in-
surance, In 1924 it paid $3.25 per $100 of pay-roll. In 1926 the company
began its organized safety work. The Insurance costs for 1927 wera re-
doced to £1.66 per $100 of pay-roll. In 1928 there was a still further
reduction to $1.21. The concern states that in dollars and cents it has
effected a savings of approximately $7,000 a year through organized
safety work.”

Attention has previously been called to the excellent work be-
ing done by the Lehigh Portland Cement Company in accident
prevention, Fourteen large plants are in operation. In a number
of these plants there was no lost time on the part of any of
the large number employed in the year 1929, At the Mason
City plant of this company 277 men are in service and the ree-
ord of injuries of all kinds is very creditable. Some other large
employers of the state are doing excellent work in lowering injury
records but we are not advised as to details in such experience,

The record of W. J. Rainey, Ine.,, commercial coal operators
of Pennsylvania, is most remarkable, as reported by the United
States Bureau of Mines. One of these mines employing more than
250 men operated without fatality or accident entailing temporary
Or permanent or partial disability from Jannary 1, 1921, to Feb-
ruary 20, 1928, Other details of experience announced show mar-
velous achievement in life and labor saving.

The packing plant of Jacob E. Decker & Sons at Mason City
put on a safety campaign a year or so ago with results fairly
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astounding. Accident losses have gone tumbling with all the say.
ing in grief and money involved. A substantial reduction in
imsurance rate is noted. Jume, 1930, as a no-accident month, in.
spires this jubilant note from the safety engineer to all foremen
of the Mason City plant. ‘‘It can be done. It has been done in
June, 1930, Eight hundred thirty-nine men worked 21,045 days
in a packing plant, without a lost time accident, and you foremen
are responsible for this wonderful record. It can be done. Now
let us keep it up and make and keep the Decker Plant a safe
place to work, Thank youn. Thank you.”

None of these commendable records are made without first,
unusual interest on the part of the employer in working condi-
tions and, furthermore, intelligent and prevailing co-operation
between workmen and employers. Such provision is found to
pay very large dividends to both labor and employment aside
from securing important sympathetic and sentimental consider-
ation.

All this diseussion is aside from the duties of this department
as prescribed by statute but we are so continually in the presence
of industrial tragedy and so much impressed with the waste and
woe of industrial misfortune as to enlist our deep sympathy and
abiding interest in the situation,

Much more might be done on the part of the state to reduce
injury and disability arising out of employment. The department
of labor functions well and efficiently in this field but its measure
of usefulness is limited by appropriation wholly inadequate to
full inspection service.

It remains, however, for employers and workmen to organize
and co-operate to the limit of practical possibility in order to
effect the largest measure of life and labor saving in industrial
employment,

INJURY REPORTS

The law specifically requires employers within forty-eight hours
after injury to a workman to make report of such injury to the
department in all cases resulting in incapacity for a period long-
er than one day. Many employers neglect this important duty
and such negleet is seriously embarrassing in administration and
grossly unfair to all concerned. A penalty of $50.00 is imposed
by statute for violation of the reporting provision. The indiffer-
ent employer should heed this warning while all others should
be more promptly responsive in the performanece of this important
duty. In at least one state the law provides that the statute of
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limitations shall not run against a claim if the injury upon which
it is based has not been reported as by statuwe required.

PHYSICIAN'S REPORTS

These are vital because they form the basis for settlement ex-
cept in cases of permanent schedule injury. When serious tem-
porary disability occurs workmen are returned to service on a
professional statement as to recovery of working capacity. In
many cases of partial permanent disability it is necessary to
reach conclusions as to measure of recovery due from such reports.
In all cases and especially when an obscure situation exists, it
is very important to have a careful and clear report that may
be relied upon by all concerned. In “‘The Clinic,”’ a Quarterly
Journal of Industrial Surgery and Hygiene issued in October of
1929, appears this paragraph which is quoted with full official
approval :

“One of the best heginnings toward getting the confidence of an in-
jured workman is to make a thorough physical examination. Nothing
inspires the average layman's confidence so much as thoroughness on
the part of his physician and often a cursory examination with a curt
assurance that ‘nothing much is the matter with you', plants deep seeds
for discontent and a prolonged claim. Probably one of the chief differ-
ences which exist between the specialist and the general practitioner is
that the former is thorough in his examination and the latter is apt to
pay little attention to the apparently irrelevant aspects of the case. By
being thorough in physical examination therefore, not only does the
surgeon impress the patient with his skill and knowledge, but he fre-

quently picks up data which will enable him to take Into consideration in
his treatment many factors of importance.”

SETTLEMENT INFORMATION

It is important to good serviee at the department that a memo-
randum of agreement be sent in immediately upon the acceptance
of obligation. Insurers are sometimes disposed to await develop-
ments tending definitely to establish extent of liability. Claim-
ants sometimes are shy about signing up. All should understand
that these agreements are tentative and not binding upon either
party as to extent of obligation. This repeated assurance on our
part has recently been underwritten by the supreme court. It
is to the advantage of all concerned to help us keep the record
of adjustment up to date and helpful co-operation in this im-
portant matter is earnestly desired.

THE SEVEN-DAY WORKER

Appeal must again be made for justice to this class of work-
men. The available rule in finding the basis of compensation pay-
ment is in subsection (3) of Section 1397, which says:
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“(¢) The annual earnings, if not otherwise determinable, shall be re
garded as three hundred times the average daily earnings in such
computation.”

Accordingly, we multiply the daily wage by three hundred and
divide this result by fifty-two in order to find the weekly wage,
When we apply this rule to the seven-day worker he is given
as compensation a sum less than that due the six-day worker,

It is embarrassing to look an injured workman in the face and
tell him that the state of Towa inflicts penalty upon him for un-
remitting toil. There is no use in trying to show him any sane
reason for diserimination against him because his job requires him
to serve every day in the week. In order to correet this grievous
situation it is recommended that the statute be so amended that
in cases of seven-day work the multiple employed shall be three
hundred and thirty-five instead of three hundred.

COVERING SUB-CONTRACTOR LIABILITY

Construetion work is frequently sublet to employers who do
not earry compensation insurance and who are not financially
responsible. Under such cireumstances many workmen or depend-
ents in case of injury or of death find themselves without the re-
lief intended by statute. Many states have met this situation hy
providing that the prineipal employer or contractor shall be liable
to employees of a sub-contractor where obligation arises. It is
urgently recommended that our general assembly shall make this
important provision,

COVERAGE FOR VOLUNTEER FIREMEN

Under the ordinary application of the compensation service it
is necessary to hold that our law does not afford coverage to
volunteer firemen in ease of injury in serviee. The fundamental
contract of employment is wanting and there is no showing of
earnings upon which to base weekly payment. Grievous sacrifice
on the part of public spirited citizens who sustain injury or who
meet with death in lending their service to the reduction of com-
munity fire losses strongly appeals for recognition and relief at
the hands of the general assembly,

It is therefore recommended that specific provision be made to
extend compensation coverage to volunteer firemen in case of in-
jury or to their dependents when death shall occur. Payment
should be in the maximum legal amount of $15.00 a week, such
payment to be met by the municipality or its insurance carrier.
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AMENDMENT POLICY

Under proper caption amendments to the compensation law are
specifically submitted. Recommendation in previous reports mot
aceepted or included in this list are omitted not because of change
of opinion as to their merit but for the reason that urging now
will serve only to make less likely the adoption of other necessary
amendments.

The conviction persists that Iowa should join other states in
providing coverage for occupational discase; and temporary with
permanent disability complete coverage for clerical employment
and that our waiting period should be redueed. Also that in the
interest of the just distribution of compensation benefits the statute
as to dependency should be revised.

AMENDMENTS RECOMMENDED
I. Coverage for volunteer firemen.
II. Optional agricultural coverage.
ITI.  Justice for the seven-day worker.
IV. Relief for state farm employees.

V. Protection for employees of sub-contractors.
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STATISTICAL COMMENT

Sums expended for all purposes in department support during
the biennium aggregate $18,126.15. There has been no material
inerease in such expenditure the past six years. Estimates for
the coming two years submitted to the director of budget suggest
only a slight increase.

As to injuries reported the number is enlarged by 203. Fa.
talities are inereased by nine and compensation payments by a
little more than $41,000.00.

The cost of medical, surgical and hospital service is in the bi-
ennium about $8,000.00 higher than in the period immediately
preceding. In view of the statutory raise from $200.00 to $300.00
this increase of much less than seven per cent in outlay is not at
all significant of imposition apprehended when the limit was
boosted by statute.

In the matter of litigation the showing is not unfavorable,
While the number of arbitration applications was inereased from
210 in the biennium next preceding to 258 in the last biennium,
the number of arbitrations was decreased from 100 to 92. The
settlement of all possible cases without litigation is our studied
purpose, A smaller number of arbitrations was appealed in re-
view and the number of cases earried to the courts was reduced.

‘,l'r
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DEPARTMENTAL ACTIVITIES

EXPENDITURES FOR DEPARTMENT SUPPORT, BY YEARS
1926-7 1927-8 1928.9 1929-30

Salaries ......coconciainanan $15,860.08 $£16,500.00 $16,458.08 $16,650.00
Travel expense ............. 791.60 928.98 973.12 820.36
Medical advice ............. 685.00 540.00 477.50 567.80
Livrary and miscellaneous. .. 86.75 100.25 104.50 88.00

Total administration. . ... §17,423.43 §18,070.23 $15,013.20 $18,126.16

REPORTS OF ACCIDENTS AND SETTLEMENTS APPROVED
July 1, 1928 to June 30, 1929

g R o o B e R e . S I S I E ST I R

PURAL ORI .. i srnishsivt dansrsinne E

Settlements Reported 80
Compensation Pald in Reported Settlements.................. $671,356.43
Reported Pald for Medical, Surgical and Hospital............. 123,688,756

July 1, 1929 to June 30, 1930

Accldants RePortofl ... ..ovevmruanotnetsnianinnbossnbsnesensesesns 11,663
BRIRL CREBE oivicv i d srda s s Tas dsars e e s e A 162
Settlements Reported 4,888
Compensation Pald in Reported Settlements................ $712,395.87
Reported Paid for Medical, Surgical and Hospital............. 131,779.01

ARBITRATIONS, REVIEWS AND APPEALS

July 1,1928  July 1,1929
to

July 30,1929  July 30, 1030
Total number of applications filed.............. 210 268
Total number of cases arbitrated ............... 100 92
Total number of cases settled without hearing... 70 97
Total number of cases dismissed ............... 3 20
Total number of cases reopened ..........coevien 11 11

Total number of cases decided on revlew by Com-

s e SRR R T e e i AR H1) 24

Total number of cases appealed to courts........ 20 16



CASES ARBITRATED DURING BIENNIUM

FirsT YEAR, 1928-1929
Title of Case Dist. Court Sup. Court
MeKinley va. 8 Dalry Co. T 560, e VO, afttrmed No appeal
Farr va. Wuudoo Ccdarr;ﬂh & N. Ry.. b weee| NO B R
Way ve. Union Construction CO..........- - D | 1,500, Ceimse s smaes rsssieieanas
Pendley vs. Cook & P. P Ext. of injury. ) ] Aftirmed._._. P
Robinson v Hn-rkln. Coal Co P.P Out of emp.. 3 BB e eeenenee|NO ADPeal.. .
Baker v, )Iomﬂ & Co. T. T. Ext. of Injury. 'Disallowed ing) Noappenl oo
W M Il & Co T, T. ‘Hernla sallowed Affirmed. ... No .wn-l-..... B
Ernsdorft vs. Otls Lumber Co IT. T. Cs d No appeal....
V8. 'k School Dist....... Fatal _____ Coverage S0 00 Affirmed. - Com. n!!l:-dlt'.'mu
Rowles vs. Cobh 10nt of emp.—_____ 240.00 aeeee | NO Appenl..... !
Strandberg ve. Zwack, Ine 3 0892 o appenl..... 1
Hansen vs. Damon Electrie Co Ext, of injury. 750,00 No appeal..... !
Boyd vs. Dain Mig. Co. Ext, of Injury 11 d No appeal.....
Whea v&. Sharp. Out of emp..——____|Disallowed A
Gee vs. Crabb. taleeee. Out of emp. 1,960.00 »Mﬁrmed....... Pending . ......
Bunn va. “nmn Elee. Tel, B . T, |Ext. o* injury. 'No appeal.....
Coats vs. Urel e |Out of emp.
Banas n‘ Iotn Puhlie Serviee Co. P.P |Ext. of injury. - No appeal
Lythe « lon C T. T Hernla 14 a0 RPDERY e |t
Frankenbers ve, Gels rrmm Co T. T No appeal...
luuell vA, Neumunn & Co...eoo.. perm— ‘Pending.
Glagsco vs. Des Moines Bllil College. ... [P, P -\‘o npml\l-....
Jones vs. Sinton Transfer Co. T. T. it of emp.
Rihard va, Des Moines Wood Product Co..|P. Dut of emp.
Pringle v, Central Engln, Co. F| deney 5
Kelso ve. Miller Hotel Co. ... D, d No appen]
Phelps ve, French & Heebt....... N .. Disallowed No appeal.
{urtz va, Bleg C Out of emp Disallowed (R Ing) No appeal
teimers vo, Moden..... Limitations Diznilowed No appenl.....|.
)Day va. U. 8. Button Co...... Out of emp.....—.. e O T Aftirmed. - No -pnul.-... ......... &
Central Steel Prod. CO,.eo.... Ext. atl UrYeemeeaa| 900,00 (R 3] No appesl
. lowa Rallway & um. Co. Cause of death. .| 4,50000 .~ .. ... Affirmed . ... NO ADPOR)ce e e e e
Carothers vs, Durand O B Disall il Affirmed. ..... Pendi
MeDevitt va, Crescent & O. Co. |No appena
MeQuald ve. Beeker .M‘plinll P“m Co...u Out of emp.oceee . 42.84 \No appen
Cone 8. I‘elhtler COMPANY < eeeeemwm e mmnmm n 1700 Ko appes
o Ext, of Injury.._.| 6650 o . _____Noappeal.....
Fratt vs. onuord Ind. um»z . T T I tent ut injury. .| BI2ED o\ NO appeal.. ] J
Htoner ve. Hwiit Co P, T, Extent of Injury...| 156.48 (R ! INo mppenl !

HANOISSTWWOD TVIHLSNANI 40 LHOdHH

Dawson wvs. Pratt M

Jones wa. Eppley Hotel

Co.
e e I"u-l.....u._'(hu- of desth_____|

S

:Ou- llItrIud Oom.

| affirmed

Johnson vl< Eohrs Packing CO..eeeeeeeees|Fotal ... Depenis 3,633.00 INo appeal.....|

Behern vs Ino Grupe Co Jr. T |Out of emp. Disallowed |No appeal.....|

Hale I'l. "Gant — T. T. Out of emp. 254,00 wee|NO BpPRRl. e

Vaverka vs. Castone F Co Fatal C wenmeme = |Disalowed LAt ] NG BPPERl. e e e e
Baines vs. State University of lowa T. T l::l. ot m]m......_ X C——— YT T L
Crawford vs. Sherid P, P of emp. isallowed No appeal

Barrows vs. Quaker Oats Co..oeeemmencens| FOtBl e oeen. e Disallowed

Yates ve. Quaker Oats Co. atal........ D e Disallowed e NO Bppeal . .

Estell vs. Wilson Floral Co P. P INotice lowed No appeal

Bye vs. da Poultry Co Fatal. ... Cause of death_______|D: d Reversed

Bremson ve. Ottosen O ¥y Co X |Ext. of Injury. .00

Wilson vs. Pershing Coal Co Fatal Cause of death ...} 4,500.00
Jones va. Savery Houl T. T Out of emp 100, (0 ase
Pettit vs. Tusant & Sons Co, B, P Out of emp Disullowed No appenl !
0'Dea vs, Norwood-Whits cou Co. T, T Out of emp 0,00 No appeal.....|
Cross vs ¥y Coal Co T, T, Out of emp. 125.00 Aftirmed. ...
Su-hnr vE. E y Coul Co P, P......_. Ext. ot lnjury._,.-... 46,00 (R i
Vignorall va. Norwood- whlte Coml Co....-|Fatal. ... 600. 00
Mendina bt ilin Conl C Fata ! dency 300.00

Riley vs, Dulln Products Co Fatal i 900,00
Turk vs. Adelphl Conl Co T. T |Dut of emp. T d ATEIENEA . oo POBCINE o eemmn o osmmmmmmmmnm
Hoffman vs. Hanson Plmb. & Htg, Co,.. ?aul...._-..k)nt e A —— B4,500.00 —osoiiiinniiinnnsinnes| O appoal.....|.

hort vs. Morrell Co Fatal 4,006.00 No appeal..

Penniwell vs. Sodin & Baelno. P, T 'Harnln .04 Milrlneil......lho nppeal. ...
Selix vs. Morrell & Co,. i S ST |Hernin Digall d INo nppeal.....|...

Parfenow vs, Harrison Eng. & Const. Co, w0 . ersod. .....|No nppe

Gregory ve. Sinclalr m.llnln: Co P | i )] | INo appe |
Taylor vi. C. N, 00, s coinmiaismmit s i s ntiensn I-xt. of mur!----- .75 (R Y Siaeieis L. cenes NO appeal.....
Beckner va, City of Cuum-n Blutts.......|T. T Ext. of injury. 20 ] S [
Weleh ve. Saltzman & Son.. T. T. Ext. of injury. .56 |
Lonear vs. Underwood (‘umlr Ln P. P Ext. of injury m.(n |
Bchraeder vs, W & C T. T Out of emp 52.00 |
Peterson vs. Franklin (‘ounty............... Fatal. ...../Coverage Disall 1 |
Waddle v, Rath Iacking Co a7 Out of emp. # 150,00 Tes |
Bittner vs. Towa Rallway & LIght Co.....| r-m.......- DF[IWM[ 3.705.00

Porter vs. wn of Afton Fata Disallowed M rn:~
‘Walton vs. Smith & Robi P.I’ imﬂ'm Dizall d IAttirmed . ... Com. affh

Smith ve. Henry County Hospital T. T Hernia Disallowed Mllrm«l...._. Com. reversed |Com
N ve. Jones IT. T. (ut of emp. Dvisall A

Ryan vs. Penick & Ford. Fatal Out of emp. Disall 1

Jenzen vs. C. N. W. Rallway Co.coeueeee. [Fatal ... Coverage Disall d

Kurth vs. Eclipse Lumber Co. T.T Ext. of Injury.......$ 575.00 (Reop ) 0w avete v

ve. Cudahy Packing Co. r.P ‘Ext. of Injury. 173.40 No appeal.....|
vs. L Co T Coverage [Disallowed No appeal ..

HOIAMHS NOILVSNEIWOO SNHNMHOM
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CASES ARBITRATED DURING BIENNIUM s
First Year—Continued -
Title of Case Injury Issue Arbitration Review Dist. Court | Sup. Court
MeGiraw vo. K. P. White Const. Co.... s Prcasnsenal Ext. Of 337.50 N 1
Toros va. Harper Wall Paper & Paint Co.|T. T e 82.50 No appeal 7
arver ve, Pratt-Mallory T, T Out of emp.eeeecc—emss|  15.20 weekly Pendi <
Hemphill vs. Craven T. T, Coverage Di No appeal . )
Bennett ve. Central Beryice Co..........___|Fatal____.._|Cause of death Disallowed No appes (=]
Brinegar vi. MoConville Coal Co T. Out of emp Disallowed No appen =
Wright vs. McConville Conl Co P Out of emp. s 27590 No nppen! - N8
Bamson ve. Fmplre Coal Co. Ext. of injury.____..| 1,012.50 No appeal.
Baner ve. Ext. of Injury. ... 24,22 No appeal =]
Gilbert vs, e C 101.25 No appeal =
Rooney vs. Co T T.eoeneaa|Out of emp i d No appeal -
Stiles Boy T..eeeeu/Out of emp.. .. . 5,00 Com .um|com. z
Robinson vs. Emmetsburg Produce Co....|T. T. Out o! emp. 112.45 = =4
Enfield va, Certain-Teed Products Co.._.(P.P..........0ut of emp.. ... |Disallowed Im Loy i 5
Hamre va. Paper Co. g. T nn: :!ll' TR, N e e M’m ..... Moy {M“ 3
© SmcoND YEAR—1929-1830 E
va. Colline:MeSeal Realty m.m-frp.r [ e a [attrmed. |80 appenr___ |
Buekner vs. W , ot a T, T Empl .23 weekly |No appeal ST 8
Jobolus v, | ”t:nafrd.u;ﬂ Oﬂm(:mw....._.-;. g...-.....l!%s :i: emp.._._______|Disall 0 appenl | =
thhhr:.l 762, It.qr.umr ;: ; xt. of h‘;m---—-. 49,22 ‘.',".'r'.“.;'.‘ii"*‘ S ah ng =
Rateliffo vv. Town of H . T Doverige I:r’u""m A Eoﬂ?!?u’uwnl E
Pright . wright Cons éﬂmliun G0 omess |Fatal i 150,00 Mo spanl e e o)
v8, lown City Canning Co..—...|Fatal....._.|Dependency - ____ 1.218 00
gooud:n VA, B}mnrﬂnn & Sehraeder......|Fatal........|Coverage T A?!i.r]:n':;l. No appeal &
.{ kt;l o{ilnlnm Co.... g‘ ; 3:; ng [ T -, 15,00 weekly No appeal .| TS PR E
Lewls vs. Dampm ln«nmt.lw Works... |Fatal —....|On o 0F On .:m"nml"
hm iy iy Taerk ts " e o .rl; “.}.\.le of tho 85, WLEY __-h.._..--_.-.......ls: :W“;
Wallkalt v, hited States Gypsum Co U Yt i\ e e
Inman vs. John Tractor Co P. P Out of emp Disaliowed v
oomu va. Rath r-mu Co P n-m 66,48 No apj I s
X f a ] oz
Kionentoudt v, Theo Suerk Gomei. Gorres T2 00 of W Toisatiomw No : ; 31737

Kohl va. Frith EState. .. coeeaemememeeee Ext, of Injury.. pening !
Amos ve. Mjller Const, Uo. Ext. of Injury.. |
ﬂl-ﬂﬂ vs, Jones-Husland Const. Co. [y Ieney ‘No appenl
Messer va, FPottawnttamie €0 . eeeeeeeeae Ext. of Injury No appeal
Portis vs, Giant Ilnutmuﬂnl Co ‘Hernln ‘No appen
Hateber va. Hurd © |Ext. of Injury. |
Allard ve. Brady...... | r | Alfirmed .
Schane vs. Jopes & Hiestand. .. Jependeney INo appeal.
Russell vs. Devlin Covernge |Pending
Amos vs. Swift & Co. — 1P Ext. of Injury. 433.54 (Reopening) - —eeeeoo oo e No sppeal....l. - eiemee
Behal w8, Shapino |Hernla 1 ‘No appeal few = ﬂ
Helssler vs. Strange Bros, _Hide Co P. P jOut of emapeeee - 1§ 6.5 . iMflﬂmd....-. Pendl L (=}
Stewart vs. Dunn & M P. P Coverage . 11 A No appeal -]
Paxton ve. Bogardus. . ____| Fatal ... sut. i EEEEOARE R T ¥ e SRt e e 'No appeal.
v8. Dixon Coal Co P. P ployer . 300.00 .. No appeal..___|__
Hyland vs, Gebubhr. P.P . I‘u. of Injury. .. 1,300.00 (Reopening) N
vs. Scheffel P. P Coverag Disal No appeal . g
Seheer ve. Karl-Keen Mig. Co. —|Fatal e (Cause of death. ... H.500.00 ... 'to appeal 3
Hall vs. Des Molnes Coal Co, P.PF Ext. of Injury. 200,00 D ) L
Nolen vs. Town of LeClalre. . . |[P. P O R 1,235.50 No appeal } ~
Haupt va. Climax Engineering Co.. . _[Fatal l0ut of emp 1,500.00 No appeal 2
Kurth vs. Eclipse Lumber Co T. T Ext. of Injury......[# 15.00 weekly (Reopening) No .ppg.l.___.|___ =
Young vs. Wilkon Const. Co. T. T |Ext. of Injury......| 350.84 No appeal
MeCormick wva. M atal - i Digallowed No appeal... ).
Rodosevieh v, Madrid Coal Co . P, {Ext. of Injuty......[$1,150.00 (R Ing) N
Sl.evml VA, hutlonnl Const. Co tal | Dependency 1,800,00 w=e | AfIrmed.. ... @
V8. t Coal Co atal.........Coverage Dizallowed No appenl =S
nmuw v, lord Motor Co L Ext. of Injury.......|Dissllowed ( Y i !
Joy vs. Marshall Canning Co T, T {Ext. of Injury._____[Disallowed ( ing) No appeal 3
Benson vs. Folk County T. T JOut of emp wn.1 Atfirmed...... Pen ST | AT T o
Wheeler ve. Kosta Const, Co r.P Out of emp DMeallowed F
Vreeland vs. Younker Bros.. . . ___|Fatal._....Out of emp Dizallowed
Gerdea vs. PFullerton Lumber Co..— oo [T\ Teoeeee [EXt. of Injury Dizallowed (R T3 J— w
Halloran vs. Carson..... P. P, Employ 450.00 m
Pyle vs. Pershing Coal Co I.T AL TR i R e =
Ansley vs, l‘-mn: lun M Co IT. T Out of emp. 278,56 ~
Danjels vs. |T. T {Out of emp. 525.00 a
Dishan wvs. “u‘hﬂ' P T.T. Tl-‘xt‘ of Injury. 151.65 ppeal ... =
Gehlen vs. Hurd Creamery Co T. T. Out of emp. o9 I"Irmad..,._.. Kn sppeal...
O'Brien vs. City of L‘mmru Buffs........{T. T. | Hernia . e T— No -;-pn!..._l.__.___-....
George vs. Rope Motor Co. T. T. {0t of emp. Hrert No appeal
Reynolds vs. Lamson Const. Co T. T i overage . ____ T 1 L T =,
IAIM{\M vi. James Badlat, pl al PF. P £1,500.00 No appeal.. ;
anmn va. Jones T . T Px'l. of Injury. | 130.00 No appes] e
vE. Mel 1d urg. Co. . T Out of emp. | .00 No appeal
Simon vs. The Adams Co.. T, T Hernla ‘i i No appenal
Mowatt v&. Wm, Reu & Son T. T |UCoverage |Dizallowed - Affl 1 Affirmed. v
Sauiner vd. Interstate Power CO..—o ... |Fatal........Depend '$3,100.00 Atfirmsed .. INo appeal ...\ oo ... -
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. CASES ARBITRATED DURING DBIENNIUM :
: Spcoxp Yeae—Continued
Title of Case Injury Tssue Arbitration | Review Dist. Court | Sup. Court
& Soappeal oo} ee -

Berkholz va, Shermuan Nursery Co..ooooo._.. i
Ambrose ve. N. W, Hell 'DPL Co.. .1
Frazier vo. O, N. W. Ry.
James v, lown State Hilhnr Commission
Mellus v, Bayless & 1ooKeE. ..oooeee .o |T
Nelson vs. Swift & Co.

=1

A
E‘

. of 1II]III',".....

Hanson v8, Sloux Clty Stock Yards Co..
Maler va. Universal Gypsum & Lime Co._.
Spook ve. Harieh Dros. Motor Co... P
Reavis ws. Burgen [‘o&n
Bedian we. Bettend

Out of smp
|[Hernln ..

7

43
833533332

E

|Ext. of !ujnn-“-.-__
of emp

4

suum-lnnd va. lTowa-lIl, Mr-u Co.

5

McGinty wa. Glauh Const,

Pr. P
Hickman vs. Holdernft l mnu Motor Cn

o ! -‘5’01‘
5
=
i

24223

o -

a%a!

Allen vs. Stusrt Feed Co Ivn, og fojury..
Martens wva. Ie..... Hernla
Gibbons vs. 8 Bakery Co T. Out of +»mp.
ve. Conerete !nterm Corp.e— - [Fatal. ...
Hockman vs. Old King Coal Co P. P Fxt. 4
James vs. Thode Coal Co T. T [Out of emp.emeee .. .
Even wva. Wagner-Friing Co. P. P |Ext. of Injury. 1.062.00 (Re ) Pending -......
Ilmmund ve. Hanford Produce Co.......|P. P -/0ut of emp, 450.00 !
Dille ve v Coal Co 0ut of eop..— .| Disallowed I
Snm va. Champl Milling & Grain._.... -/0ut ot emp.......
CASES REVIEWED AND APPEALED DURING BIENNIUM
Finer Yran—1928-1929
Malinger v, W. C. Ol Coooeee Fatal_..____|Coverage D 1 Atfirmed.-._._|Com. reversed Pending on
rehenring
Busing vs. lows Ry. & Light Plul_._.__.-l_om of emp.. Disallowed cemrnmnmnes |ROVErSEd . .. |Com. affirmed ('}nrn‘
MeKinley ve. Sanitary Dairy. .. -« Out of emp. 1 56000
Bebuler va. Hart-Parr Co. (hit of emp 4,500_00
Mumey vs. 8 u 57600
Collingwood vs. Morrell Co..ooo .. — -y
Jobhnson va, Lytle Const. Counn e e 155 80
. Adums 1y E Towed
Willinms wve, Central lowa Fuel ’
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O'Day vo, U. 8. Button Co
Jones ve, Eppley H

Brasch va.

Carothers vs. .Durand.....

Morey vs. 3-Mmute Cereal

;. ‘PL 3-“ of I‘HI i :“M....._.So -wll-...-i...............
(177" PRSI b [ ) i rrme Com .,
ata ause O " pr
T P, P Out of gmp isnll d 4 Affirmed d
T C g K b | e 1y
Qu-hlum vs, Rowan Bchool oo ... |Fatal. ...} Out of emp...... ... Burial Affirmed No nppeal.

Arthur ve. Marble Rock School Fatal ( ' 1,800.00 Affirmed Com. affirmed|Com.
Vaverka vs. Castone Productse—oe . ....'Fatal _____'C Di Atfirmed B e —.
Dawson vs. Pratt-Mallory ... . hul........ Coverage Disall Aftirmed . . [Pending. «ceeolea s cnaaeas

T. T. Hernla ! Alfirmed INo appeal
¥v8. Pershing Coal COvnmmeee e T — Cause of ﬂnlh.ﬂmm S00.00 . < Reversed .

Wilson
Gee vs. Crabb.
Cross vs. Economy Coal Co

(AT irmed

3 I..n.W

Riley w8, Dallas Products Co.
Turk vs. Adelphi Coal Co
Penniwell vo. Sodin & Buinu.-
Rodgers v, lowa Rallway & Lig
Porter vs, Afton, Clty of..
Wells vs. Kelly-Atkinson..

#6404

| 4,500 00
- Disallowed

- De
Faul.........r.luu of death_______|$4,436.55

SpcoNp YEAR—1920-1930

Title of Case l Injury | 1ssue Arbitration Review Dist, Court I Sup. Court
|Fatal ... Dependency 300.00 1 Pendi b
Fatal 3,738.00 Affirmed Affirmed . ..... No appeal
. P e JOOYERAS 65.00 Aftirmed Com. affirmed, .
Allard ws, McXeal T Teaenaese. | EMPIOY .t wtbll 15 ] Pl Affirmed .. ___ \No a il
Walton vs. Smith & R P P, O K isallowed Affirmed....... Com. alfirmed No nppeal
Smith vs. Henry County Bmlul T. T. Hernla Di Alli.rmtd.._..-l . Teversed Com.
| L] I‘M
-‘arhm' vs. Harrison Const. Co..ee e .. P . Poe .. Om olemp.. o t_'..'nn (1] Hev 1 No appeal
Tendley ve. Cook & Stucker.... F. P n ot n:jnu ¥ 1 Aftirmed Pending
Schneherger w8, Wright (‘ 00....--.._. hl S— Disallowed [lltlmzd_.__.. Noappeal.... ... Bl oo
Woods vs. S t‘m’!nn RS I}!ullouﬂl ....... —ecssesacitirmed. Ko appesl... L oo
Illmofd tl Seheuerman ttru t of emp | At firmed T&n P T SRR,
Vignaroll v d- White. |Dtpmd'm 0.0 - Modifled iNosppesl..—. | o
Baulper ve. Inuuun Power. | Depend X —<|Alflrmed______Noappeal. | _____
Allard ve. Brady [ E 750, . Pending. . oeeelim il
Martyn vs. Des Moines Ehn:tﬁr T. T. Out of emp. Com. Il‘!immt Fmdlu
Enfield vs. lplp Out of emp \Com. Pending
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CASES REVIEWED AND APPEALED DURING BIENNIUM—Continued

w0
>
Titla of Case Injury Issue I Arbltration Review Dist. Court | Sup. Court
Bye ve. Nevada Poultry CO..oevemeee. SRR ) (. e d Reversed Affirmed No
Benson ve. Polk County. T. T. Affirmed ding S
gwum . Strange gm...__.._._._..__.. P. p.‘.._.... Affirmed. . [Pending. ... e B
evVens onst. O Fatal, o...... wenden 1 et P
Bedinn vn .‘Ca P? l:. g" o . Alz‘lrmﬂ = ;:;m o' ll’b'll ]
Ve, ureery. -|T. .04 At e B -
Mowntt n. Wm. Beu & Sons T. T [ - Digallowed ,..ﬁ::g______ i?ﬂ.m!. B WD g
Gehlen va. Hurd C ¥ Co. T, T :l‘l-'t LY. T Atfirmed No appeal = n
- =}
FATAL CASES REPORTED DURING BIENNIUM o
FisT YeAr—1928-1929 E
Employer Employe Cause Amount | Dependent Adjustment §
American Transfer CO. woeeeemeee . . B, Perkl |Throsn inst car {8 4,162, m......'wun =
i Jm P t;’:mdeﬂv.ﬁlhnn ey J\:ﬂuo eollision No ..-T !2",&1 clalm fled g
Alstadt & unxlu Bakiog Co.....[Paul Townsley [Btruck by truck st s o e e 3
& R. Wood |Jnrtumd o 4 AR Denied........ m-lmr. s |Arbitration
Paper Co, R Kenned ik by car. . 00, ST 7By agreement 8
fennett Bros. Coal Co —~{Wm. H Fall of L S By agreement
:lm it fl"l.'ﬂ Ic;=I Co...... s rl_! C!lnﬂt{aemn Fall of slate. . ______ - Agreement E
I ers Materinl Co.... ieo
T T e— g 7 o -
urlington Hasket Co .|Fred on truck by tree E
Beck Conl & Mining CO..ee e oeeee.e|Tom Pappas Asp ._{.‘. By ::m.mn::t‘
ger:?:;)llaa.oﬁ &........ Sam BAYEOT .ceesevamase HEt.rutk by train “klnw. f Linbility denied g
Coon River Sand Co. ; = Eﬂi‘;ﬂ:ﬂ = R'Iu-onn!n e &
Central Borvics Co.eeeeee .o ‘om Erleks: Fall . «—---|Hy ngrecment =
Central States Flecirie Go G Meai 5 “ING clatm Mo
T R o|L. H, DAYLOR oeeeeees -8t ST T i
Consolidated TRdiana Goal U B. 3, Jami e e i e I ot &‘7.,'1:.'::""'“""—-*.'&3 s
Central lowa Fuel Co Fall of slate. ... e A E00,00, _____Widow.. By ag nt
Central lowa Fuel Co Fall of slate. W B
Qonvent of Good Bheplierd Infection o {n;
Chicago, s Lo
Central West Publie Bervice......_._|Arthur G. B i::# from ladder -‘Ez: ks
o A Biseass Herman Buer troeuted 4,220,00. ... | Wilow By n
loverleaf Conl & Mining Co. ‘arl cm Ly in mine Widow . iMbll.nllon <)
Cownle TAnng 00, —eevemeanenan cmmemmnsenes|Diti] 0f natural causes. |
Coen Qoln BOtEINE C0veeeacensnenns h‘lrold Williams all st truck
Oram Oonwt, Co Ernest Lestar Foll In river bl
port, Olty of 1 Geerts Shot by thief.
ek & Stark Olaf M. Blogen Crushed Ry
.. Ilm. i .-=|ATt Stevens . Hernin Comproinise
I Car noeldent oo e Arbitration
I (Cancer Not compensable

Canter ... —— wt:lnw.. \m
Crushed in e snsnned | . & y ¥ agrecment
Struck by truck By agreement

No eclaim filed
Arbitration
Arbitration
By
Not compensabile
By t
Arbitration
Not

Falling rocks .
Irlllu faver

1

Auto secldent
al causes

Fall of slate

ttacked by bull

Fall _..

Fell from =

tow on head. oo

Lee Buck Flee
Fort Dodge . |Frank Duel by car. By
Farmers Mo Harry J Fal JBY Ak
Farmers M . J. Amold Struck by truoek. o] By
Garlock, E. J.. f Thorn Fell from tree. No claim flled

H, C. POLete..onoeereee /Truck turned OVer-——ceveew.| 610.00. ...
Pete POIKONIAK «oeeeoeee. [SITUCK DY CBTe oo e e |Unsottled. ...
Milton Brooks truck by traln..ceeccemeeea.| 3,324.00......
Harry Curtis .....e......|lnfection ECLINLT

Anthony Hauptmann ....|Rlow on heade . e eeeeeea..| Farm labor. ...

S—s ]
sntsemensatPEOAIDE

Hlummanu Edward .

5
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Hamllton Mg e s k M. Baker....—...| bl
Holderaft, W ¥
b M B L, DRI T 150.00. ...
Habn Bros. 00, ooeecmanniacaces 1,180.00. ... t
Towa Publie Service 00 eee oo .. | 4, 60,00, .. ...
Towa Co. 4.600,00. ...
Iowa Public Service Co.... cmeerrecceeeee|  4,500.00. ..... B
Towa Rallway & Light Co 1 g ted 4,50,00, ... |Widow Arbi fon
lowa Railway & Light Co . |Peter Hardit ........,...|Elee 4,500, 00, ... Widow. By t
Tows Rallway & Light Co |Edward Hawking ....... ﬁunml ——ee | 1,500,00, ... | PROCOLS o e _____lArDitration
lown Rallway & Light Co |Martin Bittner o- ! 2,738.00. ... WMow..-HM...IAerrnttm
Towa City Canning Co Olatf Anderson r i3 1,147,108 Parents Arbi
Independent Sehool Dist. of D. M.. H. L. Holbrook.......... Mphul-lnd crrmcn e enens|  §,500.00......|Widow__ ]By
Towa Power & Light Co.. ... Lewiz C. Schade.........|E 800,00, ... ' Father. By 53
ToWA CIty 1ron WOrkS oo Fo BODFS womeeeeooeesa | CAUENE I MACHIGETY-ooones] 10,0000 .. WIdOW . - -eeoooor- Third party settled =




FATAL CASES REPORTED DURING BIENNIUM—Continued

Fmst Year—Continued

De Adjustment

‘Widow .

i By
Widow.. .. oo Athituuou =
3 pendents -No eclalm fied E
Chester Sutherland ... |Fall .. oo ooee | 4.500, 2
Ed Dwyer 4,500, e |
Geo. Fogel . ICsught in machinery. ... 3,450, =)
Keh, 6. E]
Gus 8 1 Notural csuses
Chas. West .. ________ |Flectrocuted !,2
Martin Joh IR e | 3,652, 00.
Fall trom platform 708,00 =)
.|Struek by teain... . 3,600, (0 =}
I’ell from seaffold........... 2,760,00. 3
CAUEHE DY CTANC e cemamed] 4,500, 00,
aneer 1,000, 00.. - ——— e (‘urnl'mmlu =
Caught In machine. ... R 120,00, - L {WidoW- - —nooosom o |Compromise
MeCarthy Imp il Kickod by mule. ...} _ __ 1llinols case
MeCarthy Imwmrmnnt 00, e John Green _____ Struck by bolt. . _______| 3,117.00. By agreement
MeDonald, Y., Mfg. Co. -|Siman Blum ... |Csught in machinery..._._| 657,00, By ngreement
M h 1 Howard T Burned 2,250, 00, .|By sgreement
J4. 0. Short Fall 3,M5.00, JArbitration =
W. Champ Peri ! 600, 00, Compromise B
Geo, Melvin Slaymaker Struek by traln_________ ] 427,00, -[No claim filed
M Merle Easter. Electrocuted oo .| 4,500.00...... Widow......__. wsesesBY mEreement
N 0. |Arlelgh O. Willis Cave In 2,780,00. Widow_ . By ngreement
North Bell T Co..... |Wilbur Hoffman Toptromted e ) No dependents |No elalm fled o
Neuman & Co., Arthar H..cin ause.|George Enrl 4.500,00........ Widow. ....... -(By ngreement z
Norwood-White Conl Co,.... -|8. Vignaroll' ... .......... - 1,500, 00, '.Pamnt (partial) < /Arbitration
Norwood-White Coal Co...... «|Lee Wolfe . -|Electromted _ -] 8,208.26, - /By ngrecment g
Korwood-White Conl Co...... -|Curtis Cooley Strugk by ear. 4, 500, 00, \Arbitration
Norwood-White Coal CO...ees .cuvean|Dave Utterson Fall of slate. 4,500, 00, ¥ ngr
ns & Hons, v Co....[Pete M 4,500, 00, .|BY mgreement
1, 845,00, ent
o mm..' ....-..--‘.|(A’rhln'llh'.\l:e
X v e seseses COMpProm
230,00 ,
Nm_ -4 “ hl

|Earl Jorda:
livan A

Cave 10 o i ]
bt

5,976.00. ... Widow. . ......."_ll' nEreement
Minor

M—hhk County ...
ts Co,

I-ululhor Co. - R
m (u\:. % SRS IJ ilor Thomas________.
|Iund.-n1 ol Co. vo Hea
Roy !Iemln
Conl Co. Tony Mondinl -.________|Fall of siate
Conl Co 1A Fall of siate
Coal Co M. JI arm":fl -;lrﬁtrk'hlzuam.__..- g
Co. ngelo San all of sla
hinelds Col;l. ahn H Fell from ladder. ]
witt & 00, .. ceremmreaereaeeac Dok, B Brady, Jr..-|Auto aceldent T
wift & Co. Franels ==e===es|Bloetrocuted ... i oo
Bhipley 00, weeuoeeeeee oy . Hﬂlf Beimer —— o iaeeee. Heart nttack
Bt d Clay Prod ceefdoe Graham .o Crushed by wagon..........
B John «-|Alvin B B
Alex D, :
United States Gyp
Union Bridge & Const. Co 8
Unlon Pridge & Const. Co g
Vale, W. J Fai =
Weaver, Mi Do e e ccenrsncaas DR sl e e i
:::::m t.‘bo. S Run over by truck. ..
Woods Bros. Thresher Co..eeeee.o Oceupational disease .
Hunting Co. n
:;Eﬂ:‘hml.'ﬂ:nmn:-. SERASON - R‘Iruel- by train d
Wright Const, Co.... AR | T 5‘" nu'h!m! Clzoetag o g
Bllo Co. e /
ineering - |Wm, L e 4,500,00_ .- ___|Widow and ehildren
}3‘12{“' 15y e di o TaRoy 4. Eeboev—— 11500.00. " Parents (partial)... . |Com %
=
SpcoNp YEAR—1929-1920 ﬂ
(=]
American Telephone & Telegra s § 874,500,00.... . Widow.. =
numum“mﬂ Button OO -~ Infection %00.00.____ Mother and child.
Abrahamson, J. P., Const o r]:;d“ p
1o ! 00, ... Widow. By
Fﬁf-gif"h; :-r £ 730,00, “kto-r “and ehildren . - |Arbitration
Streptococcus [nfection : m : ol g; agreement
Bettendor! Co. wacieommancnnea grmlhl'll B ¢
1 ngged by team. 380,58, .. 1y agreemen o
Bt o G O e Tuwas IFall of slate No clsfm filed b
e — — . ——————e ———
— - e e — - '-ﬂ"




FATAL CASES REPFORTED DURING BIENNIUM—Continued [
Year—Conti =
Employer Employe Cause A [ Dependent Adjustment
|
Benson Coal Co. loe C Fall 585,00, Widow. i
Boone Coal Co Fall of coal 3500.00-7 7 Widow -~
Barish, E. Motor 00.....eeeeeeeeee. |[Frank G. Taylor........ !Auto secident ___________ Pend.lu....... Widow and ebild. ... Arhitration =
nator A ul:'- i “ed v eeseesesuesnssstArbitration m
Clim ol au 3,408.00. .. wmw and child......|Arhitra
Cedar Rapids, (.‘Il'r M‘ . No No elaim filed 3
Cedar Rlpull lows Oity RY...... Lewis Wisehart 4,500,00_ WidoW . .o ... |By Bgreement =2
C.,R.1. & P. R. R. Co Paul Hoss . 1,000,00. ....... Widow © i L
&mﬂ Serﬂu 00 e recossemenseces | CHES. 4,500.00. ...... Widow. ... aeeea...| By agreement
bon Coal 4,500.00. ... Widow. ... .. |BY agreement S
4,0500.00. .. Widow By |
75.00 . ___ Steplather..._______|Arbitration —_
1,250, 00. Widow and child. ... ../ Compromise Z
4,500.00. 'By g o
4,500, By ag t =]
+ Nort De: VIOW . o e | ATHI
Northwestern R. R. Co.... :g \h':gn'_ |Br i
Chittenden & Katman Co. ... .. lielle Hendrickson 1,204, fother. By ag
g::mﬂon Milllng & Grain Co. Robert Severt .|Blow on head. Denled. Widow Arbitration =
tral lown Fuel Co .. 4,500 “hildren By agreement =
Cutshall, ¥. E., Motor 00......... 4,500,00 [ Widow By ngreement =
Devlin Const, CO.eeeeee e e JAL Rus . Denled. Widow Arbitration a
Des Molnes Stove Repair Co Mike Heart faflure ____________ ) No depe Not eompensable Q
Dunlap Lumber & Graln Co Frod W il Kicked by horse_ 450 o depen No elnim A
Jeere, John, Tractor Oo.... Electrocated __ 4,500 Widow. . By ngreement
Dyersville, Clty of. ... Henry Hunfelt Shot by thiet_._____ 150, o depen By agreement -
des Moines, Oty of ... Riehard O, Chamberinin. |Skull fractured - Pendin, Widow. .. |Arbitration ]
Fictrie Rall Weld Kaiee. 0o Cheyton 8 nu"'_;&" Killed by, train it My [Aroitrermeas
p @l n FPecneaa | Uluy on B. Howard...... ¥ train. 3 = -
Elgln Dairy - Chias, Auto collision s by P i =)
Economy Conl Co...o....... John Erlckson ... Struck by bar. Pending
:mrtm-ov. Elevator Co 3.nrln;r‘ Lovig ... By agreement
Stin mp e e i aa R tto Hutek Ereerm:
Bullerton Lumhnu Co. Jokspii' Hanson - B et
ank .- Louls Blags il EToe
Federal Bridge 0o, . oooooeeeeeeee [F. W, Martin........_.|Hirock on back A ol
Grittin Bros. Const. Oo...... .| Hurold Sharit{ Fall . Arbitration
glrlmu (:mu“ u&'o' Mary \;Illiil:lm.'_-.-“-._. Struek by car. ding
" el [ Explos! —remaen: -
Grimes Cunning Co. IMurtin Griet b 2,801.00...0C meldnw.‘i ...... SIS m&‘m

|Crushed by troek......... s A0, OO,
Hiood
Fall of slate. 4. 500,00
urk by kick. 4,500, 00,
feeth cmmeaf 00,00,
Hugh MeEnehran ........|Wagon passed over body. . ... ..
Halllburton Bros «-|{R. H. MeClary. Inf, 4,500, 00,
Horrabin, Wm,, O ie0. Van truck by ear ... 2,970.00
3y e gt o R S .Gto. Bk e | Fell from seaffold. - ...} e
Home Oil 00, ooe..eo.. 0. Upebure Struek by train 4,500, 001
Hawkeye Portland Cement 00....|R. C. Tueker. 4, 500 (0
Haordy & Eckoff..... eeasssmnseassss |EIDert Eckhoff . (RN
Home Ol & Gas Co eessesses|dOhn E. Beach. 2, 750,00,
Hancock County .. -=|{E. H, Wahlert. 4,500, 0.
Hart-Parr Co. ... -—-|Roy Luther ______ 4,5, 06
Home Furniture Co, ... ‘m, Kampsehroer 2, 250,00,
ows State Highway O .-|Engel Boot . 4 i,
owa State O Ho?&it‘aﬂum
owa State Highway © | JAMee oeeieies
owa State Highway O G i
owa Canning 00 ceeeeeeeeeeeee -s
owa W Co,
lows Southern Utilities ..ooo.oo ... |Frad Tect
International Milllng Co, .eeeeooon|d Struck by eable .. oen .|
[owa Nebraska Light & Power Co,. \:r:ll L‘ Dettls EXplOslon sucociiiocniisiaaa.
owa Nebrasks Light & Power Co,. El 1
owa_ Electric C0y.eecscenss yansannsns Hllton A Eﬂrl:m ..... Car seeldent .o oceacsin.
[Ninols Central Syste J. C. Infection
P BI:. Qlalfe .. sesne

owa Machinery Supplye.c...e--
owa blic Bervice....conananas
own Ry. & Light Corp

.|James FEdwards .....
Milton 8l

owa RY. & Light COrPuceccececnnnas
Interstate Power Co.

OWA CILY, CItY Ofererossssmsmnmemes 'lﬂ

Herbert Martinson
Alfred E. Bergm

Jewell

Kahl,

H. Coionnssesss: emsesesep s ana

Rirkwood Hotel

Kipper & 800, F. Buccccccccansies|d

—-se-|Eloctrocuted -
Auto wllia«m PSRRI
Jectr

Not eompensable
Arhiteation
Unsettled

By agreement
elalm fMled

ngEresment

Arhitration
Arbitration
< |Unmettied
Unset Lied
Ry

HOIAUES NOILVSNEINOD SNHNMUOM

By agreement
Nn clalm fled
-{By agreement
-INo claim filed
~_|{Compromise
Ko claim filed

1€




FATAL CABES REPO'RTED DURING BIENNIUM—Continued
ECOND

Year—Continued
A D A Adjustment
BT I — 4,500.00 .| Widow . By
Merchants Transfer .
#mm Sal
Newton, City reement
National Carbide OO st s | 5 .
National Const. CO..o e eeeeceanean (D, Stevens. . |Kilied by truek. 1,500.00_ . Widow Comyp
Norwood-White Coal CO..eenneenner mum- Cunpingham .....|Fall of slate No depend weeeeee No claim filed
o B!léo‘r“' I -nmu Held Crushed i |Unsettied
Osceola County Co-op. Creamery... Garthwaite ... |Crushed
Pearson § I Co ' TR i NI e s S agreement
Fall mgreement
Agreement
B,4T4.00- agTecment
No clalm flled
Peoples Light Co. Delbert . H 4,500.00. ... Widow B
Postal Telegraph Co. iz A. Trout 1,165.00. ... Plrrnuwlﬂllli..... By agreement
Poweshiek County .......eeeeeonw.|Edmund Swaln 650,00 ¥ - By
:n rod, Jurden & O avssveses |[OTR GUINAN e i | Car necident | Pending - .....[Widow. ... ST «-|ATbitration
bi rO8. OIFPUS. oeeecenennaes bed by train N -/Not eompensable
bloK Brod, CIreus.....wioeee... |J08, wessssnssens|Trampled by horse........... rbitration
s Bros, Circus___._.___.....|Donald Williams wsenesne-|Crushed by train..........| No clalm filed
RI County Geo. Welermann Crushed ¥ ngreement
S BT S ——— N Full of slate. 3y agreen
Rex Fuel Qo...ooeoenanneas Wm. Swim Fall of slate. 4 ¥
Btandard Oll CO..emevrnccnnneas Emmett ¢, Holeomb..... Crushed by truck. 4 By
Standard Ol Co.......... -{Geo. W, Kibby Explesi i Iy
Standard Ol 00 .coerennnnan Arthur Stewart Explosi 1 Ny ngreement
Conl € Flora Mattloda Fall of rock 4 By ag
. |Donald Burton Struck by stone 4, W Ry ng
«|Dan J. Greer.............|Crusbed 4, 500, 00. W By ng
«|Thos. Norris ... Btruck by ear. oo 4,500.00. Widow. . By t
onl o Susiek .ooceeaeeee. Caught under ear.....__.__.| 4,500,00. Widow. By ngr
v M. B,... -|Thomas Giblin Fall 4,500.00. - Widow. B
Bloux Olty Stock Y «|N. H. Harrison..........|Natural eauses ‘Widow. No bl
Butelitt & Case Co..... .[John Vineent |Struck by car. ‘nsettied. ... ‘Widow, ..... wmssmensas Arhitration
Bpeeder luhhn&(h..‘.......... -|Char, E. Walker......... |Struck by ear. Unsettled Widow . Arbitration
w; temessmmsnssssnsas | Frod Hamerlinek Crushed Pendin Widow. 4
Bmith Neat C0.voercrnnnrenamnrn s in m Bmith E | Ui

I . ........-_.-....-.......I:mrlu-l
- Blood | B - Widow . Not e
Struck by tube_____ 2| “Itlnln‘-..‘.‘..-....-[HI aereement

- Mother. Not compensabile

'llfat prostration

By agreement
Arbitration

By ngreement
By agreement
I!)' agreement

BY agreement
arbitration

Kt
Webster City, City of... -5
Younker Bro#. ......... Sp— 40 R T
Yokom Const. Co., W. L........../John Weller _
Zwack, Anton -_.-...,HH.......-..ls. W. Kinder

HANOISSTWIOD "TVIHLSNANI 40 LUOdHY

HOIAMHS NOLLVSNHANOD S.NANWMUOM
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COMPENSATION STATE CASES

Under the law the state undertakes to carry out the compensa.
tion obligations of itself and its various departments as employ.
ers and payments are made directly out of the state treasury upon
orders of the Industrial Commissioner issued after the proper pre.
liminaries and liability is established. The State, in and for it
self, or in its many departmental activities, has many thousands
of employes who are under coverage of the compensation law.
They are in every county of the State. In the main they are
well paid, and injured employes or their dependents generally re.
eoive the maximum compensation allowance. The percentage of
injury eases appears to be not large, Dut in recent years the
number of these employes has been greatly inereased, and the
drain upon the stale treasury is of growing importanee,

STATE EMPLOYES

Following this is given a table showing compensation payments
under this heading for each of the past four years separately and
classified by departments and institutions, It will be seen by this
table there was a substantial inerease in the payments made out
of the fund provided by the general assembly for the bienninm
just elosed, over that for the previous biennium. But it will also
not eseape attention that for the last year of the eurrent biennium
there was a substantial decrease from the eost for the first year.
This decrease is, at least, in large part, more apparent than real,
and it rvepresents a temporary fluctuation in working conditions
in-a few departments, It is also in part due to earnest effort on
the part of those in authority to keep down these costs by lessen-
ing the number of aceidents and give prompt and effective aid 10
the end that the least amount of time shall be lost from employ-
ment.

It can be fairly said that the varions heads of departments and
all who are in authority in the matter of employment for the
State have cooperated whole-heartedly with the department in
secking to minimize the loss in labor and money under the eom:
pensation plan. The fact that the payments to injured workmen
or to the dependents of those who have been killed, shows some
decrease, while the expenditures on aceount of medical and hospital
serviee have increased, but indicates that great success has been
attained in preventing time lost from employment. In very many
cases, where medieal bills have been paid. there was no payment
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of eompensation. The injured workmen went back on the payrolls
hefore the expiration of the waiting period. In the past two
years ecompensation was payable in some fifty cases, but medieal,
hospital or burial expenses were ineurred in more than three times
this number.

At the close of the biennium for which this report is made pay-
ments are being made regularly in five cases where death onsun‘nl
and there were dependents. The compensation period will have
run its 300-weeks eourse in three of these cases hefore the end of
the next biennium. There are, however, at least three disability
cases  on which payments ave being made, that will run for the
400 weeks provided by law,

PEACE OFFICER CASES

Another ecall upon the State treasury arising in an entirely
different way, but handled strietly in accord with the provisions of
the workmen’s eompensation law, relates to payments to injured
peace officers or to dependents of those who are killed in the line
of their duty. This law went into effeet July 4, 1923, The de-
pendents, that is, widows and minor children, or others actually
dependent upon sheriffs, marshals or other peace officers, are en-
titled to compensation out of the State treasury at the maximum
rate of compensation, under terms and conditions the same as in
case of injuries to employes,

Sinee the law went into effeet there has been paid out, on this
aceount, a total of $34,506.77. Of this, $14,276.55 was paid -out
in the last two years, Payments will continue to increase by ac-
cumulation of cases. Two death eases have been ended, and five
?thers of the eight now being carried will terminate during the com-
ing hiennium. In two cases of death there were no dependents,
henee only burial and medical costs were chargeable to the State.
In two other cases, where the sheriff and marshal were killed at
Washington near the elose of the hienmium, liability was at onee
accepted, but payments had not been made before the close of
the period. In one of these eases there were dependents.  Another
more recent ease is in the records, but on which compensation to a
dependent had not been commenced on the date of this report.
I:".‘"ml‘lﬂﬁ under this heading are made without special appropria-
tion and are not ineluded in the table showing payment out o1
appropriated funds for injuries to State employes.

Towa was the pioneer state in providing compensation on ae-
count of the extreme hazards of peace officers, and having now
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had seven years’ experience with the law, it can be most heartily
commended.

WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION—STATE EMPLOYES

Expenditures for four years, classified, and Expenditures for Biennium by
Departments

COMPENSATION PAYMENTH

1927-1928 1925-1525

Deaths ..... 2,501.45 |
Drsability 3k 9,154.20
Medical and Hospita 3.252.08
Burlal cost P R s

Total ........5 14,482.76 § 16.147.73 $

Total for 1926-28, all compensation henefits. .

Total for 1928-40, all compensation benefits, ... ..

PAYMENT BY DEPARTMENTS DURING BIENNIUM -

Year 1928-1929 Year 1329-183n

Department Compensation Burial Compensation Burial
DiaTit Cases T
Highway Commission..§  728.95 $ 1,647.02 $§ 45000
Htate University ...... G092 (TN Y i s s A
Cherokee hospital .. ... BHT.46 260k S A A

583.29
S Rede | B BABT AT 1% Lah0.08
INSABILITY (TAHEH

Diepartment Compensation  Maodieal Compensation  Medieal
Highway Commisslon. .§  8,002.30 ¥ 4m1700 $ 3.671.83 § G.406.80
Swate University .. z 3,7 9,00 J151. b.00
State College ...

Board of Control. .
Eldora Boys' School, . .
Woodward Colomy ...,
Davenport Home ......
Marshalltown Home ...
Fort Madison Prison. .. S

Fish and Game Dept... 5O7.86
Totals .......$ 260249

Clarinda Hospital...... LT T
Oukdale Sanitarium ... i e
Roekwell City Rel'mt'ry., Ve vy
Fish and Game Dept,. .
Bonrd of Conservation, o STt
Custodian  Bulldings . AT a
Hoard of Health...... . saeuin
National Guard ....,..
State Fair .. wahs s 1,379.32

Totals ....... $ 11,795.79
Compensation Payments 1928-1830 .
Medical and Hospital 1928-19230.
Burial Benefits

Total for Blennfum ........... AU NS GRRE RSt gt 3 0 K - L
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WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION—PEACE OFFICERS

Compensation Paid by State D;_:’rlnx the Biennlum on Account of Injury to

eice Offlcers

Officer

Case, Orin L., Ha

s
Ba
Ha

Wahler
Swoeet, W. F., Washington, sheri
Balley, Anron, Washington, marshal.

Hemmer,
Armstroog, J. W., Logan, marshal __________

Marshall, Dewey, Polk County, deputy sheriff
MeConnell, Clint, Decatur County, deputy sheriff .

Victor, Waterloo, pollee......oo ... __

P., Dubuque County, deputy sheriff_ ..

, N. F., Union County, sheriff ___

yton, Lewis, Clay County, deputy sheriff ___

ker, F. N., Hamilton County, deputy sheriff. _
nfelt, Harry J., Dyersville, muarshal.
t, E. H., Hancock County, sheri

Total dsath: €ases - = |8 560,005 2000l 12,2%5.00
|
Greene, A. O., Crawford County, sherlff....._________ 3- 835 ..} 1170 o7
Wagner, H. T., Black Hawk County, deputy sheriff__ m-n-:i......_’ a.n‘ e -?
Tullar, Myron G., Webster County, sheritf...___.____ |12.11.28 .,...,...1 110,65
Chris her, A. E., County, deputy sheriff. | 1-10-80\....._. %.000
WM Ba K., gau;‘liléhpolm..é;.-....-.“_._....Ei____ 2- B | b
+ Harry R., anan County, deputy sheriff_. | 2-21.50] 9.

Ingrabam, €. G., Council Bluffs, balliff L Bi=17-301

Total for disabilities

et LG XY

Total payments, peace officers, for hi S T R
Total pald In previous fve years under same law 0.8
Total for seven years. 54,606, 77

Ameriean Bridge Co, va. Funk ( Pettit) .
Arthur ve, Murble Rm-k] Sv{hunl District. ... o5 ovd
‘o,

COURT DECISIONS COMPENSATION CASES

Decisions of Towa Supreme Court on Matters Reliting to Workmen's

- Compensation
CASE CITATION

VA, Interurban R. R. Co.......
ker vu. Roberts & Beler.,,.... e Wty el

¥ SRS
&

dwin vs. Sullivan ..............

oh

Black Dry Goods Co, vs. Funk (Wright v, B

Bu

cli
Coy
D
D

Mbllvlaln-m Union Ry. Co. vs, Funk, Commissioner.
Flint
m‘w V. Carpenter. ... .

Griffith ve, Cole

fiul
H:

mingore ve. Shenandoah Artificial Tee
Crooke ve. Farmers Mutual Hall Ins,

her VA, Des Moines Elctrio 00,..o.ueine oo iioiiis
lack) .
onl va. Saylor Coal Cov..vvonernssensss
ncle va, Sioux City Stock Yards.......
ng vs. Iowa Railway and Light Co...

R I & P. Ry. v&. Schendel ({Federal Court).......
ensmith vs. Jackson Dalry Co..

ugherty va, Scandia Coal Co.. ..
vey va, Norwood-White Coal (o,
¥idson ve, Bidwell Coal Co., ... ...

® V8. Towa-Nebraska Coal Co..... wari o v s 801
TYOW V8. What Cheer CIAY Products (0. ce..oesssessoness s
W VR Priehe C0...cisssanssamsees sineanmsansaharniens
v&. Eldon, City of..

T P R T £

i T St vevian vavgaripes SN Ny
Sy 4 auit o naia 3B No W 840

t V8. Fleming Bros.......... 118 N. W. 849
------- e . L 1) .

thrie va. Towa Gas & FIeelrle G . oo oo vin s s :
V8. Dickinson (G, R. L & P. RF.0ierindonrrinneres i 1768 N. W, 823
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Helnen ve, Motor Inn Corporation. ... vsseesva 219 N,

nerblg ve. Walton Auto Co........

Hinrichs va, Davenport !.mnmullvo GO s sur 2“ N.
Hoover va. Central Towa Fuel Cooeieioriiinsees N,
pop v Bringk (Sherman Tp, Sioux Co.)....

Hughes ve, Cudahy Packing Co..........
Juckson ve. lowa Telephone CO......cc-oovicinnsenes
Jonnings va. Mason Llur Sewer Plipe Lo. .....

Johnson ve, Albla, CIty of. .. .covinrne i
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SELF-INSURERS

RELEASE FROM INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS GRA

NTED TO EM-

PLOYERE DURING THE BIENNIUM

Adel Clay Products Company, Adel,

Amann Soclety, Amana.

Amerlcan Dridge Company, Pittsburgh,

Amrrlc-nn Telephone & Te rxmph Com-
?a New York.

Atlantle Northern Railway Company,
Atlantic

Bettendorf Company, Bettendorf.

Bremner, W. H.. Receiver for M, &
5. L. K. R, to Minneapolis.

Buehler Bros, Markets of Estate of
Christian Buehler, Peoria,

i'nlrr Ryder, Adams & Company, Du-
il

L L l..a—a "nlru-nhing Machine Com-
an
Cedar dl‘upidn ‘Gas Company, Cedar

Rapi

Cedar Rapids & Marion Clity Rallway

Company, Cedar Hapids

Central Company, Des
vines,

Ienl:ml States Electric Company, Ce-
dar Tapids,

C ]'"f;'“'u" Rul'lnlng Company, Mason
'Il.lmilrr Pum Ceda

Rapids ¢ 2
Chicagn Bridge & Iron Works, Chi-
{i]

cago.
Chicago, Burlington & Quiney Rall-
rtoad Co,, Chloago,
Chicago, Great “'l-llleﬂ! Rallroad Com-
pany, ['hlca 0.
h ago orlhweslem Railway
nﬁ th
Chicago, Rock lnllnr! & Pacific Rail-
way o, Chicago.
Chicago, St I'\nul. Minneapolis &
t_“lf'm:ru [;R';alluay‘CfL 8t. Paul.
1% wer ht  Com;
Council Bluffs = sl
J-Illuaulpmenl Corporation, Cedar

Clear Lake Independent Telephone
ﬂmmlun?&v Mauwon Cit
< :la"?l {‘?‘ ;.:;[.:;ﬂ & Muscatine Rail-
ammun 4!

o s;:l !_j-\ o Slaliﬂn Company,
“Inlluhy Bros. Company, Cudahy.

n Manuracturlns Company, Ot-

Bennhtnn & Partridge Company, New-
D?( llninu Rallway Company, Des
Dn .\lulnn & C-nlrnl Iowu. Rallroad
hol;lamnr‘

lnne Electrlc l.lsht Company,
Dl'l llnlhu tlu Company, Des Moines.

lowa Fuel

Company,

Des Moines Union

g Rallway Company,

Dewey  Portiand
Kansns City

Dolese llrulhem Company,

Eastman Kodak Stores,

) Mlnin’r’u

= L Dupont Dve Nemours Compan:
Wilmington. N

Electrical  Research  Products, Inc,
New Yok,

Farmer's Union Live Stock Commis-
sion, Bloux City.

Ford Motor Company, Detroit,

Cement  Company,

Chicago,
Inc., Ides

Fort Dudge. Des Moines & Southern
R. R. Company, Boone,
Fort Dodge Gas & Electrie Company,

Fort Dodge.
Fort Mﬂdlmm Electrie Company, Fort

digg
French & "rchl Davenport.
General Electric Company, Schenec-

Outdoor
pany, New Yor! k
flr‘sph:r Electrie Company, Inc, New

Great Atlantic & Pacific Ten Com-
pany, Chicago,

Griffin Wheel v

Guardlan  Life
New York.

Hanford Produee Company, New York.

Tome Lumber Company, North Eng-

Advertsing  Com-

=

any, Chlengo.
nsEurance  Company,

Illlnnlst Central
icago,
lnlnrnuuunul Harvester Company, (hi-

Rallroad  Company,

Ago.
Inlt-mlslnlunnl Milling Company, Minne-
apaol

Interstate Transit Lines, Omaha

Interstate Ol Company, Ilur:lugmn

lowa Lil%‘ Light & Pawer Compiny,
Towa

Towa l'.lwlrll' l"nm]mu% Cedar IhlPidu

lowa National Fire Insurance om-
pany, Des Moines,

Towa-Nebraska nghl & Power Com-
pany, Lincoln

lowa Puwa-r & Light Company, Des

Moi
lowat I'uhllc Bervice Company, Sloux
y.
Towa Southern Utilities Company, Cen-
tervillg.
Iowa Transfer Rallway Company, Des
olnes,
Iten Biscult Company, Omaha

Jake Lampert Yards, Inc., St. Paul,
John Deere Tractor Company, Wi-
terioo.

e e
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Jewell Tea Company, Chicago.
Keokuk Electric Company, he okuk.
Lagomarcino-Girupe Company, Bur-
lington. ¢
Lane-Moore Lumber Company, Web-
ster City. 2
LeGrande Limestone Company, Chi-

cagn
Lehigh [‘nrllnml Cement  Company,
Allentown
Lincoln Na nmll Life Insurance Co,,
Fort Wayne.
Louden Machinery Company, Falrfleld.
aw Clty & Clear Lake Rallroad
Company, Mason City,

Sears Roebuck & Company, Chicago.

Shlrlrlu-r Marble & Granite Company,
Bavenport.

’1‘.I M. Sinclair & Company, Cedar

tapids

Sinclair Refining Company, Chicago.

Stoux City Gas & Electric Company,
Sioux City.

‘ilu\.:l City ~ Service Company, Sloux

Ly.
Skelly Ol Co., Tulsa, Okla.
Southern Sure ty Company of Now
York, St. Louls,
Epencer Kellogg & Sons, Ine, Buffalo,
Hin ril Ol Company (Indiana),
«

Mllun upn!iu Muline Power nt
Compuny, Minneapolis,

Mlmlmchlpl River Power Company,
Keokuk,

Moline-Rock lulnud Manufacturing

'Iu‘n b Company, Minneapolis.
| Blacult Company, New York.
Lyon Manufaciuring Company,

Bell Telephone Com-

. i

l luulu'il Bluffs Strect Rail-
way Company, Omabac

Ottumwa Gas Company, Ottumwa.

Pacific  Frult  Express  Company.
Omaha,

Peoplep Gas & Electric  Company,
Mnason Clty.

Peoples Light Company, Davenport,

Philllps Petroleum Company, Bartles-
ville, Olklahomn.

I'il{tmll Compressing Company, New

Postal  Tolegraph-Cable Company of
Town, Des Molnes.

Pittsburgh  Plate Glass  Company,
Plitsburgh.

Prairle Pipe Line Company, Inde-
pendence, Kansas.

Prudential Insurance Co. of America,
Newark,

Rallway Express Agency, Ine, Now

Tted Ball Stores. Inc, Des Moines,

Red Hock Coal Company, Des Molnes,

Rivers Power Mmuf.n:hlrim.' Com -
pany, Davenport

St Anthony & Dakola Elevator Com-
pany, Minneapolls,

Htlnm" " In worporated, Des Moines,
ray System, Des Moines.

Shell Petroleum Lr-rpl)r.tlinn. Bt. Louis,

T ;n H:n-rwln-\\ illiams Company, Cleve-

anil,

The Simmons Company, Kenosha, Wis

1\ Egir Corpomtion, New York.

ri ontinental Oil Company, Pitts-

burgh

Travs hg“ II-‘lm Insurance Company,

rife

vl .l. rs Indemnity Company, Hart-

“I‘.-.n---l.-;-.-c Insurance Company, Hart-
fordl,

Tri City Rallway Company of Tows,
Davenpor

Pacific  Railroad Company,

I'n
Omnha,
'nited Light & Power Enginvering &
Constroction Co., Davenport.
I nllul States Gypsum Company, Chi-
K.

[um States Nubber Company, New
York,

Vacuum Ol Company, Chiciago,

Western Blectric Company, New York,
(Release Issued Jan., 25, 1930

Western Ice Company, Chleago. (New
appllcation not sent in.)
T Union Telegraph Company,

w York.

Wickham & Company, Councll
" Blufrs,

Wisconsin  Bridge & Iron Company,
North Milwaukee.

Worden-Allen Company, a corpora-
tion, Milwaukes.
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LITIGATION

The chief service rendered by this department is administrative.
Only in instances comparatively rare is litigation invoked in the
adjustment of elaims. Many situations more or less complex are
cleared up by informal interpretation of the law and in other
department counsel. It should be understood, however, that the
Industrial Commissioner is without authority to enforce ruling
or order except through litigation. When controversy may not
be reconciled by negotiation, individual rights must be submitted
in arbitration.

When action is brought it is the purpose and practice of the
department to bring on all hearings as promptly as practicable,
taking into consideration the making of schedules for hearings
about the state within the reasonable range of department capacity
as to time and due consideration to the state in the matter of
expense. Consistent with these reasomable limitations case group-
ing is necessary, though in instances of urgent requirement espe-
cial trips may be made. In this connection it may be said that
when parties are prepared and no reasonable excuse for con-
tinuance exists long delay does not ocenr,

In ease of appeal review hearing comes on as soon as the
record is in readiness, The statute provides for the admission of
additional evidence at the review hearing, but here the record is
closed. At rare intervals the sugzestion is made that the statute
be so amended as to provide for hearing de novo in the district
court. This procedure might serve to redunee compensation pay-
ment on the part of employers and insurers as it would so much
increase the cost of litigation as to ent out to a considerable extent
the exercise of the right of appeal exeept in cases where a large
award is involved. There is no basis for the belief, however, that
insurers or employers would favor the introduction of such legal
expedient, Workmen surely would oppose this change so mani-
festly discriminating against their interest in holding down the
expense of litigation. Such expense is a very serious matter to
claimants,

On pages following appear in full decisions in review. Very
few of such decisions are omitted for the reason with rare exeep-
tion each case contains some point peeuliar to conditions and
circumstances not hitherto decided in this jurisdietion. The inter-
est manifested in the publications of these decisions abundantly
Justifies their inclusion in our biennial report.




12 REPORT OF INDUSTRIAL COMMISSIONER

REVIEW DECISIONS
DEPENDENCY BASED ON MARRIAGE—COMPLICATIONS

Maude Bittner, Claimant,
Vs,
lowa Railway & Light Corporation, Employer,
Standard Accident Insurance Company, Insurance Carrier, Defendants,
Malinda C. Bittner, Intervenor,
Bryant & Bachman, for Claimant;
E. N. Farber and Maurice V. Pew, for Defendants;
Roy L. Pell, for Intervenor,

In Review

The chief issue in thls controversy is as to whether or not the claimant,
Maude Bittner, ean qualify as the lawful wife of Martin Bittner at the
time of his death, October 24, 1928, in the employ of the lowa Railway and
Light Corporation,

The intervenor, Malinda C. Bittner, contends that the alleged marriage
of Martin Bittner and Maude Bittner was without force or effect, and
a8 the mother of this deceased she seeks to establish dependency on the
basis of actual contribution on his part to her support,

Defendants deny that Maude Bittner was the legal wife of Martin
Bittner at the time of his death for these reasons:

1. At the time they assumed marital relations both of these parties
had been divorced from other spouses within the year of statutory
prohibition of marriage of divorced persons.

2. In the case of Maunde Bittner it was noted in court entry that her
divorce was to become effective upon payment of costs which remained
unpaid at the time of her remarriage.

On the part of Maude Bittner it is contended

1. That remarriage within the prohibition period is a misdemeanor
for which punishment iz provided and that the statutory expression as
to conditions voiding marriage does not include such remarriage.

2. That the judlclal qualification as to the payment of costs cannot
serve to nullify the docket entry of the court granting divorce.

4. That the first marriage of Maude Bittner was vold because the con-
tracting parties were first cousins, the marriage of whom is definitely
barred by statute,

The supreme court of Towa has never had occasion to pass squarely and
definitely upon the question as to domestic status of persons who marry
contrary to the mandate of section 10,484 of the code,

In this connection, however, It is interesting and fairly convincing to
examine expression of the court in Lee vy, Lee, 130 N, W. 129 and Farrell
ve. Farrell, 181 N. W, 12. These opinions afford substantial basis for the
conclusion that the marriage of Maude and Martin Bittner cannot be re-
garded otherwise than as legal.

Courts generally seem inclined to bring within legal recognition all
marriage contracted in evident good faith and consummated in ceremonial
propriety.

If, however, it were to be held that this man and this woman were
not legally married under ceremonial forms of law, they were free to
contract legal marriage at the expiration of one year from the date of
the divorce latest granted. This period was concluded long before the

1

WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION SERVICE 43

death of Martin Bittner. The Bittners during all this period were main-
taining such relations with each other and such attitude before the
public and of common knowledge as to qualify this woman as the legal
wife of the deceased, and as a dependent widow under common law
pruﬂsiﬂn!.

Upon this entire record it is held that at the time of the death of
Martin Bittuer, Maude Bittner was his lawful wife and that she is en.
titled to the relief provided by thé compensation law to a dependent
widow,

Under this holding it inevitably follows that Malinda Bittner has no
standing in this action as a dependent of the d 1, Martin Bittner,

The arbitration decision is affirmed,

Dated at Des Moines this 5th day of July, 1929,

A. B, FUNK,
lowa Industrial Commissioner,
Affirmed District Court; no further appeal.

SCOPE OF EMPLOYMENT—AWARD DENIED

Matthew Parfenow, Claimant,
vs,
Harrison Engineering & Construction Co., Employer,
Hartford Accldent & Indemnity Co. Insurance Carrier, Defendants.
Emmert, James & Needham, for Claimant:
Miller, Kelly, Shuttleworth & McManus, Frederic M, Miller, appearing for
Defendants.

In Review

Arbitration hearing at Ottumwa February 27, 1929, resulted In statutory
award,

Circumstances of injury are substantially as follows: On May 18, 1928,
while attempting to cross a railway track at an opening between freight
cars of a standing traln, movement of the forward section caught the
right arm of claimant between the humpers making amputation necessary
at a point a few inches below the elbow.

On the part of the defense obligation is denied on the ground that at
the time of his injury as aforesald, Matthew Parfenow was not in the
employ of the Harrison Engineering & Construction Company,

It appears from the evidence that through the negotiation of his half-
brother or step brother, Paul G. Kratzke, serving as inspector of the
State Highway Commission, this claimant came from northern Minnesota
to take work with the defendant employer. In this relationship as it
would appear, workmen are entered upon the pay roll of the employer
for services as required, being paid only for such days or parts of days
a8 services are authorized,

Parfenow testifies he arrived from Minnesota April 14, 1928, and began
working at Cottonwood, Lee county, under arrangement with Superintend-
ent Frank Turner ten days later. Under instruction he worked two or
three days unloading cement from cars into the cement house. Then he
Says he moved a fence and later he was sent out on the highway to aid
In construction work, Subsequently he was ordered to do sprinkling
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work required in the process of cement setting after it is laid in pave
ment, Later he was nsked by a fellow workman to turn over the work
in day time to take on night service in the same capacity. This was
Tuesday morning. It rained later in the day and on Wednesday and
Thursday, removing the necessity of sprinkling and hence no night or
other service was rendered in this period,

Meanwhile claimant stayed in his rooming house at construction head-
quarters. He testifies that at noon on Friday “as he went around on the
north side of the rooming house he saw a man on a truck with a load of
planks”; that “he drove swiftly by and waved at me and told me to go
and clean up the rubbish in the yard.” Says he did not know the man
who gave the order; could not place him; could not say whether or not
be was driving & company truck. Says he went to the yard and threw
some boards lying there over the fence to the west of the yard. After
working about an hour he went as he says into the office of his relative,
the gravel inspector, for a drink of water. As there was none there he
took a dinner pall and was crossing the railway track to a pump when
the Injury occurred s aforesaid.

By a preponderance of the evidence it appears that under the working
rules of that construetion organization employment authority was vested
chiefly If not wholly in the superintendent, Frank Turner. Timekeeper,
B, ¥, Smith, may have to a slight degree assumed to act on occasion and
in emergency a foreman may have picked up the workmen entered on the
pay roll, but these Instances would appear Lo have been exceedingly rare.

Under these cireumstances defendants seem justified in guestioning the
rlght of the workman to resume labor after several days of suspension
under orders of a mun unknown to the elaimant and whom he does not
now pretend to be able to make any suggestlons as to identification. At
this time Parfenow had been among the construction people for more
than five weeks, Durlng this perfod it is reasonable to assume he came
to know by sight or suggestlon all his fellow workmen, at least to the
extent of knowlng from whom he should take orders,

Claimant testifles that when he referred to his foreman, Jack May, the
matter of his shift from day to night work upon the suggestion of a
fellow workman he was told by May that “it was all right, that when any-
body told me to do anything I should go ahead and do it.” Upon this
statement counsel contends that elaimant was given to understand that
he must take orders from any source as sufficient authority to get budy,
This assumption seems grossly Inconsistent and foreman Jack May is
not introduced to verify it,

This elaim can stand only upon the testimony of claimant, Self-serving
evidence is to be carefully considered, but in order to have vital force it
must have such corroboration as to afford substantial basis for inherent
probability. In this case such support is wanting in the record, The
mysterfons stranger who I8 sald to have ordered Parfenow into service at
noon May 15th would seem to have told claimant to do a work not reason-
ably required in the interest of the employer. Disinterested testimony
tends substantially to show there was no conspicuous rubbish to remove.
The claim is made that it had accumulated in the sawing of planks for

L
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road use, but it is shown thal no scraps of planks were left and only saw
dust remained and from hand sawing this accumulation must have been so
inconsiderable as not to suggest removal as consistent with the general
condition of the premises.

In the interest of justice it is sometimes necessary to make allowance
for lack of intelligence or for want of language understanding on the
part of an injured workman. In this case, however, no such condition is
suggested, Matthew Parfenow testifies that he was educated in a Russian
military academy, that he speaks eight languages and that he has been
in this country thirty-five years. He iz a man too intelligent and too
sophisticated to take orders from any wayfarer that may have shouted to
him from a swiftly passing motor if, indeed, such order was ever given
for the removal of rubbish that presumably did not exist or need attention,

In depositions submitted by the defendants at the review hearing their
case !s much strengthened, as the history given by claimant i{s made less
convinelng as to compensable conditions said to exist. The only supple-
mental evidenee submitted by elaimant in review is the deposition of Paul
Kratzke, whose testimony relates almost wholly to a ground of defense
pleaded by defendants which it is not necessary to consider in view of
conclusions reached in the foregoing.

It i3 held herein that Matthew Parfenow has failed to show by a prepon-
derance of evidence that his existing disability arose out of his employ-
ment by the Harrison Engineering & Construction Company,

The arbitration decision is therefore reversed.

Dated at Des Moines this 14th day of October, 1929,

A. B, FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner,
No appeal,

COMPENSATION RIGHTS OF WIDOW AS AGAINST ALLEGED CHILD
Christina A, Schneberger, Claimant,

Vs,
Wright Construction Company, Employer,
Fidelity & Casualty Company, of New York, Insurance Carrier, Defendants,
Lenora Schneberger, by her next friend, Ruby Kaufman, Intervenor,
Halligan, Fountain & Stewart, for Claimant;
B, 0, Mont ry, for Defendants

. Arbitration and Review

Robert Schneberger sustained injury in the employ of this defendant,
September 5, 1929, which resulted fatally four days later.

Because of conflicting reports relative to legal dependency, the insurer
hereln declines to make payment upon obligation admitted until the
actual legal beneficiary can be identified by the Industrial Commissioner.

Accordingly a petition for arbitration was filed by Christina Schne-
berger, as the alleged spouse of Robert Schneberger, October 23, 1920,

October 30, 1929, there was filed a petition of intervention on the part
of Lenora Schneberger, by her next friend, Ruby Kaufman, alleging that
the sald petitioner, as the natural daughter of Robert Schneberger, Is
entitled to award as legal dependent of the d d workman,
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Upon these petitions hearing in arbitration and review was held at the
department, November 13, 1929, before the Industrial Commissioner.

At this hearing Christina Schneberger introduced in evidence a license
to marry and a certificate of marriage with Robert Schneberger May 14,
1925. Having been divorced from her former husband less than a year
previous to the date of this marriage, she also introduced a permit to
marry within the year In due and legal form. She testifies that she and
Robert Schneberger were living as man and wife at the time of his fatal
Injury and no showing is made to the contrary.

Ruby Kaufman testifies that the intervenor was born to her by Robert
Schuneberger in November of 1918, three months after her marriage to
one Glen Smith with whom she continued to live until the following
March when divorce was granted. In April of 1921, she married Thomas
Green, with whom she lived until divorced the latter part of 1922, Janu-
ary 24, 1923, she married the deceased workman with whom she lived a
year or so, divorce again occurring. The witness is now the wife of
one Kaufman, having a home in Chicago, Except during the time he
lived with her mother, Schneberger made no contribution to the support
of the intervenor.

Save and except the statements of this witness there is nothing in this
record to identify this intervenor as the daughter of Robert Schneberger,
Christina Schneberger testifies she heard her husband deny this paternity,
This is not very good evidence but quite as good as the affirmative
testimony of Mrs. Kaufman, in view of all the relations appearing herein,

The record does not justify the holding that Lenora Schuneberger, so
ealled, is the daughter of the deceased workman, and it is not so held,

It may confidently be held, however, in accordance with Iowa supreme
court opinions in Hoover vs. Central Iowa Fuel Company, 176 N. W. 945
and Robinson vs, Eaves, 210 N. W. 578, that if it were established that
this relation of father and daughter did exist as alleged, this intervenor
has not now and cannot have any legal claim as the dependent of Robert
Schneberger.

The record plainly shows that as the legal wife of Robert Schneberger
at the time of his death, Christina Schneberger is his sole dependent,
and is therefore entitled to maximum beneflis in such cases provided by
statute,

Dated at Des Moines, this 21st day of November, 1929.

" A. B, FUNK.
Towa Industrial € issioner,

No appeal,

CANCER FOUND NOT TO BE DUE TO COMPENSABLE INJURY

Carl Malmoed, Claimant,
Ve,
Sheuerman Bros., Ine, Employers,
Fidelity & Casualty Company of New York, Insurance Carrier, Defendants,
Sam Abrahamson, for Claimant;
B. 0. Montzomery, for Defendants,
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In Review

Award was denied in arbitration April 9, 1928,

On the part of claimant it is alleged that in the year 1927 several
injuries were sustained in working a pressing machine for the defendant
employer, developing sarcoma on his right leg resulting in amputation,

This record is largely devoted to the purpose of establishing contention
that cancer may have and frequently has origin in trauma. Argument
i liberally exercised and citation is submitted in support of this con-
tention, There is little of welght that may be said in opposition to a
theory so well established in experience. If Carl Malmoed has made it
clear in this record that at any particular day and hour he has sustained
definite injury at the site of this cancer development, with reasonable
certainty that important dates as to injury and development are con-
sistently co-related, there was error in arbitration,

In order to establish compensation obligation it is necessary to show
conclusively that injury arose out of employment, not merely in a general
way, but that it had its origin in some speecific incident of employment,
oceurring at a definite date and in a particular manner. Further it must
be shown affirmatively that the employer within a period of ninety days
had actual knowledge of such injury. These conditions are fundamental
and controlling.

Now a8 to such actual knowledge in this case: Claimant testifies he
told his foreman “a couple of weeks” after he got hurt. The foreman,
Nathan Erman, says he first knew claimant had some trouble with his
log “around June or July.! Don't remember exactly #s to the month.
Saw him limping. Had a bunch on his leg. Don't think he ever said
anything about injury or acecident. First knew about his making a
claim for injury about three or four weeks before he quit work in the
latter part of November, 1927,

In cross examination the foreman says claimant may have told him
put he does not remember it, Upon this dubious situation connsel Insists
that statutory demand as to actual knowledge has been met,

Now a8 to proof of Injury: The original petition alleges injury “during
the latter part of the month of June” anid a simflar Injury at the same
place on the leg “the latter part of October.” This statement is amended
in supplemental filing by alleging as the date of a first injury to be “the
latter part of the month of March™ Dates are loosely fixed by months
or weeks rather by days as required in substantial case history,

There is no corroboration either as direct or circumstantial evidence
tending to support injury at any of these dates except on the part of the
wife of claimant,

The evidence of claimant as to dates and circumstances is shifty, con-
tradictory and generally unconvincing. In gpeaking for the Towa court
in a compensation case, Judge Weaver once announced that award may
be justified to a claimant with little of corroboration because “his testi-
mony may be so candid and so inherently probable as to command the
confidence of a fair-minded court” In this case the testimony of the
claimant is neither “candid” nor “inherently probable.”
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Upon full consideration of this entire record it is necessary t¢ hold
that

1. The employer was without actual knowledge of injury as alleged
within statutory limitation.

2, Claimant has failed to meet the burden of proving that his djs-
ability due to sarcoma was caused by any accident or incident of em-
ployment.

The arbitration decision is affirmed.

Dated at Des Moines this 23rd day of December, 1929,

A. B, FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner,
No. appeal.

MARRIAGE COMPLICATIONS WITH TWO CLAIMANTS

Maude Saulner, Obeline Williams Saulnier, Claimants,
vs,
Interstate Power Company, Employer,
Fidelity & Casualty Company of New York, Insurance Carrier, Defendants,
R. E. Johnson, Treasurer of the State of lowa, Intervenor,
Kimball, Peterson, Smith & Peterson, for Claimant, Maude Saulner;
Royal & Royal, for Claimant, Obeline Williams Saulnier;
B. 0. Montgomery, for Defendants;
John Fletcher, Attorney General, for Intervenor.

In Arbitration and Review

August 7, 1928, Joseph Saulner, sustained fatal injury in the employ
of the Interstate Power Company.

February 2, 1929, action was brought by Maude Saulner, claiming de
pendency as the widow of the deceased workman,

February 27, 1928, petition for arbitration was filed by Obeline Williams
Saulnier, alleging dependency as the widow of Joseph Saulner

December 20, 1929, John Fletcher, Attorney General, by C. J. Stevens,
Assistant, filed petition of intervention for R. E. Johnson, as Treasurer
of the State of Iowa, to protect any interest the state might have in the
determination of this case under the provisions of sub-section 6 of section
1292 of the code of Iowa.

On the 20th day of December, 1929, petition for arbitration in the
interest of Obeline Williams Saulnier was filed by Royal & Royal, acting
as attorneys under the authority of the Consul General of the Kingdom
of Great Britain, with official residence at Chicago, Illinois.

Hearing in arbitration and review was held before the Industrial Com-
missioner, December 27, 1929, appearances being made by counsel for
each of the parties who had filed claims as the surviving widow of Joseph
Saulner; also by the defense.

Exhibit A, of record, is stipulation as to the jurisdiction and place of
hearing.

Exhibit B, is stipulation as to facts relating to the death under com-
pensable circumstances of Joseph Saulner, also as to wages of the de-
ceased, showing agreement that if the same were commuted on the basis
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of total dependency the obligation of the insurer would be fixed at
$3,100.00.

The plaintiff, Maude Saulner, offered in evidence Exhibit C, being the
depositions of J. Q. Ingram, S. D. Thornton, Jr., Charles Carpenter, Myrtle
Bolk, G. A. Binkerd, testifying to the marriage of Joseph Saulner and
Maude Lillie Parnke in due, legal and orderly form and to the fact of
their living in consistent relationship as man and wife from the date
of said marriage until the death of the husband. Furthermore, that dur-
ing this period no impression was ever known to have existed in the
community as to the irregularity of this union. Said exhibit also in-
eludes certified copies of the marriage license of Joseph Saulner and Miss
Maude Lillie Parnke, same being dated February 17, 1923, and issued in
Neligh, Antelope county, Nebraska, sald copy containing the certificate
of James E. Jones, Minister of the Gospel, to the effect that he joined
these parties in the bonds of wedlock on the date of the issuance of the
said marriage license.

The following statement was dictated into the record:

“The record should show that Obeline Williams Saulnier offers no
evidence in support of her claim, and that R. E. Johnson, as Treasurer
of State, offers no evidence in support of his petition of intervention.”

On this entire record it is held that Maude Saulner is entitled to full
dependency as the widow of the deceased Joseph Saulner, which the
insurer, the Fidelity & Casualty Company of New York, is ordered to
pay on a commuted basis in the sum of $3,100.00 as stipulated, presenta-
tion to the district court having been duly waived herein,

Dated at Des Moines this 31st day of December, 1929,

A. B, PUNK,
Imwa Industrial Commissioner,
No appeal.

ELECTRIC SHOCK NOT SHOWN AS CAUSE OF DISABILITY

M. Martyn, Claimant,
V8,
Des Moines Electric Company, Defendant.
H. 8. Life, for Claimant;
Bradshaw, Schenk & Fowler, Rex Fowler appearing, for Defendants.

In Review

Claimant appeals from denial of award in arbitration decision filed
September 7, 1929.

At the date of injury, July 23, 1923, M. Martyn was construction fore-
man in the employ of the defendant. While working on a power feed
line out of Oskaloosa he received a shock from an electric current of
2,300 volts. Claimant testifies he sustained burns on his hands and arms
and that he lost two toe nails. Record made to show that swelling first
appeared six months after the accident. Witness says he suffered from
eruptions on arm and heart trouble developed. Testifies he was never
afterwards able to perform physical labor, Always in good health previ-
ous to acecldent.



5o REPORT OF INDUSTRIAL COMMISSIONER

At the time of injury and until in October following, Dr. R. M. Gilley
was the company physician, He then moved away and his partner and
brother, ¥, A. Gillett took over the work. The latter testifies as to the
condition of claimant after the injury that he observed burns with his
brother. Did not at that time make physical examination. When he
took the company work claimant came to him for what seemed to be boils
on bhoth hands. Made no examination of heart until about three years
later. Preseribed general tonfes in spring of 1924. In talking over the
casé with his brother heart trouble was never mentioned. Made heart
examination in 1926, Found double heart murmur. Heart had compensa
tion and the workman was on job and seemed to be doing all right,
Makes denfal of testimony of claimant as to professional statements he
fs sald to have made. Says he has no recollection that Martyn made
mention to him of heart trouble or of swelling limbs.

Dr. Fred Jarvis testifies he was for years the Martyn family doctor
Within a year or so after the elecirical shock “noticed the man had
pulsating carotids.” Never examined him until in January 1928, when
he operated him for a very bad hernia. Found greatly enlarged heart
with several valves involved. Used anesthetic and patient eame through
nicely. Refore this time had noticed atrophy of the biceps. Never gave
it special thought but left arm was much smaller than the right. Witness
positive existing disability due to injury of July, 1923,

Dr. W. L. Blerring, testifies to the bellef that the ultimate physiecal
disaster connects with the Injury as alleged.

Dr. John M. Peck, heart speclalist of Des Molnes, Is of the opinion that
no such connectlon can be selentifically established.

Called by the defense Dr. F. A. Gillett expressed the opinion that the
electrical Ineident of 1923 18 not responsible for present condition of
claimant. Believes effect would have come sooner from this source

Introduced at the review hearing Dr, F. E. Vance, of Eddyville, testifies
that in the year 1920, he treated clalmant for bronchial trouble and in
general examination he found the heart perfectly normal.

Exhibit A herein is the report of Dr. R. M. Gillett advising that M
Martyn, injured July 23, 1923, was able to resume light work July 25,
1923, and regular work soon,

Exhibit B is report of this doctor to the same effect giving more de-
tails as to incident of Injury.

Exhibit C is a report of Dr. F. A. Gillett, based on examination of M.
Martyn February 22, 1926. In this report the doctor unqualifiedly
recommends claimant for service as lineman with this note “heart ex-
cepted, but 0. K. yet."

Exhibit D is report of Dr. M. Childress of Oskaloosa, hased upon ex-
amination of June 10, 1914. In arbitration the doctor testifies in in-
terpretatfon of this report that he found at that time some valvular
defect with well pronounced compensation. The heart was larger than
normal. Thinks existing condition would likely result without interven:
Ing electrical shock. Does not think present condition due to shock. I8
not of the opinfon that such shock accentuated heart involvement. Has
never “seen an organic heart trouble made worse or excited by an elec

T
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trical shock.” If shock ever affected the heart “it would have been notice-
able in a few days afterwards.”

Upon this record it becomes necessary to determine as to whether or
not the deplorable condition of the workman at the date of arbitration
was due to electrical shock of July 23, 1923, six years previous.

At the time of the electrical exposure claimant was taken to the office
of the Doctors Gillett. After treatment he says he walked from the
doctors’ office to his home, States he remained at home “that afternoon
and the next day.” He returned to work, working continuously in his
usual capacity as line foreman until he quit this engagement in the spring
of 1926. He was then employed by the Towa Southern Utilities Company
and later by the Marshall Electric Company, these engagements being
practically continuous, as claimant testifies until in May of 1928, when
he says he was off until September, 1928, on account of sickness. Re-
turning he worked for the Marshall Company until in May or June of
1929. Has not worked since,

Testimony of the workman shows that he was able to perform his usual
services continually from the second day following his shock until near
the middle of 1928, a period of five years. There is little support for his
testimony that he was at all serfously indisposed during these yeurs,

Dr. Jarvis was the family physiclan before and through this interven-
ing period. He says that within a year or two after the injury while
attending other members of the family, he ohserved evidence of heart
trouble and other untoward physical tendency. He never examined him
for any purpose, however, until in January of 1928, when it became neces-
sary to operate him for hernia. Then he discovered serious heart com-
plications. It seems strange that a family physician with the responsi-
bility of family dlagnosis and treatment should have for a period of three
or four years noticed symptoms of serious heart trouble of the head of
the family without giving him any professional attention whatever, and
then only because hernia operation was imminent.

Experience shows that electrical current works curlous results In fts
contact with the physieal structure. Men are killed by what geems
ridiculously low voltage while other men seem miraculously to resist
very high pressure. What seems most certain however, is that the re-
moreless current usually does no half way work., Its victims with rare
exception meet instant death or survive with little of physical fmpair-
ment. It would be difficult, if not impossible, to find an instance where
electricity has slowly sapped human vitality for a perlod of five or six
years; then to complete the final collapse of fts victim.

A rare case of comparatively prolonged physical devastation coming
before the department was that of Fred L. Springle. August 25, 1923, he
Sustained shock from voltage to the extreme limit of 16,500 volts. He
died seventeen months later. In this case award was made for the
Teason that the exposure was so remarkable and that an able-bodied man
had steadily declined with distinct heart involvment from the time of
injury until his death. There is almost no similarity hetween this record
and that in the Sprinkle case. No appeal was taken from department
award, (Commissioner's Report 1926, page 48.)
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On the 30th day of October, 1918, Charles Flint, in the employ of the
City of Eldon, was felled to the earth by an electrical shock. He re
turned to service four days later. Action was brought to recover on this
injury as the cause of death occurring February 3, 1919. Award was
denfed on the ground that the claimant widow failed to discharge the
burden of proving connection between injury and death. Carried to the
supreme court this decision was affirmed without dissent. (Commie
sioner's Report 1920, page 40; 183 N. W. 344.)

Claimant testifies he was unable to do strenuous work after his elec
trical shock. His work was that of a line foreman, in which he was
overseer rather than laborer. Says he had as many as 80 men under
him in the employ of the Marshall Company long after his injury. He
had full earning power from July 23, 1923, for four or five years

The record falls to show at all conclusively that the collapse of this
workman in 1929 was due to the electrical shock of 1923. It would
require the exercise of strong conjecture and ingenious surmise s0 to con
clude, Corroboration Is vague and the vital element of inherent proba-
bility is wanting.

The arbitration decision denying award s affirmed.

Dated at Des Moines this 24th day of January, 1930.

A, B. FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner,
Commisgsioner affirmed District Court; pending.

VIOLATION OF RULES DEFEATS COMPENSATION

C. W, Enfield, Claimant,
V8,
Certain-Teed Products Corporation, Employer,
American Mutual Liabllity Insurance Co. Insurance Carrier, Defendants.
John E. Mulroney, for Claimant;
Havner, Flick, Huebner & Powers, for Defendants.

In Review

Claimant was in the employ of this defendant in the capacity of chiel
engineer. April 23, 1929, he was engaged in moving an electric motor
from the first to the second floor of an employment building. He stales
that he placed the motor on a truck, conveyed it to a hoist in the central
part of the building and with his helper he entered the elevator and
started upward. In stopping at the second floor his right hand came in
contact with the hoisting cable which carried it around a wheel and in
this incident he sustained serious finger and hand injury.

On the part of the defendants compensation obligation is denied on the
ground that disability existing did not arise out of and in the course of
employment, for the reason that the elevator in question was intended
for use in the transfer of material and equipment only, and that for
some time previous to the Injury all persons had beem prohibited from
riding the same,

Award was denled in arbitration June 18, 1929.

The record shows that placdrds conspicuously posted had warned all
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from riding on this elevator. C. W, Enfield testifies in this
connection; (tr. 18-19)

“Q. You knew you were not supposed to ride it?

A. Yes. Fact of the matter is, not to joy ride on them.

Q. Isn't this troe none. of the men ever did ride that elevator?

A. [ couldn’t say.

Q. You don't know of any men riding the elevator?

A. Couldn't say whether they did or not.

Q. You don't know any men ever riding the elevator? You don't know
any men riding that elevator with the knowledge or consent of the Com-
pany do you?

A. 1do not.

Q. Who was your superior officer?

A. Fisher.

Q. He was superintendent?

A. Yes, sir,

. Was he the man to whom you were accountable, the man who
would give you your orders?

A. Yes, sir,

Q. lIsn't it a fact that he was the only man had the anthority to glve
you orders?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And he didn't know that yon rode this elevator did he before the
aceident?

A. No, sir. 1 haven't never ridden it except once.

Q. He didn’t know you rode it on this oceasion or at any other time?

A. Not until after I was hurt,

Q. And in fact none of the officers whether they had jurlsdietion over
you or not, or any foreman, knew that you had ever ridden this elevator
or that you rode it on this oceagion until after the aceident?

A, Tdon't think so.

Q. Now had you put that truck on and not accompanied it up, just
assume you had gone that way, in that event how would you start the
elevator?

A. Stood to one slde and pulled the eord.

Q. It would have started on up and when it got to the second floor
would have stopped auntomatically would it?

A. Yen, sir,

Q. Had yon gone up the stairway by the time you got there the
elevator would have been there?

A. Yes, sir,

Q. Then all yon would have had to do was to unhook two chaing and
take off the truck? There wouldn't have been any chance to have got
Injured if that process had been followed?

A. Possibly not.”

In the endeavor to justify his violation of the prohibitory rule, claimant
says his purpose in riding on the elevator was to save time and further
fo support the motor in transfer on the truck. We quote from his testi-
mony; (tr. page 16)

“Q. Why couldn’t three of you put that generator back in the middle
or back far enough from the wheels so that it wouldn't tip up?

A. Couldn't seem to get it firm enough.

Q. You mean to tell the Board youn conldn’t do that?

A. We tried to shift it to a firmer location on the truck.

Q. When you had it loaded yon want to tell the Board here it wonld
still tip?

A. It had a tendency to be heavy on the front.

Q. Could have chained or wired down the handles? Conld have dona
that? Wired it to the elevator? Could have done that couldn't you?

A. Possibly, I suppose if we wanted to go to all that hother,
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Q. Disregarding Inconvenience or how much bother, it could be done
couldn’t it?

A. Yes'

John W. Clark, foreman of the packing and shipping department for

the past fifteen years testifies; (see Tr. page 28)

“Q. You know about this elevator they have there in the plant that
takes—that holsts from one floor to the other, your men use that to
send up materfals?

A. Raw materials.
Q. Now in all the time you have been connectzd with this plant,

have you known of anybody outside of this one incident where this o
jury occurred—of anyone of the employvees or anybody else using that
elevator to transport themselves up or down?

A. Just one man.

Q. Tell us about that?

A. Don't recall who he was now. When they first installed that
elevator.

Q. How long ago was that?

A. Don't remember how many years. Year of 1920-21 somewhers
around there,

Q. Tell about that.
A. This man got on. We had signs up there. Everybody had been

told not to ride, 1 came along seeing this man riding the elevator. |
stopped.  Brings him back down, and tells him to walk up; take the
stalrway.

Q. Now If this man had persisted what would you have done?

A. Chances are he would have got a time check.

Q. What do you mean by that?

A. Discharged.

Q. So as | understand it, all the time you have been connected with
this the rule prohibited the men or anybody else from riding on this
elevator has heen rigldly enforced?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long have been working at that mill?

A. About 156 years,

Q. At this same job?

A. Yes, gir,

Q. Have you ever seen any machinery brought upstairs?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Ever use that elevator for machinery?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Know of them taking an electric motor?

A. Yes, they have moved a motor, taken it up and brought them
down."

That compensable injury must arise out of and in the course of the
employment is fundamental. Injury arising out of but not in the course
of employment cannot qualify for coverage. Injury in the course of but
not arising out of employment Is barred. Neither qualification is avalling
without its conjunctional constituent.

In Christensen vs. Hauff Brothers, 193 Towa 1,084, we find this concise
definition:

“An accident arlses in the course of the employment if it occurs whil¢
the employee Is doing what a man so employed may reasonably do within
a time during which he is employed, and at a place where he may reasot
ably be during that time.”

In a number of lowa cases this rule is stated without shadow of change
fn meaning and in practically the same language.

In Fournier vs. Androscoggin, 113 Atl, 270, is found interpretation b¥
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the supreme court of Maine, broad and distinet and in more of detail:

“If, then, the employee is in a place where he is prohibit

by positive orders of his employer by reason of mepdnngeir.p?:rf:;:: P::::
a certain course in going from one place to another which he is pro-
hibited from taking by his employer for the same reason, notwithstanding
it Is within the period of his employment, and his purpose in going to the
other place is to perform some of his duties he is engaged to perform,
he cannot be saild, while in the forbidden route or means, to be aclin£
in m; ('nurl":(' of hli: vjmnlo)‘menl‘. within the meaning of the Compensa-
tion Act, because he is not in a place where 7

performance of any of his duties.” e Keoreamils war be Jn

It fs commonly understood to be the right of the employer to pre
scribe rules and regulations directing and governing details of em-
ployment. It is as well understood to be the duty of employees to meet
all reasonable requirements in this connection. It is entirely consistent
with employment relationship to warn workmen against the pecullar perils
thereof and to issue orders prohibiting said practices, which menace life
or limb. The exercise of this prerogative is even more important to the
workman than to the employer as the latter can better stand the loss
of any expenses created by accident than the former can assume any
burden created by Industrial accident.

It is commonly held that when such orders are issued and consistently
observed or enforced, workmen violate the same at their own peril.

The claimant frankly admits that he had observed the warning pla-
cards, that he knew it was against the rules to ride this elevator; that
he had not known of any violation on the part of any other workmen, He
cannot justify his arbitrary conduct in the violation of orders consistently
enforeed by giving as a reason his desire to save time. Tt is evident that
the saving of time by riding instead of going up the stairs was com-
paratively slight. He cannot make reasonable his violation of the rule
by the statement that it seemed necessary that someone should accompany
the motor to keep it in place. He admits that the motor could have been
made secure on the truck, “if we wanted to go to all that bother.” But
even If saving of the time had been much greater and the requirement as
to hand steadying had been much more important, the claimant had no
right to violate reasonable orders for the promotion of safety. Such time
a5 might have been lost by the stairway route and any risk to the safe
transit of the motor was at the expense of the employer, who willingly
assumed the same in issuing the safety order,

The record tends to show in the testimony of the claimant and of a
plant foreman that the order forbidding riding on the hoist was with
understanding and approval on the part of the plant workmen and that
& committee of such workmen posted the warning placards.

In view of this record it must be held that in conspicuously violating
the rule well observed for yvears prohibiting all persons from riding on
the elevator on which he was injured, claimant was not in the course
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of his employment and therefore his claim for compensation must be
denied.
The arbitration decision is affirmed.
Dated at Des Moines this 20th day of January, 1930,
A. B, FUNK,
lowa Industrial Commissioner,
Commissioner reversed Disirict Court; pending on appeal.

FINGER INJURY INDIRECT CAUSE OF DEATH

A. C. Bye, Claimant,

V8,
Nevada Poultry Company, Employer,
Hartford Accident & Indemnity Co,, Insurance Carrier, Defendants,
Welty, Soper & Welty, Lee, Steinberg & Walsh, for Claimant;
Thomas M. Healy, for Defendants.

In Review

In the employ of the defendant Poultry Company Carl Bye sustained
finger injury October 28, 1927. Alleging that his death December 22, 1927,
is due to this Injury, A. C. Bye, father of the deceased, brings this action
for recovery of dependency.

Defendants deny that the finger injury of October 28, 1927, has any re
lation whatever to the death of Carl Bye December 22, 1927; also that
A. C. Dye was to any extent dependent on the earnings of his deceased
son for support within the meaning of the compensation statute,

The record indicales that the injury was due to finger wound caused
by a wire projecting from a battery or crate used in the poultry business,
which the deceased was moving about on the premises of the employer.
He kept on working until the 16th day of December, 1927, when his
physical condition was such as to retire him from active duty, death en-
suing six days later from proximate cause diagnosed as retro orbital
abscess,

A mass of testimony submitted in arbitration and in review Is care
fully weighed In the endeavor to reach sound conclusion as to whether or
not this death arose out of employment. The arbitration decision hold-
ing for the defense was not without support in the arbitration record, as
it was carried in the mind of the sitting commissicner. In this situs-
tion it was impossible to follow case history as it may be better under-
stood by scrutiny of the printed pages of the transcript available on
appeal. Furthermore, evidence presented at the review hearing tends
substantially to reinforce the arbitration record in favor of claimant.

Case history as follows seems fairly well established.

The finger wound was not sueh as to suggest serious consequence. It
is shown that the workman kept steadily at his job for a period of some
seven weeks. This bald statement is slgnificant of failure in prool. A
lot of case history, however, is made by the record. While there is some
conflict in the statements of witnesses, the weight of evidence tends fo
support this conclusion:

After several weeks the wound gave evidence of outward healing
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though two fingers and indeed the whole hand was swollen more or less
even to the date of death. Only one dressing by a physician is reported,
put & local druggist, Ralph Tipton, appears as a reliable witness with
the statement that he dressed the wound a number of times, At these
times says this witness, the hand was swollen and discolored. Was
pandaged at least four weeks after injury. Carl complained of feeling
rotten and was evidently a sick man. The testimony of at least half a
dozen witnesses is to the general effect that during the period intervening
petween October 28th and December 16th there was a marked change
in Carl Bye in weight, appearance, appetite, temperament, in shattered
perves and low fever and In evident working capacity.

Hypothetical inquiry based on indications related was submitted to
John F. Moore, head physician, at the Iowa Sanitorium and Hospital at
Nevada, to Dr. H. W. Bowers of Nevada, and to Drs. €. W. Harned and
Ralph Parker, of Des Moines, the two latter being rather eminent in eye,
ear, nose and throat specialties,

All these physicians strongly support the contention of claimant that
through the wounded finger Infection entered the blood stream resulting
in localized abscess back of the eyve which became the proximate cause
of death. Admitting the possibility of other vital eauses, since no evi-
dence was submitted affording support to this possibility, it was assumed
that the controlling factor in this fatal case was the finger wound.

The scientific theory as to cause and effect In this case is concisely
stated by Dr, Parker. (Review Tr, page 61.) Asked: * & ¢ & ‘ghat
in your opinion is the most probable cause of his death.” The reply was:

“1 think the conclusion that | would reach is just a8 [ stated that an
infection in the fingers got Into the blood stream, probably irritating or
setting up a myocarditis, which means an uleeration of the vaives, of the
heart muscle, that flowed off from that through the blood stream, lodged
in the large vein back of the eye known as the cavernous sinus, forming
an abscess in it, produced these eye symptoms, ran into the meninges and
caused his death.”

In support of their own ecnse defendants emphasize the faet that the
deceased worked right along for some six weeks after his injury. The
record Indicates that he was a nervy sort of a young man, not given to
complaining and that he repeatedly said he felt he must hold his job to
help the family as his father was out of work. The doctors testify that
this continuity of employment does not disturb their opinion that during
the period he was working the infection was poisoning the blood stream
and tending to fatality.

Not without semblance of consistency defendants point accusingly at
the delay in calling for compensation benefits. This fuct would be most
significant but for the baffling situation as to cause and effect. Casual
conslderation of existing conditions was not reassuring. The compara-
tively slight finger injury, continuity of subsequent service, fatal develop-
ment at a point remote from the site of finger injury are not convincing
In superficial review. It Is not at all strange that there should have
been tardy indulgence of liope of recovery.

The burden was on the clalmant, of course, to establish successful
tonnection between the Injury and the fatal head trouble. When the
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requirement of inherent probability was met, however, it was to a degree
incumbent upon the defense to submit some plausible affirmative theory
that might tend conceivably to suggest some other cause of cumulatiye
ailment and of final fatality. In the absence of any such submission the
claimant's case {8 made by a preponderance of the evidence,

In Honnold on workmen’s compensation on page 464 there appears legal
interpretation giving definite support to award in this case.

“By a ‘preponderance of the evidence' is meant such evidence as, when
welghed with that opposed to it, has more convincing force and from
which it results that the greater probability is in favor of the party ¢a
whom the burden rests, * * * Evidence conclusively showing an in
jury adequately accounted for by acts of the workman in the course of
his employment Is not overcome by the fact that the injury might by
some possibility have resulted from some other cause not shown to
exist, In such case the issue must be determined in the light of the
greater lkelihood.”

As usual In cases of dependency on a contributive basis this situation
Is perplexing as to the measure of support supplied.

If it were held to be necessary to submit vouchers and other doeu-
mentary evidence of contribution, recovery would be rare and then In
very limited amounts, Equity demands, however, that conclusion shall
be founded upon evidence of support, taking into consideration all fuets
and elreumstances appearing in the record tending to establish inherent
probability as to the measure of contribution made,

The record does not tend to confirm the argument of claimant that
Carl Bye spent hls own money and was quite a spender at that. He
dressed evidently with very moderate expenditure and no statement
appears Indleating free apending. Deceased may not have personally and
directly paid meat or bread bills, but it is shown that his wages were
drawn by his father for family use and that family living accounts were
paid by his earnings. It plainly appears that Carl Bye had substantial
earnings as a laborer and nothing in the record tends to show that he
expended these earnings on himself while it does appear that he was dis
posed to be and actually was substantially helpful in family support.

In the exercise of the usual rules, after careful study of the record as
to support afforded, the conclusion is reached as appears below.

The arbitration declsion is reversed.

Finding as follows 1s made:

1. That the death of Carl Bye December 22, 1927, was due to his in-
Jury as arising out of employment October 28, 1927.

2. That dependency award to this claimant for loss of support is fixed
at the sum of $5.00 a week.

Defendants are therefore ordered to make this weekly payment for &
period of 300 weeks; also to meet statutory medical and burial charges,
and to pay all costs of litigation,

Dated at Des Molines this 11th day of March, 1930.

A. B. FUNK,
Iowa Industrial Commissioner.
Aftirmed District Court; settled,
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FINGER LOSS BY AMPUTATION—MEASURE OF DISABILITY

George Bedian, Claimant,
Vs,
Bettendorf Company, Defendants.
E C. Willig, for Claimant;
Cook & Balluff, for Defendants.

In Review

This case was submitted in arbitration at Davenport, May 14, 1930, upon
stipulation of facts, and comes to the commissioner tgr review without
formal hearing.

It is stipulated that the workman sustained injury to the index finger
of his left hand resulting in the loss of one-half of the distal phalange;
that payment has been made to the claimant in the sum of $11.04 a week
for a period of seven and one-half weeks.

Defendants claim this payment constitutes full statutory value of the
portion of the member lost.

Clalmant contends that the loss of said one-half phalange creales
liability on the part of the employer to the extent of half finger value,
requiring fifteen weeks of payment.

The Towa statute declares that for the loss of one phalange of a finger
payment ghall be made for full half finger value.

The question in controversy is as to what constitutes in a statutory
sense the loss of the first or distal phalange,

Section 1396 of the Code provides terms of settlement for a wide range
of permanent partial disabilities. In order to make general provision
for disability not practical to include in this definite list sub-section 20
of said section provides:

“In all other cases of permanent partial disability, the compensation
shall bear such relation to the periods of compensation stated in the
above schedule as the disability bears to those produced by the injuries
named in the scheduole”

Now if an Index finger is valued at thirty weeks of payment, what rule
shall apply as to phalange loss? It has been absolutely established by
the lowa supreme court in Starcevich vs. Central Iowa Fuel Company,
226 N. W. 138, that the loss of any portion of the second phalange calls
for payment in full finger value.

This decislon definitely supports the assumption that in the settlement
for finger loss adjustment is not to be made on the basis of linear meas-
urement. The distal joint of the first finger is about an inch in length.
Had this workman lost, say, an additional one-half inch he would without
shadow of question be entitled to thirty weeks of payment. Obviously
the additional half remaining is for the less valuable portion of the
phalange in question. The end of the finger contains the sensory nerve,
vital to the sense of feeling so important in finger function, and the loss
of the terminal one-half of the distal phalange substantlally affects the
function of grasping or gripping. The workman is given a stump finger
decidedly impaired in usefulness having lost the more valuable portion
of the member,
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This injury classifies among “other cases of permanent partial dls.
ability’” and “the relation it bears to those produced by the injuries
named in the schedule” must be considered. Comparison in such cases
can be made only with schedule values kindred in nature. Where it is
absolutely established that the loss of an additional one-half inch far
less important in function to the loss he sustained would have required
thirty weekly payments, is it possible the law will give him only one
fourth the amount due for little more than full phalange loss?

Because of the amount involved comparatively few cases have gzone to
{he courts based upon finger phalange value. Compensation authorities
have usually held sthat the loss of any substantial portion of the bone of
the first phalange calls for half finger payment. In cases of very little
loss of bone the courts have in some cases reversed these holdings, 1t
will be very difficult if possible at all to find any case in which any court
has held for less than one-half finger loss where the amputation of one
half the distal phalange has ocenrred as stipulated in this instance,

The decision Tn re Petrie, 151 New York Supplement 207 was probably
the first to be recorded in this country dealing with this question. The
ruling of the court upon a statute like our own is exceedingly convineing
and peculiarly pertinent in this connection. Quoting:

“To get the true spirit of the act, we have only to read the ‘phalange’
clanse in full, where, after providing that the loss of the first phalange
shall ‘be considered to be equal to the loss of one-half such thumb or
finger,’ it continnes: “I'he loss of more than one phalange shall be con-
sidered as the loss of the entire thumb or finger,' ete. That is, the loss
of any part of the second phalange, however slight or immaterial, shall
be conetrued as the loss of the entire finger. Ohviously the taking of
one-half of the second phalange of a finger would not result in the relative
logs that the taking of the first half of the first phalange would. After
the first phalange is gone, what remains of the second, be it greater or
less, is comparatively unimportant, yet the statute clearly and unmll:
takably provides that, where the loss involves ‘more than one phalange,
the loss of the whole finger shall be held to have resulted. This, it
seems to us, is a legislative construction upon the clause here under
consideration. The substantial injury of the first phalange, requiring
amputation is understood as to he as involving the loss of one-half of
the finger, and, if the injury extends heyond the first phalange, then it
is to be construed as involving the entire finger. No intelligent reason
we belfeve, can he suggested why the legislature. should provide that the
loss of any part of the second phalange should result in an award for
the full value of the finger, while a like substantial injury to the first
phalange should not earry an award for one-half of the finger, where the
statute has attempted to provide the standard by which the compensa:
tion should be awarded, and has provided for an award in the case of
one-half the loss of the finger, in connection with a provision for an
award for the full loss.”

H. K. Toy & Novelty Company vs. Richards, 117 N. BE. 266.

Clalmant lost by severance one-eighth of an inch of the first joint of the
finger and the industrial board awarded compensation for a period of
fitteen weeks under a “statute providing for the loss by separation of not
more than one phalange of a thumh or not more than two phalanges of
a finger * * * fifteen weeks”

In affirming the board holding the court says:

“While the loss by separation of only one-eighth of an inch in length
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of the distal phalange of a finger may appear to be a small fraction
thereof, it should be remembered that the loss by separation of any por-
tion in length of such phalange necessarily removes the muscular cushion
on the end thereof, and thereby seriously interferes with the use of such
finger. This fact may have had its influence with the legislature in
wording the clause under consideration in such manner as to give 15
weeks' compensation ‘for the loss by separation of not more than * * *
two phalanges of a finger.'

“(2) The fact that the function of appellee's finger is not seriously
impaired, if it be a fact, and that she was able to return to work within
a short time after the injury, can have no influence on our interpreta-
tion of the statute in question. Its provisions may appear ton liberal
in some instances, and not liberal enough in others: but with this the
Industrial Board and this court have nothing to do. The legislature in
jits wisdom did not see fit to limit compensation for 15 weeks Lo cases
where substantially two phalanges were lost by separation, or where the
function of the finger was serfously impaired, or the actual loss of time
was for any definite period; and neither the Industrial Board nor this
court has a right to read such provisions into the act. Appellant has
cited a number of cases in support of its contention, all of which we
have examined with care. Some of them are decisions under compensa-
tion acts, where the language is materially different from the act of this
state and none are in serious conflict with the conclusions we have
reached.” .

In these decisions the deductions of the courts are unanswerable. Noth-
ing in the books may be found in successful opposition to this reasoning
or to these conclusions.

Without any such support, however, substantial reliance is placed upon
the holding of the Towa court in interpreting the Towa statute as meaning
that the loss of any portion of the second finger phalange shall constitute
entire finger loss. This holding applied to sub-section 20 of section 1396
relating to permanent partial disabilities surely cannot mean that the
employer is meeting his obligation in full by payment for 7% weeks
when the taking of relatively an additional one-half inch absolutely creates
obligation for thirty weeks of payment.

The arbitration decision is affirmed.

Signed at Des Moines, Towa, this 11th day of June, 1930.

A. B, FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner,
Appeal pending.

LEG INJURY—EXTENT OF DISABILITY
Harry Mumey, Claimant,
V8.
Stephan Brothers, Employer,
Maryland Casualty Company, Insurance Carrler, Defendants.
O'Sullivan & Southard, A. J. Whalen appearing, for Claimant;

Tinley, Mitchell, Ross & Mitchell, J. Ralph Dykes appearing, for De-
fendants,

In Review

In the arbitration record appears the following:

“It is stipulated between the parties that the claimant, H. P. Mumey
¥as injured on or about July 3, 1926; that said injury arose out of and
B the course of his employment; that subsequent to said injury, claimant
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was paid compensation from July 17, 1926, to December 3, 1926, in the
amount of $14.40 a week, or a total of $316.80; that the sole question
to be determined in this hearing is the nature and extent of the dis.
ability, if any, of the claimant.”

Dr. John P. Rossie, chiropractor, testifies to permanent disability of
the left leg to the extent of seventy-five per cent more or less,

Dr. M. A, Tinley, of Council Bluffs, in extended examination at the
arbitration hearing insists that there was no permanent disability of the
injured member at the date of his examination in March, 1927, some
eight months after the aceldent. He testifies further that any painful
or other abnormal condition that might possibly have continued is due
to infected teeth appearing conspicuously in physical examination.

In deposition taken June 13, 1928, Dr. O. J. Fay, of Des Moines, testifies
that he examined claimant under direction of the Industrial Commissioner
October 28, 1927. His testimony based on this examination Is to the
effect that there is no permanent disability in the left leg, injured July
3, 1926,

The arbitration hearing resulted in an order

“To pay the claimant such additional compensation as will, with the
compensation payments previously made, make a total of fourteen dollars
and forty cents a week for forty weeks. Defendants are also ordered
to pay the costs of hearing.”

Both parties appealed but subsequently defendants withdrew notice of
appeal and made cash deposit covering the arbitration award,

The accident in question resulted in an ugly flesh wound, but no
bones were broken, and nothing in connection with the case would seem
to suggest disability beyond the ordinary healing period.

In view of these facts and a preponderance of medical evidence, the
claimant would seem to have been used with generosity when given forty
weeks' compensation for disability resulting from this accident, and this
record fails to support claim for further payment.

The arbitration decislon is affirmed.

Dated at Des Moines, Towa, this 28th day of September, 1928,

A, B. FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner.
Affirmed District Court; no further appeal.

DEATH OF MINER NOT DUE TO COMPENSABLE INJURY

Ida Wilson, Claimant,
VS,
Pershing Coal Company, Employer,
Bituminous Casualty Exchange, Insurance Carrier, Defendants.
Johnston & Shinn, for Claimant;
Havner, Flick, Huebner & Powers, for Defendants.

In Review
It is alleged by claimant that the death of her husband, Robert W.
Wilson, June 12, 1927, was due to injury sustained February 4, 1927, as
arising out of employment by these defendants.
The deceased was in the employ of the Pershing Coal Company as night
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foreman. As such he was in charge of operations in the night time in
the making of preparations for mining operations the day following.
Among his duties as foreman he was evidently subject to call from fellow
workmen in need of temporary assistance,

Called by the defense, Ike Powers testifies that he was in service of the
defendant coal company as bottom cage man. Early on the morning
of February 4, 1927, he had taken down the shaft timbers for use below.
Asked what happened in this comnection, Brooks states:

“These ‘timbers come down on the cage standing on end, if they are
large we have help. This was a blg collar. 1 took hold of it. It was
too heavy. Mr. Wilson got ahold of it and when he started to lift he said,
‘Ike, there has something happened,’ and went down and sat on the
bumper of & car.”

Defendants contend that “if Robert W, Wilson sustained an injury as

averred in claimant’s petition and amendment thereto, the defendant
denies that sald injury caused or contributed to the death of the said
R. W. Wilson."

In order to decide as to the merits of this claim it is necessary care-
fully to inquire into eircumstances and conditions developed in arbitra.
tion.

Ike Brooks is the only living man who knows from personal knowledge
anything about what happened at the time of the alleged injury, All
through his testimony he adheres to his original statement that the
deceased had “started to 1ift" when he gave up, saying something had
happened. Don't remember whether or not “he got his end off the
ground.” He says the timbers to be moved from cage are 12 Lo 14 inches
at butt end and 12 feet long. Usually he did this lifting himself but
when an unusually large timber was to be moved he called for help. On
this occasion he had found one such. After lifting it over an up-right
projection four or five inches In height and setting the lower end down
without the cage, he then called on Wilson to help him carry it to one
side. Says he had frequently lifted timbers as leavy as this alone, and
indicates that it was an ordinary lift for two men. This was the situ-
ation when the deceased “started to lift.” This witness says when Mr.
Wilson returned after six days, he worked regularly untll the mine shut
down April 1st, some six weeks later. Did not hear him make uny com-
plaint. Asked if he talked with Wilson as to how this accident occurred,
says: “I don't think he mentioned it.”

When Wilson gave up the attempt at lifting, Brooks called Douglas
Simmons to help him. Simmons testified the timber lifted was “a third
bigger than an ordinary bar.” He says it was such us two men ordinarily
liftt. Wilson was sitting four or flve feet away. He said nothing about
being hurt, Testifies that usually Wilson “was a little pale, nervous and
Guick to get excited,” Says when he came back “he looked about the
fame, maybe a little more so.”

The record shows that Mr, Wilson after the lifting incident called on
Dr. H. C. Porter, mine physician, This doctor in deposition says Wilson
continued to discharge bloody sputum for about three days. He advised
rest and “put him on internal hemostatics.” Says hemorrhage “came
from the lining membrane of the bronchial tubes.”
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After six days of rest at the advice of Dr. Porter, Mr. Wilson returneq
to work, continuing regularly in service until the mine shut down April
1, 1927. ¥

While Mr. Wilson was home from Pershing following the incident
alleged injury he consulted Dr, C. S. Cornell of Knoxville. Dr. Cornell
testifies Wilson called at his office February 7, 1927. He submits a report
he made of this case which is admitted to the record and which reads

as follows:

“Dr. Guteh, Albia, lowa. Dear Sir: Enclosed is a report on R. W,
Wilson employed by the Pershing Coal Company, alse bill for services,
He gives a history of a strain of the chest while helping move some
heavy chunks of coal the afternoon of February 3, 1927. That night he
had a hard coughing spell followed by a profuse pulmonary hemorrhage.
At that time Dr. Porter of Pershing saw him. He returned home at
Knoxville and saw me, or consulted me, on February 7, 1927. He gave
me this history and at this time was still spitting up some blood. The
lung findings were rather negative, although over the area marked on
chart 1 thought perhaps the breath sounds a little impaired. 1 preseribed
rest and a cough sedative and examined him again on February 9, 1927,
at which time he showed marked improvement. It is rather an unusval
case and what the pathology is or was is a debatable question. 1 take
it that probably the strain caused the rupture of some small vessel
Respirations on both examinations were eighteen, pulse seventy-six, tem-
perature 98.4. Anyhow he is back at work. Very truly yours, Corwin
S, Cornell”

Dir. Cornell further testifies that on February 9th he discharged the
patient assuming he had recovered from whatever the trouble was.

Dr. . M. Roberts of Knoxville appears for claimant. He came into
this case on June 12th, the day before the death of Wilson. The deceased
then called at his office stating he was not well and had not been feeling
well for some time, dating the origin of his trouble at the time of alleged
injury at the Pershing mine. Appeared very sick. “Was suffering from
heart trouble which 1 designated as mitral insufficiency, a mitral incom-
petency.” About 12 hours later witness saw Wilson at his home and two
and one-half hours afterward death occurred.

Transcript, page 34:

o Now assume that R, W. Wilson had subjected himself to a heavy
lift on February 4, 1927, or thereabouts, it is likely or unlikely that it
might have produced a hemorrhage?

A. It might do that.

. Would it be likely or unlikely that such lifting might injure the
heart so as to result in the trouble which he had?

A. It could do it or might. .

Q. Assume that he did lift a heavy weight which required approxi-
mately all of his strength on or about that date and that we knew of
no other cause for the condition of the heart, would you say it was likely
or unlikely that the lifting produced this effect upon the heart?

A. Well, it would be a factor in bringing on this trouble that he had,
or if he had a tendency of that kind before it would make the existing
condition worse.”

In the evidence of Dr. Porter it is shown that a year previous to the
incident of February 4, 1927, this doctor had examined Robert Wilson
professionally. Quoting from page 4 of deposition relative to this silv
ation:
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“Q. Now when yvou examined him before did you determine whether
or not he had high blood pressure?

A. Yes, I warned him about his hypertension and blood pressure.

Q. What was your warning?

A. That it was dangerous to become over-exerted or too much excited
on account of the condition of his heart and hypertension,

Q. Did you find anything in the nature of a neurotic heart?

A. That is what | told him he had, a neurotic heart.

Q. Was this neurotic condition in a mild or aggravated form?

A. In my judgment it had been there for quite a while.”

On page seven of this deposition appears the following:

“Q. Based upon your examination of this man and the facts in the
hypothetical question, what is your opinion as to whether or not this
lifting or attempting to lift that 1 have described, was a material con-
tributing cause to this man's death?

A, Well, temporarily 1 think it would contribute slightly in that con-
nection.”

The deposition of Dr. W. L. Bierring appears in this record. The wit-
ness treated this case hypothetically as he had not had personal contact
with the deceased. Before replying to interrogation of counsel as to cause
and effects, Dr. Bierring makes thorough inquiry relative to conditions,
symptoms, developments and diagnosis. Upon the basis of this informa-
tion. the doctor states that the history of the last ailment of deceased
Wilson “is like that of a failing heart in chronic heart disease.”

Two important questions are suggested in this situation, to-wit:

1. Does the record show that Robert Wilson on the morning of Febru-
ary 4, 1927, did more than ordinary lifting, if he lifted at all?

2. Does the record show that this experience was a materlally con-
tributing factor to his death four months later?

Ike Brooks, fellow workman and friendly witness, testifying for claim-
ant is not shaken In his oft repeated statement that “Wilson just started
to lift" when he abandoned the process. He will not say that the de-
ceased lifted his end of the timber off the ground or whether he lifted
at all. Nobody else knows anything about it. The case of claimant is
very weak at this point.

But if it were held that Wilson did actually exercise substantial
strength, is there in the record substantial basis for the inference that
this experience was the cause of death four months later?

Wilson was released by his doctor for service to begin six days after
the alleged accident. For six weeks he worked steadily and without any
complaint known to fellow workmen as to existing allment. He did not
then quit because of physical impairment, but for the reason that the
mine work was suspended.

When operation at the mine ceased, Wilson went to his home in Knox-
ville. Members of the family testify that he came back in poor form
and that he gradually failed until the end. There is no other testimony
to this effect. Without assuming moral obliquity on the part of the
testifying members of a family, in such cases it is always necessary care-
fully to weigh such evidence. If Wilson did actually give evidence of
failing physical powers it would have been so easy to put the matter
beyond question by calling on neighbors to verify the faet.

In this connection it may be noted that. Wilson consulted no doetors




66 REPORT OF INDUSTRIAL COMMISSIONER

from February 9th until June 12th, the day before he died when he went
to the office of Dr. Roberts, This fact seems inconsistent with the family
testimony. As a rule a man does not manifest rapidly failing powers for
several months without seeking medical counsel. I he is disposed so
to do his family over-rules him in this tendency.

The burden is on the claimant to prove by a preponderance of the
evidence that the death of Robert W. Wilson June 13, 1927, was due to
the alleged injury of February 4, 1927. The fact that this death cannot
be fully accounted for on any other theory is not sufficient,

The deposition of Dr. Porter indicates that for more than a year prior
to the lifting incident Wilson had been a doomed man from heart condi-
tions. As to the day or the hour or the mauner of dissolution the future
would not, could not reveal. How far the progressive disease had de
veloped when he “started to lift” cannot be known. He may not have
more than tensed his museles, without lifting substantially, when the
warning came. If he had carried out his helpful intention he would not
have borne any unusual burden as Brooks had already lifted this load
himself and it could not be considered as more than an ordinary lift
for two men. He rallied in a few days. It cannot be said the record
shows any marked change during the six weeks he worked steadily until
the mine shut down. IHe could not have felt himsell sieadily failing then
or afterward or he would not have gone from February 9th to June 12th
without consulting a doector.

The defendants are not required to clear up this mystery nor are they
to be held in obligation without a preponderance of affirmative evidence
which does not appear in this record.

The counsel for claimant seems to assume that the decision of the
industrial commissioner in Lanning vs. Iowa Dairy Separator Company,
reported on page 125 of our biennial report for 1928, foreshadows holding
in this case. Lanning had applied his full lifting capacity in two heaving
attempts to move an impossible weight. After working two and one-half
days he was unable to continue and serious heart and kidney trouble
aoon developed. He had worked steadily for yvears though it was manifest
that his physical troubles must have been developing. He was unable
to work any more. In the pending case the fact questions are substan-
tially different. It may be admitted that the Lanning award held to the
very limit of inference favorable to claimant and a case such as this, with
less support as to conditions and circumstances, cannot justify a further
extension of department rules, already exercised to the limit of legitimate
flexibility.

The lowa supreme court has frequently laid it down that award canuot
be based upon surmise, conjecture or speculation. It has said that award
cannot be made “upon a state of faets which are equally as consistent
with no right to compensation as it is with such right.”

In Slack vs. Percival Company, 199 N. W, 323, the claimant had sus
tained a smashing injury, requiring several very serious operations. After
geveral months it developed that a cancer was at work upon the vitals of
Slack. Cancer is a progressive disease, as is the heart trouble with
which Wilson was afflicted. The commissioner helieved himself justified
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in holding that this progressive development was so accelerated by the
injury, the operations and the change of living conditions as to cause the
death at a time it would not otherwise have occurred. The court thought
otherwise. In part the opinion follows:
“In other words, it was necessary for the evidence
! : E ] o show, and the
commissioner to find therefrom, that the death of the decedent wuull‘fi‘
not have occurred on August 5th, but for the injury received on January
21st. It was incumbent upon the claimant to produce sufficient evidence
to sustain such a finding.” 4
Ibvid, “No one can tell that an injury of the charact i
3 rter received by this
workman hastened the ravages of the disease with which he wm;)F l;ll:;
afflicted, so that his death six and a half months after the injury was
arcoh_’mto:l or hastened by the injury. The evidence shows that the
rapidity with which cancer ['es:ults in death varies greatly. Tlis prngres-i
may be more rapid in one victim than in another. No one can tell with
any degree of certainly the number of months a person known to he
nﬂli_clml with such a cancer may live, It is the merest speculation and
conjecture to attempt to say that the workman who lived six and a half
months aflerl the injury, and who died of cancer, would have lived a day
longer, had it not been for the injury which he received, How much
longer might he have lived, had il not been for the injury? Who can
even venture a guess? He was doomed in any event” 5 .
This and similar holdings of the court ¢learly point the way of deparl-
ment duty herein,
The arbitration decision holding for award is reversed.
Dated at Des Moines this 25th day of March, 1920,
A. B. FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner.
Appeal pending.

AWARD BASED ON DEATH DUE TO FALL ON SLIPPERY FLOOR—
VALUE OF MEALS
Mary Jane Jones, Clalmant,
V8.
Eppley Hotels Company, Employer,
London Guarantee & Accident Company, Limited, Insurance Carrier, De-
fendants.
Robert B. Pike, I, F. Brown, for Claimant;
Chandler Woodbridge, for Defendants,

In Review

Award was made to this claimant in arbitration on the basis of Injury
to her husband, James William Jones July 24, 1928, resulting in his death.
Cireumstances involved are substantially as follows:

As usual in his round of daily employment, the deceased hegan service
at the Martin Hotel in Sioux City at 5:18 A. M. on the date of injury.
Making milk delivery at the hotel, Wallace Lebeck, at about six o'clock
that morning, discovered Jones lying prone upon a kitchen floor of the
hotel in an unconseious condition. The house physician, Dr. Goehel, was
notified. He ordered first aid attention and put the patlent in the St
Joseph Hospital soon thereafter. The injured man resumed conscious-
ness a few hours later, but in the forenoon of the second day he died.

Defendants contend that death in this case was due to cerebral hem-
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orrhage, and was not the result of any injury arising out of employment.

It hecomes necessary to decide as to whether or not this death was
proximately due to spontaneous collapse or the result of injury sustained
by accidental fall,

The last act of service performed by the workman was carrying a
bushel basket of ice crushed or in small cube form from the basement
of the hotel to the Kkitechem where the collapse occurred. The record
ghows that the basket had been emptied into an ice chest in the kitchen.

As part of the kitchen equipment there was a stand supporting one or
more coffee urns. This stand was constructed of metal pipes about an
ineh and a half or two inches in diameter, and a pipe of this description
formed a horizontal brace about six or eight inches from the floor. When
found Jones was lying on his back with his neck, or the base of his
cranium, resting upon this metal brace,

Jones was 57 years of age, evidently in good physical condition. Noth-
ing appears in the record to suggest spontaneous collapse.

It is a matter of common knowledge that the sudden fall of a man
with his neck striking a metal pipe an inch and a half or two inches
in diameter would be distinetly suggestive of serious results.

It is contended by defendants that since nothing appears in the record
relative to any accidental occurrence or incidental mishap it must be
assumed that spontaneous apoplexy accounts for the position in which
the deceased was found in an unconscious state.

If relief were denied in all cases of accidental injury where it is not
possible definitely to account for all details involved, employment liabil-
ity would be very much reduced. Frequenily serious injury arises out
of employment with no eyve witness to the accident. Not infrequently,
it is necessary to take into consideration circumstances plainly indicating
substantial inference,

The man by whom the unconscious workman was discovered testifies
that there was cracked ice scattered about on the floor of the kitchen.
It requires no strain of the imagination to develop the very plausible
inference that the fall of Jones was caused by slipping on a piece of this
cracked ice on the tile floor. It is reasonable to assume that in cases
of spontaneous collapse, there results a crumpling of the body in sort
of a heap on the floor, and that the prone condition in which the body
of the workman was found is more suggestive of a fall occasioned by a
slip on a chunk of ice or otherwise. All things considered, in its physical
aspects the circumstances of this situation justify inference that collapse
was due to a fall rather than that the fall was due to collapse.

Dr. C. J. Goebel, the hotel doctor, testifies for claimant with qualifica-
tions admitted. He says that about eight o'clock the morning of the
injury he examined Jones at the hospital and he was “apparently feeling
pretty good”: that the patient was unable to remember just what hap
pened to him at the time of the accident. Thorough examination on the
part of this witness seems to have indicated that in all important physical
particulars, the workman was at that time in a fairly normal condition-
Late in the afternoon of July 25th, however, he again became unconscious.
remaining in this condition until the early morning of the 26th, when
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his breathing became very difficult, death resulting at $:00 A, M. 1In
direct examination Dr. Goebel testifies to the belief that the condition
of the deceased was due to trauma. In cross examination he states “in
this case there was no physical condition which would cause apoplexy
without tramma”; “that the physical findings that were found on the
patient, point more to the hemorrhage following trauma than previous.”
Dr. Goebel was present at the autopsy.

Dr. R. N. Larimer, who had been in practice two and one-half years at
gioux City and was previously on the medical faculty of the State Univer-
sity for four years, was called by claimant. After examining copy of
the autopsy in this case and in response to hypothetical query setting out
the circumstances involved in this situation the witness testifies to the
belief that “trauma had some direct bearing on the patient’s condition":
“that he must have had concussion of the brain, perhaps cerebral hem-
orrhage.” Believes origin of conditions deseribed to have been truumatic.
In cross examination he says “my impression is, trauma was sufficient
to make him unconscious.”

Dr. A. C. Starry was called by claimant. After graduating from the
I'niversity of Michigan and with three years of interneship and laboratory
work there, he has been for the past six and one-half years connected
with the St. Joseph Hospital at Sioux City, in the capacity of pathologist.
A part of his specialty consists in making post mortem examinations.
He performed this service upon the body of James William Jones a few
hours after death. This witness is very conservative in his expression.
He found a double hemorrhage which leads him to believe that the
decedent “probably suffered an accident of some kind prior to his being
found in an unconscious condition.” “Found nothing to explain the
hemorrhage.” Couldn't find any evidence of aneurism. In cross exami-
nation the witness was asked *“and the question of what would cause that
rupture is purely conjecture and speculative, ign’t it?" The answer was
“that is true.” In redirect examination, however, he explained this state-
ment to the effect that he was not attempting to say positively what
occurred, because he didn’t know, but that his inclination to the belief
as to the cause of death of the workman was based upon his findings in
autopsy and upon his knowledge and experience as a physician, and not
upon conjecture and speculation. This is the last guestion and answer
in examination of this witness:

“Q. And in this secale we were talking about, if you put on one side
the findings found by elimination as to advanced arteriosclerosis suf-
ficient to cause apoplexy; and on the other side the hemorrhage to the
brain and taking into account the history of the case, you wonld find
that side would' have the greater weight of evidence? .

A In my judgment, yes."

A careful reading of Dr. Starry's extensive testimony would seem to
Justify the conclusion that this answer represents his deliberate opinion
a8 to the source of this fatality. | i

Dr. F. A. Ely of Des Moines, testifies for the defense in the review
hearing, In hypothetical inquiry his evidence affords support to the
theory of spontaneous collapse relied upon by the defendants. Some of
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his statements, however, suggest substantial doubt due to post mortem
developments.

It is established in the record that double hemorrhage was discovered
in autopsy. In the evidence of Dr. Starry appears this conclusion:
“Spontaneous apoplexy usually is not found in multiple area, usually
found in one area.” Asked for his opinion as to this conclusion, Dr. Ely
says: “I don't want to disagree with that.” Later: “I will say that ome
or more distinct and separate hemorrhages océurring in the braln are
less apt to be of spontaneous origin."”

Counsel all through this case assumes that its history as to the origin
and development of causes and effects does not accord any basis for award,
He contends thal because there was no eye witness to the prostration of
Jones who may definitely testify as to just why and how he was found
flat on the floor in an unconscious condition, this claimant cannot recover,
Without such testimony, he assumes that the required burden of proof
cannot be sustained. The authorities are full of evidence to the con
trary. Based on well established rules frequently laid down by our courts,
Honnold on Workmen's Compensation on page 466 concludes:

“This burden may be sustained by circumstantial evidence or inference
having substantial basis in the evidence. A preponderance of the evidence
Is sufficient. Ry a preponderance of the evidence is meant such evidence
as, when weighed with that opposed to it, has more convincing foree and
from which it results that the greater probability is in favor of the party
on whom the burden rests.”

Again on page 779, Honnpold further announces important rules of
evidence as follows:

“A prima facle case is made when it is shown that an employee was at
his usual place of employment, at the usual time of day when ho was
expected and required to be there, and an injury of any character Is
shown. Where it Is difficult to determine where the weight of testimony
lles concerning a given state of facts, or condition or manner in which
an accident happened, the legal presumption favors the payment of com-
pensation. In other words, if the evidence, though slight, is yet sufficlent
to make a reasonable man conclude in the claimants’ favor on the vital
points, then his case is proven.”

On the morning of July 24, 1928, the deceased workman was In his
usual round of employment, where he was required to be and doing what
he was expected to do. Something occurred to interrupt this performance.
Defendants contend that, due to natural causes, he was put out of com-
mission by a paralytic stroke. Nothing in the way of evidence is sub-
mitted in support of this purely conjectural contention. Claimant al-
leges that in the course of his labors, he fell, This fall in which his neck
at the base of the brain came into violent contact with a metal brace
placed horizontally some six or eight inches above the floor caused the
collapse, resulting in death. No one saw the fall. How he came to fall
is never to be known. A fall from an upright position flat upon the floor
in such a way as to strike the base of the brain upon the metal brace
described is surely suggestive of violence and trauma. True Jones might
have had a stroke and happened to fall on this metal brace, but we submit
that to the ordinary mind the theory of the claimant affords much better
basis of logical Inference. It is much more reasonable to assume that 3
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workman in good health as was Jones, hustling about his work of handling
ice, accidentally fell, losing his footing, than that he just up and col-
Japsed, not by crumpling to the floor in a heap, but by falling at length
upon his back and just happening to strike the metal peril,

This is all from the standpoint of physical developments involved in the
cirenmstances of collapse. It Is now n ry to ider the technical
evidence given by doctors who express opinion based upon professional
finding. The three doctors, introduced by claimant, are evidently well
experfenced and have good professional standing.

Dr. Goebel attended the deceased from the hour of injury until death
came some fifty hours later. He also witnessed the autopsy. His testl-
mony strongly supports the theory of traumatic origin,

After reading the autopsy report, Dr. Larimer in hypothetical inquiry
practically agrees with this view,

Dr. Starry performed the autopsy. He is subjected to rigid inquiry.
He declines to say positively whether the collapse was spontaneous or
due to accident, in the evident purpose of avoiding arbitrary conclusion
or over-statement. In very grilling cross examination, he seems at one
point to discredit the theory of claimant. Doctors are frequently that
way. They well realize the mystery of human organism and the need for
eaution in their expression of professional opinion. In the exercise of
cautlon they sometimes unfortunately discard their own best judgment,
formed upon findings developed. With all his caution and conservatism,
however, Dr. Starry in his testimony a number of times makes it clear
that he believes his findings were more favorable to trauma than to spon-
taneous collapse. In his last answer, he plainly says that In his judg-
menl the theory as to traums has the greater welght in the history amd
in post mortem development.

In the early morning of July 24, 1928, the hour of doom muy have
been about to strike for this workman due to fatal collapse from nslural
cauges without anything in his condition or experience to suggest any
such untimely event. It can never be definitely Known exactly how he
came to fall and why e came to dle two days later. If definite proof be
yond all reasonable doubt as Lo cause and effect were required, this elalm
must fail, but when doubt necessarily exists, as In this case, eonclusion
must be reached as to the elements of inherent probability, of greater
likelihood. 1If the record Justifies the conclusion, that in spite of doubt,
amd uncertainty the weight of evidence favors the theory that death was
due to trauma, then the burden of proof has been discharged, preponder-
ance of evidence is established and award must follow,

Plister & Vogel Leather Company vs. Industrial Commission, 215, N. W, ‘
815, 18 o case In which the elements of eredibility and Inference flgure
much as in the pending action. This expression of the supreme court of
Wisconsin is very significant in this connection:

“The single question presented is whether there is any credible evi-
dence which directly or by fair inference sustains the findings of the In-
dustrial Commission. This depends largely upon the testimony of the
three physicians who testified. As is usually the case when doctors are

¢d by opposing parties, they do not agree, Yet there is substantial
accord in their testimony as the fundamental facts involved. The differ-
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ence in their testimony consists chiefly in the degree of certalnty wiy
which they testify to the basic facts which determine liability”

In our case the testimony of the three Sioux City doctors differ only
as to “degree of certainty with which they testified to the basic facts”

In re Uzzlo, 117 N. E. 349. A workman was found unconscious at aboyt
seven o'clock In the morning. Death resulted. There was no conclusive
proof as to any fall or other accident, but the inference was indulged that
his fractured skull was due to a fall from a trestle. In holding for award,
the supreme court of Massachusetts says:

“(2, 3) Without reciting the evidence in further detail it seems ap
parent that the board could reasonably infer from the facts proved by
direct or circomstantial evidence that the employee fell from the frosi
covered and unguarded trestle to the ground 36 feet below, and thereby
sustained fatal Injuries, We cannot say that such a conclusion is based
upon mere surmise or specalation; it is supported by logical reasoning
from established facts, It was not necessary for the dependent to ex-
clude the possibility that her husband’'s death might have been due to
an apoplectic shock, as suggested by the insurer; but only to satisfy the
board by a fair preponderance of the evidence that it was due to a fall
from the trestle.”

This decision is consistent with practically common holding in ecom-

pensation jurisdietion.

Controversy exlsts as to the earnings of Mr. Jones, upon which weekly
payment must be based. He was receiving $60.00 2 month and his meals.
In arbitration the value of the meals are estimated at $24.00 a month.
On the basis of cost to the employer, as such help is usually served with
food, this basis would seem entirely fair. The value of the meals to the
workman was the cost of the same when at home, and on this basis the
estimate Is liberal. So the record does not support a clalm above the
arbitration allowance,

The arbitration decision is affirmed.

Dated at Des Moines, this 11th day of February, 1929. Reecord complete
February 6, 1929,

A. B. FUNK,
Towea Industrial Commissioner,
Affirmed District Court and Supreme Court.

SCHOOL TEACHER KILLED WHILE ACTING AS CHAPERONE—
AWARD

0. E. Quaintance and Mary Quaintance, Claimants,
Vs,
Rowan Consolidated School at Rowan, Towa, Employer,
Towa Mutual Liability Ins. Co., Insurance Carrier, Defendants,

+ MeCoy & MeCoy, for Claimants:

Sampson & Dillon, for Defendants,

In Review
On the 4th day of May, 1927, Miss Lela M. Quaintance lost her life in
an automobile accident. At the time of her fatal injury she was filling
an engagement as a grade teacher in the Rowan Consolidated Sehool,
and this actlon s brought to establish claim for dependency on the part
of 0. E. and Mary Quaintance, parents of the deceased.
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Defendants contend that the fatal injury did not arise out of the em-
ployment of Miss Quaintance in a statutory sense.

Circumstances involved are substantially as follows:

The school program at Rowan would seem to include certain social
activities, usually planned by pupils with the approval and under the
supervision of the superintendent. Accordingly it had been arranged that
on the evening of May 4, 1927 high school members should go by auto-
mobiles to a resort at Lake Cornelia, some fourteen miles from Rowan
for a skating party. Vehicles were supplied by parents and others. De-
parture was from the school grounds.

Under a general rule on such occasions, it was understood that every
load of pupils should include at least one teacher, In preparation it was
found that one car was without a teacher. Another car contained four
teachers. The superintendent, R, W. Adamson, testifies “I went over
to that car and asked if one of them would please get into Kenneth
Whitten’s car” (the one without a teacher). Miss Qualntance responded
to the request, embarking in the Whitten car. After the party she re-
turned with the group she had joined in the Whitten car going out, and
on the way back to Rowan the fatal accident occurred.

Defendants insist that as a grade teacher the deceased did not belong
with the high school party; that she was self-invited and entirely without
employment relationship during the evening,

Superintendent Adamson testifies that quite usually all the teachers
joined in these festivities. This is not material to the issue. She Joined
the party and in responding to the request of the superintendent to enter
the Whitten car, she met a condition not of her own making or sugeestion.
Mr. Adamson had a right to make this suggestion consistent with his
supervising program. Under such cireumstances and in such relationship,
orders are not {ssued. A request is as significant as a command. To
Ignore the same would amount to insubordination. The entire situation
suggests reasonable solicitude on the part of the superintendent for the
welfare and the conduct of puplls in his charge. In the arrangements
necessary he needed the co-operation of his teachers, and in such eon-
sistent co-operation Miss Quaintance lost her life as arlsing out of her
employment. :

The second count of the arbitration decision recites:

“2. That the parents of Lela M. Quaintance, claimanig herein, have
failed to establish such degree of partial dependency as would enll for
Ereater dependency compensation from the employer than the amount
they have received from the third party.”

Payment was ordered only to the extent of burial charges and the cost
of litigation,

Reslstance on the part of defendants is registered against this hold-
ing, on the ground that recovery from the third party Is in excess of all
compensation benefits established in the record, including statutory burial
charges of $150.00.

Claimants contend that the facts developed in arbitration justify award
considerably in excess of the $1,000.00 recovered from the third party.

Mrs. Quaintance testifies that since the daughter began teaching some
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years prior to her death, her contribution to family support * took abogt
all she had,” Pressed for more definite statement, she says: "I woulq
think $300.00 or $400.00 a year.” Later in direct examination the wit.
ness thought the amount would be “from $200.00 to $300.00 a year™

Mr. Quaintance testifies to the belief that the contributions of the
daughter for family support “would amount to $400.00 a vear.”

In the record appears numerous exhibits in the form of vouchers eyj-
dencing payment by the deceased for various family purposes covering
a period of some seven years, sums amounting in the aggregate (o
$1,239.29,

Claimants contend that these exhibits tend merely to show the nature
of contributions and the general helpful intentions of the deceased, and
that herein, and upon the basis of claimants’ testimony, is established a
claim for dependency to the extent of one-half of total or about $1,800,00,

Defendants insist that vouchers submitted show payment for purposes
not congistent with a elaim for family support, and award should be in
a sum less than $1,000.00, including statutory burial charges,

It is always difficult to reach definite conclusion as to dependency due
on a contribution basis. In the nature of the case circumstances de
veloping this situation are always unforeseen and unexpected. In the
giving and taking of family relationship books are not kept and evidence
of contribution are almost inevitably difficult to produce, even where
absolute good faith Is Intended. If in such cases it were the rule to
confine the limit of contribution to amounts for which vouchers may bo
produced, gross Injustice would be done and employers would have com-
paratively little to pay In meeting statutory obligation.

Heallzing the Justice of indulging the element of probability and of
consistent inference in such a situation, it nevertheless becomes necessary
carefully to scrutinize the record developed and to exercise conjecture
only to a reasonable extent,

The record shows that Mr. Quaintance some years ago sustained a loss
of nearly, perhaps all, of his substantial property accumulation. The
need of assistance from members of the family able to contribute is
plainly seen. The record of contribution for more than a year prior to
the fatal injury is immaterial except as it tends to demonstrate a family
condition and relationship. Exhibits submitted and transcript evidence
strongly indicate a tendency on the part of this daughter to help out in
family emergency. She carried two insurance policies of $1,000.00 each
for the benefit of these parents. She left debts for borrowed money 1o
the extent of several hundred dollars. She had an income from her teach-
ing somewhat in excess of $1,000.00 a year. She is shown to have been
careful in personal expenditures, These facts and circumstances tend (0
Indicate contributions to family support in excess of definite proof.

The clalm of counsel that these contributions amounted to one-half or
even one-third of earnings cannot be accepted. Contention of opposing
counsel that award should be based on the meager figures established by
legitimate vouchers submitted is no more reliable.

Out of this maze of perplexing detail and circumstance as to contribu:
tion, it seems reasonable to conclude that contribution made by the de
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ceased daughter to family support should entitle claimants to the award
made by the arbitration decision and no more.

Claimants are therefore entitled to receive as compensation the sum
of $1,000.00 already paid by the third party, and the defendants are
ordered to make full settlement by payment of statutory burial charges
and the cost of litigation.

Dated at Des Moines, this 22d day of February, 1929,

A. B. FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner,
No appeal.

SCHOOL BUS DRIVER—STATUS UNDER DRIVING CONTRACT

Ruby Arthur, Claimant,
Vs,
Marble Rock Consolidated School District, Employer,
New York Indemnity Company, Insurance Carrier, Defendants,
R. W. Zastrow, for Claimant;
(arl Jordan, for Defendants,

In Review

Driving a school bus under contraet with this employer, Harry Arthur,
husband of this claimant, was fatally injured at a railroad crossing near
the town of Marble Rock, March 8, 1928,

Defendants resist this elaim for compensation payment on the ground
that Harry Arthur was an independent contractor with the Marble Rock
Consolidated School Distriet and as such he was without compensation
COVETARE,

In this record marked exhibit “A™ appears the contract of employment
between the school distriet and Harry Arthur. Herein the Hoard of
Directors agrees to pay to Harry Arthur the sum of $05.00 n month. It
reserves the right to change the terms of employment and to terminate
the contract at any time. Arthur agrees to a wide range of direction and
control as to detalls of service, Including these specifications:

He must drive or the route as directed by the board, arriving at the
school house not earlier than 8:30 or later than 9:10,

He is bound to return the pupils to their homes, leaving the school
house at 3:45 or later as the board may determine.

He agrees to refrain from the use of profane language in the presence
of puplls,

He promises not to use tobacco in any form while conveying the pupils.

He must avoid fast driving and stop before crossing the railroad.

He promises to keep order among the pupils and report any improper
conduct,

The terms of this contract plainly indicate compensable relationship.
Rarely are the conditions necessary to ordinary wage earning more
distinctly expressed. Little is left to the choice of the workman, He
I8 required to do his work at hours unaiterably fixed and by methods
distinetly dictated in detail by the employer. He is circumscribed us to
personal conduct and personal habits. His work is cut out for him, not
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only as to where he shall drive, but when and how he shall drive, even
to his manner of negotiation at railway crossings. He is constituted the
moral guardian of the pupils in his charge.

Surely such contractual conditions are not in the least suggestive of
independent employment.

Counsel insists Arthur was merely subject to necessary rules anpd
regulations of service. It might be consistently stated that rules and
regulations have no place in the program of independent employment,
which provides only for the delivery of a finished product or ultimate
result.

It s further urged in support of defendants’ contention that the work.
man supplied part of his transportation wvehicle, Workmen may and
frequently do furnish their own working equipment without disturbing
the usual wage relationship. The fact that a carpenter uses his own
saw and plane and chisel and hammer is not at all suggestive of inde
pendent employment.

The commissioner is familiar with the Pace and Norton cases cited
by counsel. He thinks he understands their import and application and
if he does they afford no support whatever to the contention of de:
fendants. In these cases the court plainly indicates that when a work
man s in his employment subject to supervision, direction and control
as to the methods employed he is not an independent econtractor. It
Is difficult to conceive how, not only the right to supervise, direct and
control, but the exercise of such right, could be more distinctly indicated
than in the contract of employment introduced as Exhibit A.

The award of compensation as ordered in arbitration is affirmed.

Dated at Des Moines, thias 22d day of February, 1929.

A. B. FUNK,
Iowa Industrial Commissioner,
Affirmed Distriet Court; reversed Supreme Court.

EYE INJURY AS BASIS OF AWARD

Fred O'Day, Claimant,
Vs,
U. 8, Button Company, Employer,
Employers Mutual Casualty Co,, Insurance Carrier, Defendants.
Bush & Bush, for Claimant; -
Lane & Waterman, for Defendants.
In Review

Total loss of vision of the left eye is ulleged by claimant as result of
injury in the employ of this defendant on or about July 8, 1927. He
states that while filing a saw used in his work, something flew and hit
him in the eye. He testifies that previous to this injury, he had full
vision.

Testifying for claimant, Dr. W. F. Bowser says that in July of 1927 he
removed a plece of rust or scale from the left eve in which existed an
ulcer. In cross examination states he discovered a condition which
seemed to suggest congenital lmpalrment. This trouble might be €%
pected to affect the vision. Possibly it might have caused the condition
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of the eye at the time of his examination. In an examination a month
after he first treated him, vision was entirely gone. Would hardly ex-
pect mormal vision to have existed at the time of injury due to the
congenital impairment.

Dr. G. F. Hartness was called by defendant. He made examination of
the injured member along in April. Thought the conditions existing were
of congenital origin. Does not believe he ever saw with his eye. 1f O'Day
was able to go hunting and shoot accurately with the left eye, he might
have to admit that the condition he describes did not exist at that time.

The claim of O'Day that he did shoot with his right eve closed and
was an excellent shot is corroborated by his brother, Bert O'Day and
also by Otto Valley, both of whom testify to personal knowledge as to
this manner of shooting and as to accuracy of aim.

Without contradiction the testimony of both doctors called might be
considered as damaging, if not fatal to the case of claimant. It is evident
from the record, however, that the conditions to which they testified as
to congenital impairment and as to lack of vision previous to the accident
was based upon conjecture which must be discarded if normal vision
existed in the eye previous to the injury of July, 1927. The fact of
normal vision at this time seems so well attested as utterly to discredit
medical evidence. Conjecture necessarily yields to established fact,

Here we have a situation where a workman gives perfectly consistent
history as to injury. While filing a saw a hard substance flew Into his
eye. He reported the ease to his employer who sent him to a doctor. The
finding of this doctor as to the immediate cause of injury Is entirely con-
sistent with history given. Reliance must be placed upon the record
as to normal vision existing at the time of Injury.

Defendants contend that the record of wage payment does not justify
the fixing of the weekly compensation rate at $9.00. Defendants’ exhibit
“A" shows that in the thirty weeks of labor preceding the date of injury,
the average earning was a little in excess of $15.00. To this record it
is not possible to apply the statutory rule as to earnings “on the average
of those days when he was working,” but the detailed showing necessary
would be more apt to favor the claimant than the defendant.

Upon the record it must be held that there is no error in the arbitra-
tion decision, that in the Injury of July 8, 1927, Fred O'Day lost the full
vision of his left eye, which fixes the obligation of defendants at one
hundred weeks of payment at the rate of $9.00 a week, together with
statutory medical, surgical and hospital benefits and the costs of litigation.

The arbitration decision fs affirmed.

Dated at Des Moines this 28th day of December, 1928,

A. B. FUNK,
Iowa Industrial Commissioner,
No appeal,
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GLAUCOMA, NOT AMMONIA FUMES, CAUSE OF BLINDNESS

Chas. Brasch, Clainmant,
V8,
Rose Tenenbom, Employer, -
lowa Mutual Liability Ins. Co., Insurance Carrier, Defendants,
Lane & Waterman, James J. Lamb and John Weir, appearing for Claimant:
Sampson & Dillon, for Defendants,

In Review

In arbitration at Davenport April 10, 1923 award was denied,

In the arbitration application filed December 20, 1922, it is alleged that
on August 6, 1922, claimant was so affected by exposure to ammonia
fumes as to develop losa of vision, within a few weeks culminating in
total blindness.

The case was submitted in review February 8, 1929,

Claimant recites in evidence clreumstances of injury and its effects
substantially as follows: In the refrigerator equipment of the defendant
cmployer is an ammonia plant. On a certain day the senses of hearing
and smelling announced the escape of ammonia gas at this plant, Shut-
ting his eyes and holding his breath, as he says, claimant went to the
basement to shut off the pipe at the point of escape. He came out for
breath and went down a second time to effect his purpose. Says he
opened his eyes while in the basement for an instant in which he re
celved a charge of the gas vapor. Clalmant says he worked for a while
and then went home, distress from this exposure continuing. Did not
work again for few days. Eye trouble rapidly developed so as to inter-
fere with useful vision, and about August 15th following he was prue
tically blind.

Dr. L. Ostrom, of Rock Island, came into the case September 23, 1922,
and was still treating elaimant at the date of arbitration hearing. While
he does not testify positively that the glaucoma discovered in the ex-
amination was due to the ammonia incident, he gives rather substantial
support to the contention of claimant,

Defendants contend that loss of vision is due to a disease of the eye
known as glaucoma, and that no injury in employment was the source
of developing blindness.

One witness, a fellow employee, testifies definitely in support of evidence
glven by claimant as to circumstances in connection with the alleged
exposure. Another fellow workman thoroughly diseredits this testimony.
The evidence of neither is particularly reassuring.

Drs. Lee Webber and J. E. Rock, eye specialists, and Drs. P. A. Bendixen
and R. 8. Taylor, in general practice, strongly negative the probability
that loss of vision is due to ammonia exposure. All these doctors testify
from professional contact with the case,

Dr. W. W. Pearson, of Des Moines, in deposition testifies to utter dis-
bellef as to ammonia exposure being the source of the loss of vision. In
exhaustive inquiry the doctor. comprehensively discusses all phases of
the situation as recited to him in case history, giving substantial reasons
for his conclusions herein,
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While counsel is loath to admit, in fact is rather disposed to deny, the
existence of glaucoma at the time of alleged injury, the record clearly
shows this to have been the cause of blindness. This fact alone, however,
does not necessarily work foreclosure against award if it were shown that
any incident of employment definitely contributed to the disaster to such
a degree as to make it clear that, but for such incident, earning would
pave continued indefinitely, Weighing the evidence carefully, it by no
means appears that this fact is established.

There is little disinterested evidence tending to corroborate the story
of claimant as to anything of a serious nature having happened to him
on the date of alleged injury.

In fact the fixing of this date is not reassuring. In the application
for arbitration filed December 26, 1922, it is given as August 6th. In an
amended application filed February 24, 1923, the date is changed to
July 23. At the arbitration hearing the claimant in direct examination
testifies that on August 18th or August 19th he told Coleman, represent-
ing the insurer, that the ammonia exposure was August 6th. It is noted
that the date when he admits he made this statement to Coleman was
less than two weeks after August 6th. The “mistake” Brasch alleges as
to fixing the date suggests elther that it was changed for a purpose, or
that nothing serions could have happened on either date If claimant did
not then remember whether injury occurred two weeks or four weeks
before his talk with Coleman.

. Medieal evidence and common knowledge suggest that Intensity of ir-
ritation from this gas exposure sufficient to destroy vision in eyes closed,
except for an instant, would have left serious evidence of such exposure
on the eye lids, in nostrils, and on all exposed skin surface. Claimant
testifies that on a number of occasions, as many as a dozen times any
way, he had been exposed to these gas fumes from the ammonia plant in
question without trouble.

The fact that five out of six doctors testifying bear witness against this
claim is significant. The tendency of doctors to disagree Is well known
and when there appears in the record anything like an equipoise of
medical evid it be ry to supplement guch evidence with
practical judgment, common knowledge and consistent inference. Where
scientific expression 18 overwhelming, however, it is diffieult to get nway
from such welght of evidence.

Thiz grievous loss of vision may be due to eircumstances alleged In
behalf of clalmant, but the record fails to justify such conclusion, even
with the liberal exercise of all consistent inference and conjecture to
which the courts are inclined to give favorable consideration,

At the review hearing claimant’s counsel sought to introduce into the
record several depositions. The motion of defendants to suppress Lhese
depositions, made a part of the review proceeding, was sustained by the
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industrial commissioner., To this ruling claimant takes exception which
is hereby duly noted.
The arbitration decision denying award in this case is affirmed,
Dated at Des Moines this 15th day of February, 1929,
A, B. FUNK,
Iowa Industrial Commissioner,
Appeal pending,

HERNIA HELD NOT ARISING OUT OF EMPLOYMENT

W. A. Morey, Claimant,
V8.
Three Minute Cereal Company, Employer.
United States Casualty Company, Insurance Carrier, Defendants,
E. J. Dahms, for Claimant;
Carl Jordan, for Defendants,

In Revicw
Claimant seeks to recover for hernial development due to injury al-
leged to have occurred about November 1, 1926. He gives this explana-
tion, transcript page 3:
“Well, I had a box about a foot or fourteen inches high and got those
sacks upon my right knee and there would be a man holding them for

me, you know, and I would pick them up and rest them on my knee,
like this, and while I was doing that 1 got a pain in my side.”

Claimant further testifies that he had been going through this lifting
process many times covering a considerable period. In cross examina-
tion on page 11 of transcript appears the following:

“Q. What I mean to say, you didn't put on any extra strain when you
were doing it that day?
A. 0, no, no.

Q. There wasn't anything unusual in the way you were doing it?
A. No.”

Compensable injury must arise out of employment. It must have its
origin in some accident or incident out of the usual course. It cannot
oceur while the workman is doing his usual work in the casual way with-
out circumstances suggestive of casualty. It must be due to some for-
tuitous event, some untoward, some unlooked for mishap.

In this case Wm. Morey by his own statements defeats his claim for
compensation. In the first place he is not certain as to the date of alleged
Injury. He relates circumstances definitely inconsistent with compensa-
tion obligation. He was performing a task very common to his employ-
ment. He says emphatically that he did not have any strain. There is
no history of fall, slip, stumble or other untoward incident. His own
testimony does not support contention that he sustained anything like an
injury arising out of employment in a statutory sense.

The arbitration decision is affirmed.

Dated at Des Moines, this 27th day of March, 1929,

A. B. FUNK,

Iowa Industrial Commissioner.
No appeal.
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HERNIA—AWARD DENIED

Jesse Smith, Claimant,
vs.
Henry County Soldiers’ and Sailors’ Memorial Hospital, Employer,
U. 8. F. & G. Company, Insurance Carrier, Defendants.
MeCoid, McCoid & McCoid, for Claimant,
H. B. White, Clifford Vance, for Defendants.

In Review

This action is brought to establish compensable hernia due to alleged
injury January 10, 1929. In arbitration finding was for the defense.

By agreement this case was submitted in review on written briefs and
arguments without oral hearing.

Jesse Smith was in this hospital service as janitor and man of all
work,

The only question in controversy is as to whether or not the double
hernia from which claimant was found to be suffering on January 11,
1929, in a legal sense arose out of his employment by this defendant,

In the transcript of evidence appears the testimony of Mr. Smith, that
on the date of alleged injury he was shoveling snow from cement walks;
that rough ice and frosted snow caused difficulty in shoveling; that “when
I would shovel and hit these chunks it would jar me up some.” (tr. 9)

“Q. Just tell the court in what way it would jar you?

A. Well, really, the worst one was when | was scooping across the
crossing at the alley. 1 was pushing it along in front of me and it hit
me in the side and that is the only time | remember of it hurting me
80 bad, and that is when I took sick, right there on that crossing.”

In cross examination (tr. 16) appears the following:

“A. Well, 1 was just scooping along with the snow and of course
whenever | would hit them bumps, it would jar me up some, but when
I was going across the crossing, then was when I got the worst bump of
it all, the handle hit me on the side when it slipped there.”

With this testimony uncontradicted by fact or circumstance the case
of claimant is made.

In this record as defendants’ exhibit 1 appears a signed statement of
Jesse Smith made February 10, 1929. In this statement it is related:

“As | returned to the hospital I felt sick at my stomach but did not
feel any pain. The following morning I felt sick at my stomach and
also felt pain in my lower abdomen. [ felt two lumps at the lower part of
my abdomen.”

Further along in the statement claimant says:

“While shoveling the snow I did not strain myself by shoveling but 1
do remember slipping several times. There was ice and packed snow on
the walk underneath the loose snow which I was shoveling off. Of
tourse I was not taking the ice off but merely the loose snow. [ did
not slip and fall to the ground but merely slipped around while shovel-
ing. Other than this slipping around there was nothing that could be
classed as an accident. 1 did not have any pain until the morning of
January 11, 1929.”

At the arbitration hearing claimant admits the signature of this state-
ment as his own. Admits the statement was read to him, but that he
“couldn't tell anything that was in it.” Denfes saying he did not, in ac-
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cordance with the statement, say he felt no pain until the next morning,
Denles other material statements.

L. Kious, the insurance adjuster who wrote the statement, testifies
that ft accurately relates the history of the shoveling incident just as
glven him by claimant.

R. . Campbell, a local insurance dealer, testifies he was present when
this statement was taken; that it is a faithiul report of incidents as re.
lated by claimant. Is very positive claimant made the material state
ments as to no pain and no accldent which he now denies,

It is necessary to take judiclal notice of important contradiction between
the signed statement and the sworn testimony. The former was made
just a month after the alleged injury. No one who has experienced
the sting of hernial development will feel there could have been any
fallure at this early date to distinctly r ber its tion. It s
significant that in the statement no mention whatever is made of the
shovel handle contact upon which this claim must rest if it be approved.
In his replies to the interrogation as to these discrepancies the claimant
is evasive and insincerity is strongly suggested.

There might be basis for some measure of prejudice on the part of the
adjuster, Mr. Kious, but this cannot be urged with any color of consis
teney ns o the evidence of Mr. Campbell, His interest is in common with
that of the defense. He sells Insurance and it is a matter of common
knowledge that it helps the sales end of the insurance business to have
claims pald and the loeal sales agents are commonly inclined to sympa-
thize with claimants for this reason. So when this man Campbell, evl
dently a man of standing and a neighbor of the claimants, testifies
positively as to the statement subscribed being in practical accord with
history given by the claimant in his presence, this evidence must be
serfously considered.

Testifying in support of this claim of her husband, Mrs. Smith, says
(tr. 3) that In the evening of the day of alleged injury claimant came in
making complaint that he “didn’t feel a bit good.” That he retired earlier
than usual. No mention at this time is made of any injury or distress
at the site of hernial development. In reply to the query (tr. 10) “was
anyone there when you came in and went to bed?" Smith says “no there
wasn't.”

Claimant Introduces ns Hxhiblt A a letter written by the Industrial
Commissioner March 19, 1929. Counsel declined to state for what pur
pose this exhibit is submitted. The Important paragraph in this letter
follows:

“1 say to you frankly, however, that unless it may be shown that the
hernisl development was distinetly due to some definite incident or ac
cident oceurring at a particular moment during his day's work, it 18
unwise to waste his money in litigation, for he cannot possibly establish a

case. The mere fact that be did a hard day’'s work shoveling snow
that he afterwards discovered he had a hernia will not make a case.”

It would be difficult to improve on this statement in the interpreta-
tlon of holding in this state and generally elsewhere as to the burden o
be discharged by a claimant in the establishing of a claim for hernia.
It seems to have been accepted by counsel as sound and controlling in
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view of his subsequent endeavor to meet these requirements in testimony
submitted at the arbitration hearing.

Appearing herein as Exhibit 2 is a letter dated March 1, 1929, from
claimant's counsel to the defendant insurer insisting on settlement, in
which it is stated: i

“Among a great number of hernia cases, this one to my mind is very
clear as to cause of this thing. It did not occur in bed, being a direct
hernia might not produce any pain at hernial site, but did ocenr at work
the day previous. Paln showed up next morning on awakening.”

This statement admits that no pain was experienced by clalmant the
day of the shoveling just as announced by Smith in his signed statement
and strongly denied by him in arbitration. This letter of counsel was
written several weeks prior to that of the commissioner in which appears
as quoted, specifications for compensable hernia.

Counsel submits a mass of citations, the last of which is numbered 83.
The outstanding feature of these decisions is the common holding that
by preponderance of the evidence the claimant must prove disabling in-
jury, having its origin In some incident or accident of employment occur-
ring at a certain time and plice and in a definite manner,

This is a holding common in compensation jurisdietion. Under fQts
intelligent exercise Iowa workmen in hernia cases every year receive
thousands of dollars In compensation benefits. Departure from this rule,
or juggling with its terms would inevitably lead to confusion and in-
stability of administration,

Hernia may exist as a result of occupation without compensation
liability. Its development may be due to previous exercise of energy. In
cases, however, where it is not shown to have its origin In some specific
Incident with reference to time and place or circumstance, within hours
of service, coverage cannot be established. Otherwise imposition would
be comparatively easy. Tendency to hernia in most men Is well ander-
stood. Hernia often oceurs with little provocation. A stumble, a trivial
fall, a slight strain, a cough or a sneeze has been known to bring the
intestine through the inguinal ring. If coverage be not confined to ac-
cident or incident immediately connected with the work of the moment,
such development not due to employment might easily be charged to it
and award wrongfully made. So the rule in this as in other compensa-
tion situations must Insist upon hooking up injury immediately with em-
ployment origin and the further common rule that eonjecture or surmise
rannot be exercised in such a situation makes plain the duty of ad-
ministrative and judicial procedure,

In Miller vs. Gardner & Lindberg, 180 N. W. 742, the lTown supreme
court declares: “It will not do to say that the commissioner may not
consider the weight and credibility of the evidence in the light of all the
tircumstances.” Frequent expression of the court indleates that it de-
volves upon this tribunal in case of compensation controversy ecarefully
to consider evidence submitted because of the importance it gives to his
conclusion as to questions of fact.

It therefore becomes necessary to hold that because of conflicting and
contradictory evidence, Jesse Smith has failed to discharge the burden
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of proving by credible testimony that this case comes within the role
of compensation coverage. e

The arbitration decision is affirmed,

Dated at Des Moines this 26th day of September, 1929,

A. B. FUNK,
Iowa Industrial Commissioner,

Commissioner reversed Distriet Court; commissioner affirmed Supreme

Court.

HERNIA CAUSED BY STRAIN WHILE PULLING WEEDS—AWARD

Harold F. Birkholz, Claimant,
va,
Sherman Nursery Company, Employer,
smployers Liability Assurance Corporation, Ltd., Insurance Carrier, De
fendants,
Jens Grothe, for Claimant;
Larson & Carr, for Defendants.

In Review

In arbitration at Charles City, April 15, 1930, the defendants were
ordered to pay to clalmant the sum of $83.04, representing eight weeks
of compensation at $10,38 per week, together with statutory medical,
surgical and hospital benefits,

Without formal hearing the case is submitted in review upon written
argument.

On the part of clalmant it is alleged that a right inguinal hernia was
sustained as arising out of employment by the Sherman Nursery Com-
pany. .

Harold F. Birkholz testifies that on August 19, 1929, he was pulling
weeds on the premises of this employer. These weeds were of unusually
rare growth, requiring the exercise of much strength in the work of
removal, He says that in pulling one of the larger weeds he “gave it all
he had” in the way of lifting power, and in this effort “something
snapped” and he “felt weak and dizzy.”

The record shows that it was necessary for him to rest and to go
slowly with lighter work the remainder of the day. In the evening medi
cal examination disclosed hernial develop t. Subsequently claimant
was unable to work. Sometime in September he started wearing a truss
and later drove a car in the employment of the nursery for about six
weeks, receiving his board as pay for his services. Operation was per
formed in January of 1930,

The testimony of fellow workmen, of the employment foreman and
of the attending physician tends substantially to support the statements
of claimant relative to circumstances of inquiry and of its physical effect.

The only evidence submitted on behalf of defendants is that of Dr.
Griffin, of Charles City. He testifies that he has made a special study¥
of the subject and declares that “traumatic hernia would be hernia pre-
dueed by some sharp instrument an individual falling on the instrument
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and tearing sufficient opening through the abdominal muscles to ullow
the protrusion.”

The doctor further indicates that hernia developing under other clr-
cumstances is congenital in origin. Says the tend y to zenital
hernia is more or less a normal condition of the human structure that the
majority of people have it.

The argument of counsel in resistance of this claim is based chiefly
upon the theory and conclusions submitted in evidence by Dr. Griffin,
Counsel quotés liberally from the medical profession in the endeavor to
show that there is no such thing as compensable hernia except as the
result of local violence,

This theory, quite commonly held by physicians, has been no less com-
monly repudiated by compensation authority and the courts throughout
the country. Predisposition to hernia on the part of many persons is well
understood. Protrusion has been produced by a comparatively slight
jolt, even by a cough or a sneeze. In compensation jurisdiction great
care is evercised in determining as to whether or not claim for hernia
as an injury Is based on some definite accident or incident of employ-
ment, occurring at a particular place, in a definite manner and at a
definite point of time. When circumstances square a case by this rule
obligation on the part of the employer is held to be established,

Regardless of predisposition or tendency when disability is due to some
specific incident of employment but for which a workman would continue
indefinitely in earning, industry must contribute to the personal loss
sustained as the law provides.

Award to Harold F. Birkholz for injury sustained as arising out of
and in the course of his emplovment involved no error on the parl of
the arbitrators,

The arbitration decision is affirmed.
Dated at Des Moines this 17th day of June, 1930,

A. B. FUNK,
Iowa Industrial Commissioner,
No appeal.

HERNIA NOT ARISING OUT OF EMPLOYMENT

Simon Collingwood, Claimant,
Vs,
John Morrell & Company, Employer,
Fidelity and Casualty Company of New York, Insurance Carrier, De-
fendants.
Elmer K. Bekman, for Claimant;
B. 0. Montgomery, for Defendants.

In Review
Arbitrated at Ottumwa August 17, 1928, it was held in thls case that
claimant failed to establish lability on the part of defendants,
The transcript of evidence taken at the arbitration hearing is sub-
mitted for review to the Industrial Commissioner without argument,
Testifying before the Deputy Industrial Commissioner, Simon Colling-
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wood states that on March 14, 1928, he sustained injury resulting in left
inguinal hernis. He alleges that this injury was due to service in tend-
Ing doors in which he strained himself while meeting the requirements
of this service, He says, “I got awful sick and went in to my foreman
and told him I had to go home, that I had to go and see a doctor, that
1 hurt myself on those doors.”

The doctor, he states, told him he was ruptured and would have to go
to the hospital, which he did on the thirty-first day of March, 1928 An
operation was performed April third succeeding. Admits he had a hernia
on the right side many years ago, which had been cured by treatment,
as he says.

In matters of ease history, the recital of claimant was considerably
disturbed in eross examination. Confronted with the statement alleged
to have heen made by him while in the hospital, Collingwood verified
the signature. In this statement appeared the following: “I could not
say the exact date which my hernia came out the last time. I did not
alip or fall or stumble nor was I struck by anybody. 1 think it was just
hard work that 1 was doing that caused the hernia to come out the last
time,” Claimant answered, 1 should say I didn't tell him that."

Called by elaimant, Dr. H. A. Spilman says he assisted in operation
April 3 or 4, 1928, which consisted in “repair of hernia, both sides,
Inguinal hernia,"

Called by defendant, Dr, McElderry testifies that on the thirtieth day
of October, 1925, he examined Collingwood at Morvell's First Aid Depart-
ment. Furthermore:

Q. You may tell the cominissioner what you found at the time of
that examination in the abdominal region, the inguinal region.

A. At that time Mr. Collingwood had a double inguinal hernla, one
on eénch side,

Q. Were they small or large or easily detected?

A, They were large enough that 1 could see them as he walked toward
me; when he was standing with his clothes off 1 could see them without
examination,

Q. They were visible to the naked eye without examination?

A. They were”

G. . Halgren, department foreman in the employ of the defendant em-
ployer, stales that in January or February, 1928, claimant came to him
and said “he wanted Lo go home to see sbout his rapture.” Further:
“as | remember, on that day Mr. Collingwood asked me to get off, said
his rupture was bothering him and wanted to go and see the doctor.”
Testifles he knew clalmant was ruptured “couple of years ago, probably.”

It is observed that the workman says he promptly told his foreman
of the alleged Injury March 14th, 1928; also that Foreman Halgren testi
fles that in January or February, a month or so prior to the date given,
claimant sald “‘he wanted to go home to see about his rupture”, and
the foreman persists in the statement that he knew about the rupture
as having existed for a considerable length of time and did not know of
any injury of March 14th, as testified by Collingwood.

While claimant states he was operated on for left hernia only, Dr.
H. A. Spilman says he assisted in operating for double hernia.

It appears furthermore that Dr. McElderry testifies that in the First

WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION SERVICE 87

Aid Department of the employer he examined claimant October 30th,
1925, and found a very pronounced double hermia. This was more than
two years prior to the alleged injury of March 14th, 1925,

Obviously the record justifies denial of award and the arbitration decl
gion is herehy affirmed.

Dated at Des Moines, lowa, this 27th day of October, 1928,

No appeal.

. A. B. FUNK,

Iowa Industrial Commissioner,

HERNIA DUE TO HEAVY LIFTING—AWARD

Ernest Johnson, Claimant,
V8.
Lytle Construction Company, Employer,
Employers Mutual Casualty Company, Insurance Carrier, Defendants,
Van Ness & Stillman, for Claimant;
John Hynes, for Defendants,

In Review

This compensation claim is based upon hernial development in em-
ployment, September 17, 1928,

Arbitration hearing at Algona, October 24, 1928, resulted in finding for
claimant,

It is the contention of the defendants that the claimant, Ernest
Johnson, has failed to establish his claim by preponderance of competent
evidence,

It appears from the record that on the 17th day of September, 1928,
and for some time previously, claimant had been in the service of the
defendant employer in the work of highway construction. He testifles
that on this date, he was handling steel forms used in connection with
the laying of concrete paving. These forms weigh about 160 pounds.
In the act of raising one of these forms, with the assistance of a fellow
workman, clalmant says he felt a distinet pain in the left groin. Kepl
on working but within the course of about thirty minutes, it becamo
necessary for him to quit because of excessive pain and the tendency to
Intestinal protrusion.

The fellow workman to whom reference has been made, as assisting In
the lifting of the steel form, substantially corroborates the testimony of
Johnson as to facts and circumstances in conmection with the lifting
and fts results on September 17, 1928,

Defendants deny obligation upon these grounds.

1. That injury alleged was not due to any specific incident of em-
ployment, d

2. That in medical evidence claimant at the time of his alleged in-
Jury is shown to have been definitely susceptible to hernial development
becanse of open inguinal rings.

In order to establish compensable injury, it is not necessary to prove
Buch injury to have been developed out of any spectacular or sensational
accident. The word accident rarely occurs in our statute and on these
rare occasions it is used only in the most incidental way. It is only neces-
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sary to show that some incident of employment deprived the workmag
of further earning capacity. Of course it is expected that this incident
shall include something in the nature of a fall or strain or shock tending
to produce disability, and but for such incident of employment the work.
man would have continued in earning capacity.

In this case occurs the characteristic medical resistance to the inely
slon of traumatic hernia as a compensable industrizl injury. Doctors
have gone so far as lo state that such injury can occur only in connee
tion with some act of violence immediately in contact with the part
affected. This medical contention has been generally discarded in com-
pensation jurisdiction. It is held in this jurisdiction that in every case
where an able-bodied workman is incapacitated from earning and that
such incapacity would not have resulted but for some definite strain or
casunalty of labor performance, there is no escape from compensation
obligation,

It is shown In this case that claimant Johnson was particularly sus-
ceptible to hernial development because of open inguinal rings. This
susceptibility cannot be successfully plead in defense, as it is a well
known principle in compensation that the employer takes the workman
as he finds him and that pre-disposition to break down shall not serve
to defeat a compensation claim if something happens as arising out of
employment, but for which earning capacity would indefinitely continue,

On the part of this department, great care is exercised in dealing with
claims based upon hernin. It so happens that all hernia cases, four in
number, which have gone to the Supreme Court have been decided ad-
versely by this department and these decisions have been uniformly af-
firmed by the court. It is well understood that no such case shall have
the support of the commissioner where hernial development is obscure
In origin or without corroboration as to fact and circumstance.

In this case the evidence of the workman bears the imprint of inherent
probability. This evidence is definitely corroborated and supported by
Herbert Welse, the only person in contact with the situation at the time
of Injury.

In arbitration it was ordered that the defendants shall “at once offer
the claimant a cure hy operation at their expense and to pay the claim-
ant at the rate of $10.80 a week for the convalescing period following the
operation,” or “as alternative, in the event the claimant should not de-
sire to submit himself for an operation, the defendants shall pay the
claimant a lump sum of §$189.80, in lieu of the cost of an operation, and
compensation for six weeks, which is the usual healing period in such
cases,"

The arbitration decision is affirmed.

Dated at Des Moines, lowa, this 15th day of November, 1928.

A. B. FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner.
No appeal.
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HERNIA SHOWN TO ARISE OUT OF EMPLOYMENT

John Penniwell, Claimant,
V8,
Sodin & Bacino, Employer,
Standard Accident Insurance Co., Insurance Carrier, Defendants,
J. V. Gray, for Claimant,;
Maurice V. Pew, for Defendants.

In Review

This action is brought to recover for disability on account of double
hernia alleged to be due to injury of October 11, 1628, arising ont of
employment.

It appears from the arbitration record that on the date aforesaid
claimant did some heavy lifting of candy boxes in the slevator of the
employer. He alleges that in one such lift he strained himself produc-
ing pains in the groin on both sides. After resting fifteen or twenty
minutes he returned to work. Pain did not both him long. He was work-
ing alone.

At home in the evening he discovered lumps on both sides. A day or
two later, as soon as he conveniently could, he submitted himsell to
examination of his father, who testifies in support of this claim.

Operation was later performed hy Dr. J. W. Laird, assisted hy Dr.
W. A. Sternberg. The testimony of both these doctors tend to snpport
the contention that this hernia development was of recent tranmatic
origin. i

Defendant’s Exhibit A is a statement signed hy the claimant November
24, 1928, Counsel contends this claim is discredited by discrepancy he-
tween statements by the claimant in this exhibit and on the witness
stand,

There is some such discrepancy, it appearing that John Penniwell
made a little bhetter case in the signed statement. Usnally where sneh
discrepancy appears, the more favorable account is given In arbitration
evidence when the claimant may better understand the statutory re
quirement,

It may not be surprising that the insurer entertained doubt in this case,
It is not established beyond all question of doubt. This, however, 1s not
necessary. Careful scrutiny of the evidence tends to show good falth on
the part of the claimant. The conclusion is justified that he was In-
jured as he states and that subsequent developments are consistent with
such injury.

Compensable hernial injury has no definite program of development.
It sometimes comes with much distress and an immediate breakdown.
Sometimes it Is of slower culmination and incapacity may not immedi-
ately oceur though the source of injury may be well understood from case
history, R

The manifest good faith of claimant, the cireumstances recited, the
evidence of attending physiclans, together with the award of the deputy
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commissioner, In close contact with those testifying, all tend to support
this claim.
The arbitration decision is aflirmed.
Dated at Des Molnes this 20th day of May, 1929,
A. B. FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner,

No appeal.

ELECTROCUTION ESTABLISHED AS TO CAUSE OF DEATH OF
LINEMAN
Adelaide M. Rodgers, Claimant,
V8.
lowa Rallway & Light Corporation, Employer,
Standard Accident Inmsurance Company, Insurance Carrier, Defendants.
Baker & Doran, for Claimant;
John H. Hull and Maurice V. Pew, for Defendants.

In Review

It is the contention of claimant that her husband, Frank Rodgers,
came to his death July 18, 1928, by electrocution in the service of this
defendant employer,

Defendants deny that this death was due to electrical shock or to any
injury arising out of employment,

At the time of this disaster the lowa Railway & Light Company was
rehabilltating Its transmisslon equipment on the streets of the town of
Slater., Frank Rodgers was on a pole 45 feet high, doing work in con-
nection with the transfer of light and power wires to new poles. Some
time after golng up the pole he gave evidence of distress, and was ob-
served slumping down in his safoty belt attached to a convenient cross
arm, which prevented his fall to the ground. Death was instantaneouns.

As appears In evidence examination of the body discloged brulses or
contugions on the body of the deceased near the left nipple, under the
right arm and on each shin, Garments introduced indicate that holes
in the shirt and in the bib of the overall worn by Rodgers were directly
over the bruise or contusion near the left nipple. Testimony seems in
substantial agreement that the holes in these garments give evidence of
seorching and the exhibits introduced seem strongly to support this
conclusion.

A crucifix submitted, which was carried by the deceased in a little
pocket near the point of skin contusion and the burnt holes in the
covering parments, strongly suggests electric treatment. The features
of the figure give evidence of heat application, and discoloration further
suggests presumption as to inherent probability.

Defendants contend that without actual physieal contact with the
transmission wire, electrocution cannot occur and that since such con-
tact is not established in evidence this death is due to some natural
cause,

In arbitration and in review a pole with cross arms and wires was
introduced in evidence as an exact reproduction of the construction situa
tion at the point where death ocenrred. At the review hearing George
Smith, for many years line foreman of the employer, assumed the posk
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tion oceupied by Rodgers. It is developed in examination of Smith that
about 18 inches in front of the workman and about waist high was a
wire carrying 6600 volts of electricity. At each side of the workman
at a distance of about 20 inches from his body, and about 4 inches above
the knee were lines of wire also of 6600 voltage. Down near the feet
was a wire carryving 220 volts.

If it were necessary Lo show to a dead moral certainty that the death
of Rodgers was due lo an electrical shock, this claim must fail. This
would be true as to a good many compensation claims for industrial
injury, for absolute ceriainty is often impossible of establishment. It
is only necessary, however, to meet the requirements of the burden of
proof under the usual rules of jurisprudence. These rules are thus inter-
preted on page 466 of Honnold on Workmen's Compensation, an authority
of high standing: ’

“This burden may be sustained by circumstantial evidence or infer
ence having substantial basis in the evidence. A preponderance of the
evidence is sufficient. By a preponderance of the evidence is meant such
evidence as, when weighed with that opposed to it, has more convineing
force from which it results that the greater probability is in favor of
the party on whom the burden rests.”

This widely accepted interpretation affords substantial basis for the
intelligent consideration of this record.

The weight of evidence shows that Frank Rodgers, in the years pre-
ceding his death was a man in good health and evidently able-bodied,
There is nothing to indicate that he collapsed and died in a lneman's
harness from natural caunses. On the other hand circumstances attend-
ing his death are strongly suggestive of electrocution. The demonstra-
tion by foreman, George Smith, on the pole and among the cross arms
and wires in a position assumed to have been occupied by Rodgera hy
no means served the purpose of convincing the eommissioner of the
improbability of electrocution. On the other hand it tended to emphasize
Imminent existing peril and inherent probability as to the cause of death,
On three sides of the workman 20 inches or less distant, were power
wires carrying 6600 volts of electricity. Down toward his feet was an-
other wire with a voltage of 220.

The defendants contend that insulation aforded safety. Thix wire
coverage had for more than ten years been exposed to weather condi.
tions, which substantially reduced its current control. Attempt to
establish the alleged fact of complete covering with no abrasion was not
successful. It is a matter of common knowledge that neither the sclen-
tist nor the practical expert has been able to reduce the action of elec-
tricity to anything like orderly process. Great risk is challenged without
disaster while out of conditions believed to be and usually are without
peril have many deaths occurred. It is also well understood that death
may occur from electrical shock without physical contact with the wire
conduector, The process of arcing, or the jumping of the current, from the
wire conductor with fatal results is an experience well established.
Peril is greatly increased if the human body under more or less of ex-
Pposure Is wet or moist. Rodgers had been working for hours in the
raln a short time previous to his collapse, and the showers were fol
lowed by temperature tending to promote rather than to reduce humidity.

-———‘—-—
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With this outline of circumstance the case of claimant is strong hyt
other developments substantially add to the weight of affirmative eyj
dence.

The testimony as to bodily injury, the bruise on the left breast, which
closely fits into the holes in the shirt and overall bib plainly show the
effect of scorching, and the significant condition of the crucifix carried on
the person of the deceased at the point of this bruise and the garment
abrasions afford substantial support. The weight of medical evidence
also favors award.

Orderly excrcise of the rule of inherent probability, of greater likeli
hood, easily brings this case within compensation coverage.

In Wasson Coal Company vs. Industrial Commission. 129 N, E. 786,
the supreme court of Illinols affirms award upon case history significant
in this connection. Frank Smith died suddenly in his mine room. He
had just returned to work after several days absence on account of flu
Sald he was not feeling well. An electric wire carrying voltage of 120
to 175 ran along near the roof of the mine room which was about six
feet high., The workman might have come in contact with this current
but this fact could not be established. There was very flimsy evidence as
to any show of electrical injury on the person of the deceased. The
court held it to have been much more probable that the death resulted
from electrocntion than from disease, and that it was only necessary
to show that “the reasonable inference to be drawn is that it arose ont
of employment.”

Rrigham Mines Company, et al. vs. Allsop, et al., 203 Pacific 644. This
is a Utah case. A mine foreman was found in a dying condition in a
mine tunnel. On the side of the tunnel was a live wire carrving abont
450 volts, 1t seemed Improbable that the deceased had physical contact
with this wire. It was so situated that the workman “could not come
in contact with it by accident unless he stood on something or unless he
raised his hand or carried something in his hand which would extend
above the head." The court held that death was not due to over-exertion
or to natural causes: that it was a fair inference from the circnmstantial
evidence that death was due to electrocution.

A late decision of the Towa supreme court is Beaman vs. lowa Electric
Company, 218 N. W, 343. In this case a workman while engaged with a
erew at plle driving met: instant death. He was a considerable distance
from any transmission wire. Pile driving machinerr at no time came
within eighteen inches of contact with such wire. Claim was made of
the employer for this death on the theory that it was due to electroention.
The defense strenuously denled obligation on the ground that the deadly
current could not have made the jump necessary to afford contact with
the deceased with the steel holsting machine as conductor. The supremé
court, however, said it could and did do this very thing, causing the death
of this workman.

Careful examination of these case histories and court conclusions
thereon serves substantially to strengthen the conviction that this widow
is entitled to all the relief afforded by the Towa compensation statute.

. 3
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It is therefore held that Frank Rodgers came to his death July 18, 1928,
by electrocution arising out of and in the course of his employment,
The arbitration decision is affirmed.
Dated at Des Moines, this Tth day of June, 1929,
J A. B. FUNK,
lowa Industrial Commissioner,
No appeal.

MINE GAS AS CAUSE OF DISABILITY—AWARD DENIED

. H. Williams, Claimant,
Vs,
Central lowa Fuel Company, Defendant.
John T. Clarkson, R. U. Woodeock, for Claimant:
Sargent, Gamble & Reed, A. B. Howland appearing, for Defendant.

In Review

Claimant alleges that, arising out of employment February 24, 1927,
he sustained serious disability owing to exposure to noxious gases in No.
4 mine of the defendant employer.

In arbitration at Chariton January 16, 1928, award was denied,

Claimant Williams testifies he had been in the employ of the defends
ant as a miner for nine or ten years. Along about the 24th of Febru-
ary, 1927, he says "I just got that weak I had to give up. 1 couldn’t
do no more.” “I was done that was all.” Didn't bother his stomach
much nor give him much headache., Describes various symptoms of
dizziness, trembling, burning sensations in his throat, ete. Worked till
noon and afternoon until “something after two o'clock.” He worked
no more that day. On the 25th the mine was shut down. On the 26th
he worked part of the day. He worked in the forenoon, mining being
suspended as usual in the afternoon, it being Saturday. States the fumes
or odor were a mixture of black damp and sulphur, the odor belng some-
what the same.

Some distance from the mouth of the mine was what Is known as a
dump, such as is found in the vicinity of all mining operations. This
dump is composed of mine refuse including sulphurous substances to-
gether with particles of fine coal. The presence of this latter substance
develops at times in various parts of the dump smoldering fire due to
spontaneous combustion. It appears in the record, and Is admitted by
the defendant, that when the wind was in a certain quarter, smoke more
or less charged with sulphur fumes entered the mouth of the mine
promoting discomfort among the workmen if in considerable quantities.
On rare occasions miners had kept out of the mine or left their work
b e of this a ce.

Claimant evidently seeks to establish the fact that disability alleged to
exlst since February 24, 1927, is due to a ~ombination of canses involved
in the presence in his working quarters on February 24, 1927, of noxious
kases arising from sulphur fumes entering from the dump and black
damp developed within the mine area.

Al the original review hearing December 5, 1928, Evan Jenkins testi-
fled that, owing to the offensive condition of mine atmosphere due to
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smoke from the dump, the mine in which Williams was engaged shy
down at two o'clock, February 24, 1927. He says he went out at this
time. At the adjourned review hearing December 12, 1928, it was con-
clusively shown in the record that on the 24th day of February, 1927, this
witness produced more coal than on any other day in the last half of this
month, and that his production was far in excess of his average dally
output, Indicating no shut down as alleged.

This utterly destroys what seemed to be important evidence as g
condition of the atmosphere in the mine at the date in question, On the
stand the witness admits that his recollection of cireumstances to which
he testified was somewhat hazy and to this fact is doubtless due his con-
splcuous error as to the shut down, alleged to have been due to bad air,

Prof. C. N. Kinney, for thirty-one years professor of chemistry at Drake
University, testifies at length. He had occasion to make chemical
analysis of samples of air taken from this mine in the early part of
April, 1927. He says that air from these sample bottles were not found
to contain anything harmful to a human being in the contents appearing
The record discloses evidence of taking in good faith of these samples
from the Willlams' room in mine No. 4 on March 9, 1927, and with
proper identification of sample bottles submitted. Dr. Kinney describes
symptoms developed in the human system by the inhalation of carbon
dioxide or black damp and sulphur dioxide arising from burning sulphur,
He shows the influence of each to be distinctively different in its effect
upon the human system, In the case of sulphur fumes he tends to show
that the effect upon exposure is such as to drive the victim to fresh
alr before permanent injury can occur; that the influence of fresh
alr in a comparatively short time tends to avert injurious consequences.
Witness does not seom to think that exposure to sulphur gas would
be serlous in Its effect upon the bronchial area if the workman was
in falr state of health., With all other possibilities excluded, the fumes
may have served as bronchial irritant, though no previous impairment
is shown. Queries In cross examination seem to suggest weak lungs
or mining asthma as pre-existing and the witness was asked to take
the same into consideration.

February 27, 1927, Dr. 8. L. Throckmorton was called by claimant
At the arbitration hearing he says at that time Williams had “a cough
and he also complained of his chest and breathirg.” Says his lungs
were practically clear and his heart was O. K. The doctor does not
seemed to have called again but says claimant “was up to my office,
though, after some—tablets which | had had him on and sat around
there and chinned awhile, but that was after this"—these visits are
said to have been “just ome or two occasions.” Witness was of the
opinion that his condition was not such as to disable him long from
following his normal work.

In this record appears the deposition of Dr. D. J. Glomset taken
October 24, 1927, The witness had examined Williams during the month
of March, 1927. He recites at some length history given by claimant
at that time. Says he found what he took to be chronic bronchitis.
Says breathing of sulphur fumes would aggravate this trouble. Found
him deficient in red cells. The breathing of impure air could causé

WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION SERVICE 85

this. Seemed to think a rigid spine and limitation of head motion,
due to ailment long previous to February, 1927, might have contributed
to his condition at the time of his examination. Quoting:

“Q. And there is nothing in the symptoms or conditions which you
found that necessarily indicate the presence of the disatility, weakness,
as the result of the character of the air the patient had hreathed,

A. No, except the story: the story he gave me.

Q. So that in giving the opinion that you have given us here that
this mljght have been one of the exciting or contributing causes, the
breathing of bad air or sulphur fumes, you have accepted the patient’s
story as to the ahsence of other causes, T take it

A. Yes, sir"”

Found the bronchitis and the findings in the lungs indleated that
he had had trouble there for some time. “The whole thing could not
have been caused by an injury that occurred at one time” The doctor
says, algo that from an exposure of a day and an atmosphere where
it was not sufficient to produce choking or interfere with the patient
continning his work, he would not expect any il effects then of a
permanent nature.

Cross Examination:

“Q. And in inhaling sulphur fumes, it having an irritating effect, in
a party suffering from defective lungs, what is your opinfon whether
it would or would not have a tendency to very materially aggravate
that?

!A. Certainly would; the weaker the lungs the greater the aggrava-
tion,

. And bring on immediate trouble?

A, Yes, sir.
Q. And that would be true of a bronchitis?
A. Yes, sir”

Deposition page 13:

Q. But say an exposure of a day and an atmosphers where It was
not suMMicient to produce choking or interfere with the patlent con.
tinuing his work, you would not expect any 11l effects then of a perma
nent nature,

A. Not it he was well before he started.

Q. Well, supposing that he had an anemic condition, something that
way, yon would not expect any particularly permanent {1l effects there
would yon?

A. Not unless he was weakened before.”

The witness several times emphasizes the fact that his testimony
A8 to causes and conditionz due to exposure In the mine I based
entirely upon the story of claimant.

No medical evidence showing the condition of claimant based upon
examination within much more than a year past appears in the record.

This iz probably the largest record of evidence ever submitted to
this tribunal. It covers a very wide range of inquiry producing a mass
of technical detall relative to mine development, working conditions,
alr currents, noxious gases, physical impairment, ete. Out of this mass
conclugion must he reached as to whether or not disability as alleged
on the part of C. H. Williams is due to mine expericnce February
24, 1027,

The claimant evidently assumes to show that he was at the date
hamed exposed to twin perils in the nature of carbon dioxide and
sulphur dioxide. In his testimony he seems not to emphasize the
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former as definitely responsible for his impairment, though he by ne
means dismisses the black damp as a contributing factor. His test.
mony is not reassuring. His statements as to exposure on the day of
alleged injury and also as to gymptomatic development are very looge
and speculative. In the endeavor to cover the whole range of plansible
possibility he fails to invite confid as to alleged fact or inheremt
probability.

In the deposition of Dr. Glomset there seems little reference to black
damp and much emphasis on the sulphur fumes. The witness is held
to the theory that the sulphur effect was especially serious because
of pre-existing bronchial conditions. This theory is not consistent with
the statements of claimant, On pages 29-30 of the main transcript ap
pears the following:

“Q. Now what was the general condition of your health Mr. Wik
liams for the year or so ptior to Fehruary, 1927?

A. How did I feel?

Q. How was your general health?

A. 1 felt pretty good, was working right along and felt all right,

Q. You were working right along were you?

A. Yes, salr.

Q. Did you miss any time from the mine when the places were
working?

A. Over sickness you mean?

Q. Yes,

A, No

We again quote from direct examination on page 53:

“Q. So that when you began working in No. 6§ room on the 10th
north were there any il effects hanging over from any bad air experd:
enced at that time, so far as you were able to detérmine?

A. No, | couldn’t tell it any, just at that time.

Q. And were you at that time able to do your ordinary and normal
work?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. As you had been say for years past, several years past?

A, Yes, sir”

Quoting further from page 70 where claimant testifies in response Lo
query of his counsel:

“(, When In your normal physical condition before February 25th
were you able to and did you operate your drilling machine with the
crank on the end of the thread bar?

A. Well, it just depends—

Q. Whenever you could get to it?

A. Yes, when 1 could get on the end | would get on the end; done
most of the drilling on the end.

Q. Yes. And were you always able to do it so far as your physical
condition was concerned?

A. Yes, sir”

So claimant fails successfully to contend that disability upon which
his case is based is due to any extent to susceptibility because of
bronchial or other physical trouble pre-existing and this fact takes most
of his support out of the testimony of Dr, Glomset and Professor Kinney.

The record seems to show that there is distinet differences between
the effects of exposure to sulphur dioxide and carbon dioxide. The
influence of the latter is Insidions and sneaking, as it were, frequently
inflicting serious conditions without detection of its presence. With
sulphur the effect of exposure is usually more sensational than serious,
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and the rush of impulse to seek fresh air tends to forestall continuing
impalrment. It seems to be understood that such effect as may be pro.
duced by sulphur fumes is usually of a temporary character.

Testimony of a number of workmen is submitted to prove the existence
of bad air in this mine of defendant. It is as asserted herein that the
air was more or less tainted in the working quarters, some witnesses
alleging damp encroachment while others feature sulphur fumes, and
some claim both noxious elements were more or less in evidence. As
to dates and effects testimony is quite indefinite, at least two witnesses
admitting they testify out of hazy recollection, and hazy recollection
does not tend substantially to support an affirmative case.

The record would seem to discl that defendant's mine No. 4
Is In equipment and in general working conditions of the usual order
existing in the better mining plants of the state. The plat of premises
submitted as “exhibit P 2" shows the usunal situation as to shafts, rooms
and passageways. The ventilating system is of the usual character
in modern mining operations. The offending dump is a necessary ad-
Junct of all mining plants and there is nothing unusual about its char-
acter or situation.

Conditions and circumstances submitted do not justify the opinion
that unusual mining hazard existed on the 24th day of February, 1927,
or upon any other day. While miners testify to experience at indefinite
dates when they felt the effect of one or both of the dioxides, no evidence
appears as to any other occasion during the many years of the oper-
ation of this mine when any workman lost time because of disabllity
due to bad alr. While this is not conclusive, it is significant.

Scrutiny of this entire record is not convincing as to contentlon of
clalmant., As result of exposure February 24, 1927, such disability as
he alleges might or may have developed, but it is impossible to reach
the conclusion that C. H. Williams has by a preponderance of the evi-
dence established lability on the part of the defendant employer,

Wherefore the arbitration decision is affirmed.

Dated at Des Moines, lowa, this 20th day of December, 1928,

A. B. FUNK,
Towa Ind ial Commissioner,

Appeal pending.

HAND INJURED—AWARD LIMITED TO MEMBER VALUE

Frank Pendley, Claimant,
Vs,
Cook & Stucker, Employers,
Travelers Insurance Company, Insurance Carrier, Defendants.
Helndel & Hunt, for Claimant;
E. R. Vincent, for Defendants.

In Review
In the employ of Cook & Stucker, September 4, 1924, Frank Pendley
Sustalned serfous Injury to his right hand in handling hot asphalt in
baving operations.
Arbitration finding was for the defendants on the ground that payment
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had already been made to an amount in excess of the statutory provision
for hand injury.

Counsgel for claimant has submitted statements and affidavits tending to
show that the loss of function in the impaired member has resulted in
disability and loss of earning power substantially in excess of the legal
schedule value. It is alleged by the claimant that existing incapacity
makes it difficult if not impossible to find work he is able to do.

Drs. W. A. Butt and C. W. Donellson of Carroll county, Arkansas, upon
the basis of professional contact with the case, state that the hand has
been disabled to the extent of 75 per cent and that in view of this im-
palrment of earning capacity, settlement should be on the basis of 75
per eent to total permanent disubility of the entire physical structure,

Dr. W. L. Watkins of Boone county, Arkansas, declares that he finds
hand disability amounting to 75 per cent of member loss and that on
account of s bearing upon earning power, the degree of permanent dis
ability is 90 per cent of total.

1t is therefore contended by counsel that the payment made by the in-
surer In full settlement Is wholly inadequate. It is further contended that
it it shall be necessary to confine obligation to loss of hand [unction In
addition to the extent of permanent disability allowance as temporary
total should be made on the basis of time lost.

The denial of award in arbitration is in strict accordance with the
statute as interpreted by the lowa supreme court in Moses vs. National
Union Coal Mining Company, 184 N. W. T46.

Alfred Moses had sustained injury to a foot resulting in incapacity for
a perfod considerably in excess of 125 weeks. It was therefore coutended
that compensation settlement should not be confined to the legal schedule
value of a foot. 1t was nlso contended that if this rule could not be
adopted the workman should have payment for time lost from earning
In addition to the legal member value,

Both of these contentions were negatived by the court. Quoting from
the court opinion as expressd by Justice Stevens:

“Appellant suffered but a #lngle injury to the ankle. The ankylosis and
sinuses, with resulting suppuration, are due to this injury alone. As the
right to compensation is based upon disability producing impairment
or loss of earning capacity, the schedule specifically fixing the amount to
be pald on account of disability resulting from a single injury must be con-
strued as exclusive of all other provisions of the act. The compensation
fixed and allowed under subdivision (h) is for injury producing tem
porary disability, and that allowed for the loss of a member, or
use thereof, is for disability partial in character and permanent in
quality, and compensation under one clause precludes compensation under
the other. * * * Appellant is entitled to compensation either
paragraph 18 of subdivision (j) or under subdivision (h). In no
is lie entitled to compensation under both. The statute contemplates but
one compensation for the severance of, or the loss of the use of
member.”

This decision seems definitely to settle the issue in this case The
injury of Pendley is shown to have been confined to the hand and thert
is therefore no escape from the conclusion that consideration cin be
given herein only to the extent of impairment existing in such member.

The statement of Dr. 0. J. Fay in this record estimates loss of function
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at 30 per cent disability of the hand. The estimate of Dr. Wolcott as to
loss Is 50 per cent. The Arkansas doctors fix member impairment at 75
per cent,

The deputy commissioner was well within the record in finding that
hand incapacity does not exceed 66 2/3 per cent. In review it was alleged
by counsel for the defense that there was error in the arbitration record
in the showing of payment for 105 weeks which was in fact 115 weeks.
Confining calculation to the record, however. payment far in excess of
legal liability is clearly shown.

Therefore the arbitration decision denying further award is affirmed.

Dated at Des Moines this 28th day of October, 1929.

A. B. FUNK,
lowa Industrial Commissioner,
Appeal pending.

INDEPENDENT EMPLOYMENT—HOUSE PAINTING JOB

E. A. Allard, Claimant,
Vs,
T. R. MeNeal, Employer,
Federal Surety Company, Insurance Carrier, Defendant.
Halligan, Fountain & Stewart, P, H, Cless appearing, for Clalmant,

Parrigh, Cohen, Guthrie, Watters & Halloran, D. €. Nolan appearing, for
Defendant.

—
]

In Review

The defendant is engaged in real estate and buflding operations, In
August of 1928, he engaged A. L. Brady to paint a new house. This work
was definitely done on a contract basis. Mr. Brady painted a second
house under like conditions. He then continued painting house after
honse for McNeal without specific contract, ficuring his charges on re-
quirement as to material furnished and time employed ut $1.00 an hour,
which is evidently the basis of the contract work.

Defendant made payment to the painter on statements submitted. He
kept no time record and Brady was free to do the work as he pleased and
when he pleased, being held in obligation only as to the character of his
work and its completion so as not to interfere with plans of delivery on
sale of the building.

On two or three i MeNeal ted the ployment of ad-
ditional help, evidently in order to carry a job to early completion. Brady
Would then put on extra help, fixing the price at $0.75 an hour and charg-
Ing McNeal at the rate of $1.00 per hour.

Under this arrangement Brady put the clalmant to work March 20,
1929, subsequently paying him for the time he served, which was but for
a few hours because of serlous injury sustained by Mr. Allard in falling
from a ladder,

The record plainly shows that Brady was an independent contractor In
his relations with MeNeal who was contracting for completed service—
for accomplished results, McNeal's connection with the employment of
clalmant was only to the extent of expressing a desire to Brady for faster
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work than he could himself accomplish, whereupon Brady increased
painting capacity by securing extra help in the person of this claimant,

There is nothing in this record tending to show any responsibility on
the part of McNeal for the employment of this unfortunate claimant,
Brady was an independent contractor without authority from McNeal to
place any person on the McNeal payroll for services rendered on this
painting job.

Henee it becomes necessary to affirm the arbitration decision finding
for the defendant.

Dated at Des Moines this 9th day of September, 1929,

A. B. FUNK,
lowa Industrial Commissioner,
No appeal.
COAL MINING WHICH CLASSIFIES AS INDEPENDENT
EMPLOYMENT
Lafe Walton, Claimant,
vs,

Smith & Robison, Defendants.
Stanley & Stanley, for Claimant;
l.ee R. Watts, for Defendants.

In Review

Action is brought to secure compensation benefits based on the loss of
an arm alleged to have occurred in coal mining October 16, 1928,

Defendants deny that at the time of this injury employment relation-
ship such as would bring this case within compensation coverage exlsted
between this claimant and Smith & Robison.

Arbitration finding Is for the defendants on the ground that on October
16, 1928, the claimant was engaged in the capacity of independent con-
tractor and was not in the employ of Smith & Robison.

This record discloses a unique industrial situation. In the vicinity of
Carbon, Adams county, exists coal deposits in veins less than two feet
in depth. It seems impracticable to operate mines here on the usual com-
mercial or shipping basis, but for many years a number of mines have
been operated to serve the wagon trade of a limited territory which has
called for the service of workmen to a number frequently in excess of
one hundred.

In the earlier years of this mining development the coal dug by each
miner was deposited in a pile separate and the workman Wwas active in
promoting sales from his own dump. This arrangement became very un
satistactory to all concerned, for the reason that it resulted in the maoré
or less disastrous cutting of sales prices,

Evidently by agreement between the miners and operators it was subr
sequently arranged that all coal coming to the top should be thrown
together, book account being kept as to the amount produced by each
workman.

As theretofore each miner was permitted to dig for his own consump
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tion all coal required and to give orders against any credit he might
have on the books kept at the mine.

Under this arrangement the sales responsibility devolves chiefly on
the owners of the mines. While there is a Saturday pay day, it seems
to be understood that payment is made substantially on the basis of eoal
disposed of rather than of the amount produced. When the demand is
good full payment is made. When it is slack only partial payment
pccurs on pay day. distributed pro rata among the men. Then when the
clean up comes full settlement is made. It is evident that under this
rule a considerable balance often accumulates in favor. of the miner.
One workman testifies that at one time there was due him a sum in excess
of $90.00, all of which he received in the “clean up.”

The coal bushel is the unit of measurement at these mines. The
eurrent sale price is fifteen cents per bushel. Of this sum the miner
receives ten cents, the operator four cents, and the lessor or titleholder
the remaining one cent as royvalty,

Careful consideration of this record leads to the conclusion that this
mining enterprise at Carbon is not conducted on anything like an ordi.
nary wage earning basis. There is no escape from the impression that
eoal production and sale proceeds on a co-operative plan. By well estab-
lished rule the workmen are not entitled to cash wage payment until the
product of their labor is marketed, though as a matter of accommodation
the operators make partial paymenis on coal not yet sold.

All through the evidence in this case it appears that miners applying
are seeking a place to work out an income rather than a job on fixed
earning basis. No mine operated on a strictly commercial basis ever
allows miners to dig coal for their own use without cost other than their
own labor. No mine employer on a usual wage paying basis ever allows
his workmen to give orders for coal or cash against his Individual coal
output,

Under the old rule of segregating the product of each miner sales were
made by either operator or workman, each party being accorded his
distributive share of proceeds. The later rule would seem to have made
no change in working plans except as to the keeping of books showing
the share of each miner in the common dump and Imposing upon the
operator the chief responsibility as to the sale and distribution of pro-
ceeds. Pointed inquiry in eross examination seems to have well estab-
lished the general understanding prevailing from the claimant's own
witnesses and this understanding is mot consistent with ordinary wage
earning,

It is alleged that under their working agreement with the miners
Smith & Robison exercise the right of hiring and firing men at will
This s true only in a Hmited way. The workmen are given a mine room
in which to work when a vacancy occurs or when a new room is opened,
In the work of mining the men are given no orders as to methods to
employ in production. They are held in obligation only as to the require-
ment of keeping their working quarters in order, in making reasonable
use of the opportunity afforded for output and limited as to over pro-
duction when the accumulation of coal on top I too much in excess of
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sales demand. Such authority as is exercised is not inconsistent with
independent employment. "

The arbitration holding that at the time of his injury Lafe Walton
was an independent contractor is hereby afflirmed.

Dated at Des Moines this 23rd day of Seplember, 1929,

A. B. FUNK,
lowa Industrial Commissioner,
rommissioner affirmed District Court; no further appeal.

INDEPENDENT EMPLOYMENT—AWARD UENll‘iP—WORK ON ROOF
Lola A. Vaverka, Claimant,

V8.
Castone Products Company, Employer,
Fidelity & Casualty Company of New York, Insurance Carrier, Defendants.
Edward J. Dahms, for Claimant;
Carl F. Jordan, for Defendants.

In Review

In arbitration it was found

“That the deceased as a member of the partnership of Dvorak and
Vaverka was engaged in the capaeity of an independent contractor at the
time of his fatal injury and was not an employee of the defendant com-
pany within the meaning of the compensation law.”

The record discloses these facts and circumsiances:

The Castone Products Company of Cedar Rapids contracts to put on
tile roofs of material of its own manufacture. The Ideal Tin Shop repre
sented at the time of this fatal injury a business conducted as a co
partnership by Frank Dvorak and Leo Vaverka. In June, of 1927, George
T. Willielm as manager of the defendant employer engaged with these
parties to do the construction work on the roof of a dwelling in Cedar
Rapids.

On the 18th of June, 1927, due to the failure of seaffolding, Frank
Dvorak and Leo Vaverka, at work on this job, fell a distance of some
seventeen feet, the fall resulting in the death of the latter eleven days
later,

Defendants contend the deceased at the time of his death was engaged
in independent employment.

The lowa supreme court is on record in a number of cases in the
interpretation of the distinction between independent employment and
ordinary wage earning. These conclusions are cited:

Pace vs, Appanoose County, 168 N. W, 916:

“(7) The test oftenest resorted to, in determining whether one is an
employe or an independent contractor, is to ascertain whether the employe
represents the master as to the result of the work or only as to the means.
If only as to the result and himself selects the means, he must be re
garded as an independent contractor.

“(8) 'The mere fact that the owner may have an overseer or architect
to see that the work complies with the contract or that the work is to be
to the owner's satisfaction does not change the character of the contract
if it meets the test stated.

“(10, 11) Whatever the other conditions of the contract may be, if
in its essential features it provides that the employer retains no contro
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over the details of the work, but leaves to the other party the determina-
tion of the manner of doing it, without subjecting him to the control of the
employer, the party undertaking to do the work is a contractor and not a
mere employe. * * *'

Norton vs. Day Coal Co., 180 N. W. 905:

“(6) VI The relationship of master and servant does not exist unless
there be the right to exercise control over methods and detail—to direct
how the result is to be obtained. The power to direct must go bevond
telling what is to be done—to telling ‘how it is to be done * * *

“6A It is elementary doctrine, and it wounld fill many pages to cite
the support it has, that one iz not an employe if he may choose his own
method of working—the mode and manner of doing the work, * * *°

“It is not enough that there be power to see to it that the work is done
to the satisfaction of the one who gives it. This power is control over
ultimate results and not over methods, means and details. * * »

“The mere making of suggestions as to the methods of work to be pur-
sued will not establish the relationship of master and servant, even though
the suggestion be as to details or as (o the co-operation necessary to bhring
about the larger general result.”

The record in this case cannot be made to bring it within these plain
rules of law. Manifestly here was a roofing concern with construction
to let. Here was also the ldeal Tin Shop in the market for such jobs,
Defendant’s Exhibits A and B consist of statements made almost immedi-
ately after this accident by Frank Dvorak and George Wilhelm, men who
knew all there was to know about this working relationship. On the
witness stand both of these men verify the signatures to these exhibits
and testify to the truth of the same. These statements doubtless recite
the actual situation existing and they clearly indicate independent em-
ployment. It is not necessary, however, to rely on these exhibits. as the
transeript of evidence after excluding them fails to afford adeguate sup-
port to the claim of this dependent widow,

Dvorak testifies that the day this roofing job was begun he took with
him to assist in construction work a man regularly in the employ of his
firm. This incident is not at all significant of time work on (he part of
the construction firm. The second day the extra man stayed in the shop
and the two partners pursued the work together, until later in the day
when the fatal injury oceurred There has been no understanding as to
hours or as {o any details of the construction process with this exception:
It is alleged that the manager of the producls company suggested that
the work begin at a certain point on the roof. This suggestion need be
considered only as a necessary requirement for ultimate satisfactory
results, Dvorak testifies as to these suggestions, “we followed them as
far as we were able.” In testimony, however, Dvorak and Wilhelm are
in disagreement as to the particular point of the roof to which this sug-
gestion applied. Dvorak admits his firm had never before worked with
the kind of tile used on this job and that with this material it was neces-
sary to start at the place indicated by Wilhelm, This ineident, un-
important in fact, is all there is in the record in any possible degree
Indicating that the deceased partner might not have come to his death
through independent employment.

The price agreed upon for laying the tile was $5.50 a square. Counsel
slresses the assumption that this price afforded no profit to the workman
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as being significant of the ordinary wage earning. It does not appear
of record who fixed the price. So far as is known for our purpose f
may or may not he suggestive of profitable returns. The fact that a Job
is taken at a price affording no margin does not tend to make ordinary
wage earning out of independent conigacting.

The arbitration decision denying award is hereby afirmed.

Signed at Des Moines, this 8th day of March, 1929,

A. B. FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner,
No appeal.

EMPLOYMENT, INDEPENDENT, OF PAINTER LETTERING A TRUCK

C. 8. Carothers, Claimant,
’ V8,
C. T. Durand, doing business under the name and style of National Furni-
ture Movers, Employer,
Towa Mutual Liability Ins, Co., Insurance Carrier, Defendants,
Holt & Albee, for Claimant;
E. N, and M. C. Farber, for Defendants,

In Review

Claimant is a painter by trade. During the month of May, 1928, he
lettered a van or truck for C, T. Durand, employer herein. After work:
ing several days and when the job was nearly complete, the workman
sustained physical injury resulting in incapacity from earning.

The defendants contend that at the time of this injury, C. S. Carothers
was engaged in independent employment and therefore he was without
compensation coverage,

Claimant testifies in arbitration that he did this work by the hour,
furnishing his own materials and working equipment. Says Durand
“told me how he wanted it done and 1 did it as he suggested.” That
“he suggested at different times how he wanted it dome.” There was no
arrangement as to price or as to how many hours a day he was to work.

Testifying for the defense, C. T. Durand says he gave the job of letter-
ing this truck to claimant. He had a number of times given such com-
missions to him, and in all cases the work was done by the job. Didn't
keep track of hours put in. Didn't ask claimant how much this job
would cost, for the reason that he had done another similar job of truek
painting for $20.00 which seemed to afford a basis for the charge.

In cases following, the lowa supreme court has given clear and cogent
expression of opinion important herein:

Pace vs. Appancose County, 168 N. W. 916:

“(T) 'The test oftenest resorted to, in determining whether one is an
employe or an independent contractor, is to ascertain whether the em-
ploye represents the master as to the result of the work or only as to the
means. If only as to the result and himself selects the means, he must
be regarded as an Independent contractor.

“(8) The mere fact that the owner may have an overseer or architect
to see thut the work complies with the contract or that the work s to

be to the owner's satisfaction does not change the character of the eon
tract, If it meets the test stated.
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*{10, 11) Whatever the other conditions of the contract may be, if in
its essential features It provides that the employer retains no control
over the details of the work, but leaves to the other party the determina-
tion of the manner of doing it, without subjecting him to the control
of the employer, the party undertaking to do the work is a contractor
and not a mere employe. * * e

Norton vs, Day Coal Co., 180 N. W. 905:

“(6) VI The relationship of master and servant does not exist un-
less there be the right to exercise control over methods and detail—to
direct how the result is to be obtained. The power to direct must go
beyond telling what is to be done—to telling *how it is to he done’ = =

“(6a) It Is elementary doctrine, and it would fill many pages to cite
the support it has, that one is not an employe if he may choose his own
method of working—the mode and manner of doing the work, * * *

“It is not enough that there be power to see to it that the work Is done
to the satisfaction of the one who gives it. The power is control gver
ultimate results and not over methods, means and detajls. = * *

“The mere making of suggestions as to the methods of work to be pur-
sued will not establish the relationship of master and servant, even
though the suggestion be as to details or as to the co-operation neeessary
to bring about the larger general result.”

By no process of comparison can the ecircumstances of this case fall
to bring it within the rule of excluslon so plainly stated in these c¢itations.

When construction work is ordered, the man who wants the work done
has in his mind a plan he has developed. This plan finds expression
in specifications which may be printed, written or oral. All instruction
to men who carry into effect these specifications necessary to secure
definite results in complete performance, is entirely consistent with in-
dependent employment. In order to establish the relation of employer
and employee within the meaning of the statute it Is necessary for the
workman to be held in obligation as to hours of service, as to methods
employed in producing results and other important details of service.

This claimant insists Durand told him how he wanted the work done
and he accepted his suggestions. Counsel assumes this to mean sueh
supervision, direction and control us to bring the work within the statu-
tory requirement in usual wage earning. This view Is not tenable, The
record plainly shows that supervision and direction exercised was only
such as was necessary to results satisfactory to Durand. The workman
chose his own hours, furnished his own materials and equipment, used
his own methods, and was responsible only for results

On page 11 of the arbitration transeript appears the following:

“Q. But he had no control of what hour you should come or what hour
you should leave, did he?
A. Nobody does when you work for anybody.”

Evidently claimant has no understanding as to the requirement of
compensable relationship, doubtless due to his common experience as a
contracting painter. In the record appears a poster introduced as de-
fendant's exhibit 1. This poster solicits commercial sign work glving
a place of business and naming many business patrons. The record shows
this exhibit to have been ruled out, but the record is evidently In error,
as both parties later refer to same in query and argument, as being live
matter, and moreover, it would seem to be competent testimony. This
evidence, though not controlling, is significant as to claimant’s general
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relations with the painting trade and consistent with his view that
“nobody” controls hours of service “when you work for anybody.” Thig
conclusion is consistent with job painting and independent employment,

Evidence snbmitted at the review hearing adds no support to the cop.
tention of claimant. It simply emphasizes the allegation that Durand
told the workman how he wanted the work done. The “how™ plainly
relates, not to ways and means of performance, or to hours of service,
but merely to ultimate results required by Durand of Carothers.

The arbitration holding that at the time of his Injury eclaimant was
working as an independent contractor is hereby affirmed.

Dated at Des Moines, this 24th day of February, 1920,

A. B. FUNK,
lTowa Imdustrial Commissioner,
Appeal pending.

EMPLOYMENT, INDEPENDENT—OPERATING ROAD GRADER
BY CONTRACT

K. L. Preston, Claimant,
V8.
Adams County, lowa, Employer,
lowa Mutual Liability Insurance Company, Insurance Carrier, Defendants,
Meyerhoff & Watts, for Claimant;
Sampson & Dillon, for defendants,

In Review

This claimant sustained serious injury, December 8, 1927, while engaged
in operating a road grader on a county highway near the town of Corning.

It was held in arbitration that at the time of his injury, R. L. Preston
was engaged in the capacity of independent contractor, and was not an
employee of Adams county, within the meaning of the compensation law.

Claimant testifies that he first began to work for Adums county about
ten years ago; that “about the forepart of February, 1927 he entered
into a verbal agreement with a Mr, Saum, at that time county engineer;
that this verbal contract included in its terms that Preston and a Mr
Cooper were to jointly engage in performing various services during the
year 1927, upon a section of highway covering a distance of 614 miles.
These services were 10 be performed on the hour basis and each man
was Lo keep his own record of time employed and make settlement with
the board of supervisors.

Claimant states that on December 8, 1927, he was operaling a road
grader drawn by four horses owned by himself. Becoming frightened,
the team ran away, resulting in injuries as described.

The petition for arbitration filed February 22, 1928, recites that elaim-
ant was employed by Adams county as a patrolman and in argument
counsel refers to him as serving in such capacity at the time of his injury.

Chapter 243 of the Code declares that the Board of Supervisors shall
appoint patrolmen, and no other provision is made for their appointment.
It is also declared that “said patrolmen shall give bond for the faithful
performance of their duties,” etc.; furthermore that each road patrolman
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shall devote his entire time to his duties, personally inspecting roads
once a month and oftener if notified as to defects on roads assigned to
him.

R. L. Preston was not appointed by the board, but engaged by the
county engineer. He gave no bond as patrolman as required by siatute.
His work was intermittent and occasional; by no means continuous, as
he gave a large part of his time to farming operations, and in other
respects he failed to classify as a patrolman within the meaning of the
statute. Therefore, it is not necessary in this connection to decide as
to employment relationship of a county patrolman to the county in which
his services are performed.

It is necessary, however, to decide as to whether or not at the time
of his injury, R. L. Preston was in the service of Adams county in usual
employment relationship or as an independent contractor,

Contract of service, involving the ordinary relationship between em-
ployer and employee, implies that the workman shall be held in obliga-
tion to the employer for certain hours of service; that he shall be suhject
to the direction, supervision and control of the employer as to the means
of performing such service. While not conclusive the method of pay-
ment is suggestive as to whether or not this relationship exists,

Contract for service is held to imply that the workman is obligated
merely as to results of his work, that is to say, his finished job is what
he contracts to deliver rather than any particular period of service,
Where the workman himself decides az to when and how he will do his
work, as to means employed, and as to regularity of hours of serviee,
independent contracting is indieated. This situation is emphasized where
the workman is paid by the hour, keeping his own account as to hours
engaged and entirely at liberty to do his work as he pleases and when
he pleases, provided he meets the usual requirement of good workman-
ship and as to reasonable dispatch in performance.

The Iowa supreme court has repeatedly expressed opinion bearing on
this situation.

In Pace vs. Appanoose County, 168, N. W. 816, it is held that “the
mere fact that the owner may have an overseer or architect to see that
the work complies with the contract or that the work is to be to the
owner's satisfaction does not change the character of the contract” * * *
“Pace, in fact, determined the days on which the hauling should be done
and what portion of each day it should proceed, Practically, he was
merely to furnish and apply the power by which the scraper was hauled,
and all this in the manner to be determined by himsell.”

In Storm vs. Thompson, 170 N. W. 402, the Court further interprets a
contract for service: Speaking of claimant, it is stated: “He was not
limited in the time for the performance of the work except as the law
implied a duty to complete it within a reasonable period. He controlled
his own time, and was in all essential respects his own master, being
answerable to the defendant for nothing except the accomplishment of
the promised result.”

In Norton vs. Day Coal Company, 180 N. W. 805, the Court says as to
Independent employment: “The relationship of master and servant does
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not exist unless there be the right to exercise control over methods and
detall—to direct how the result is to be obtained. The power to direet
must go heyond telling what is to be done—to telling ‘how It is to pe
done.” * * * It is not enough that there be the power to see to it that the
work is done to the satisfaction of the one who requests it, This power
is control over ultimate results and not over methods, means and detajls,
* * * “The mere making of suggestions as to the methods of work to be
pursued will not establish the relationship of master and servant even
though the suggestion be as to details or as to the cooperation neu;mry
to bring about the larger general result.”

It would appear ‘that the chief service to be performed by Preston
under his agreement with Adams county was road dragging. It further
appears, however, that the rather loosely constructed agreement involved
the performance of much other work in the way of ditching, culvert
building and repairing, and such other service as might be required
each task, however, being apparently separate and distinct from athe;
jobs performed or necessary,

From this record it is reasonable to assume that all engagements
of R. L. Preston with Adams county will classify as independent em-
ployment. We are most concerned, however, with the situation which
developed the injury December 8, 1927. Preston was then operating a
grader in the removal of snow from the highway. As was his custom,
he decided the use of the grader to be necessary. He had no instruction
a8 to means to be employed, He selected his own hours. 1t was for him
to decide how the work was to be done. He drove his own team. He was
only held In obligation to Adams county as to the character of his com-
pleted work.

In brief and argument reference is made to department decision in
Harn vs. O'Brien County, filed. January 5, 1925, and appearing on page
156 of our biennial report for 1926. In this case of road grading, em-
ployment was held to be independent. The case very closely resembles
the one under consideration in its details of employment relationship.
In the former case, however, there was a writlen contract, while in the
latter, the contract was verbal. .

The county engineer who made the engagement for 1927 with Preston
is not testifying. His successor, Engineer McClintock, assumes to give
this contract very broad interpretation as to the exercise of supervision
and control on the part of Adams county under its indefinite terms.
Much of his evidence on this point is inconsistent with the nature of this
employment and its usual pursuit. The testimony of claimant in his own
behalf clearly indicates the employment relationship and definitely classi-

fles him as an independent contractor
at the t
cember 8, 1927, e time of his injury, De

The arbitration decision is affirmed,
Dated at Des Moines, lowa, this 20th day of November, 1928,

A. B. FUNK,

Towa Industria er.
P u 1 Commission
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GRAVEL HAULER—INDEPENDENT EMPLOYMENT

John Mowatt, Claimant,
VS,
wm. Beu & Sons, Employers,
Fidelity & Casualty Company, Insurance Carrier, Defendants.
Geiser & Donohue, for Claimant;
€. W. M. Randall and Carl Jordan, for Defendants.

In Review

Arbitration finding is for the defendants on the ground that at the
time of his injury claimant was working in the capacity of independent
contracting.

In the month of September, 1929, Wm. Beu & Sons had a road grading
contract with Cerro Gordo county. Gravel haulers in their service fur-
pished their own trucks, their own gas and oil and repairs and were
paid on a yardage and mileage basis.

Regular hours of service were not required, except that the trucks
must be in readiness to take the gravel from the conveyor when in
operation. No work was required of the drivers except handling the
truck in recelving the load, driving the same to the point of delivery
and working the dumping device.

As the work was quite a distance from the public supply, the con-
tractors kept an oil station near the loading plant where haulers as a
matter of convenience had their tanks filled at thelr own expense, They
were at liberty to purchase gas elsewhere.

John Mowatt was injured September 13, 1928, a few days after he had
joined the truck procession. He had hauled his last load for the day.
He needed more gas to meet the requirements of the day following. (3
was getting dark when he went to the oil station. U'ncertain as to the
stage of gas in the tank as filling was in process he made inspection with
a lighted lantern when explosion inflicted very serlous bodily Injurles.

The defendants contend that at the time of his Injury John Mowatt
was in independent employment. They further contend that if lils service
relation was that of ordinary wage earning at the time of his Injury,
his day's work was done, and the injury did not arise out of employ-
ment.

In support of his contention as to employment obligation, clalmant
{elieu strongly upon Root vs. Shadbolt & Middleton, 133 N. W. 634. When
decided and ever since this case has been regirded as near the border
line of independent employment. Claimant Insists his claim Is much
stronger but his reason for this assumption is by no means clear. Evi-
dence as to direction and control of Root was not particularly strong,
but much more definite than herein. The exercise of control in loading,
hauling and dumping was more substantial. The requirement us to keep-
ing the pit in order was significant of control and it was in this part of
the work that Root lost his life in a cavein. The right of discharge had
recently been actually exercised because of persistent violation of pit rules.

It is a matter of common knowledge supported by evidence in this case
that the team drawn vehicle has been superseded by the motor truck.
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Loading is done by machinery and most of the process of gravel hauling
is automatic. It is further understood that when word goes out thag g
big job of grading is to be done in a given locality, without eql or
notice, haulers flock to that point for employment. Hiring simply eon.
sists in appearing on the job and going to work until the number of
trucks is equal to the loading capacity of the plant.

There Is on the part of the contractor little concern as to continuity
I of service so long as there is a truck at hand to take the place of one
dropping out of the procession, It has to be understood, of course, that
when this expensive machinery is in operation there is waste in lost
motion if capaeity production s not hauled away. Insistence on the
part of the contract or that there shall not be such irregularity in report-
ing for service on the part of the haulers as Lo reduce the necessary truck
supply and consequent waste of power and plant use is natural, and this
seems to have been the only concern of the Beus as to whether or not
haulers worked steadily, To insure practical conservation of plant re-
sources It Is necessary to Insist on some measure of punctuality and
continuity in service.

This situation would not tend to show that supervision, direction and
{ control of the workman is exercised to the extent of classifying the
employment as ordinary wage earning and not independent contracting
Given a place to load and told by someone other than the contractor where
to unload Is not suggestive of ordinary wage earning. It relates to results
rather than to methods of performance,

In the interest of the publie, by ranking authority the Beus, father and
sons, were lold where to dig and where to dump; alse as to how, when
and where to build the highway grade, yet no one claims they were other
than independent contractors,

Assuming, however, that these parties were under contract of serviee
on the part of the workman, there is yet another vital question to con-
sider. Claimant had completed his day's work when he dumped his last
load and quit the grade for the day. The act of filling his gas tank was
wholly self-serving. It was up to him to furnish and to keep in order
for service his truck equipment. Gasoline was kept by the contractors
evidently for their own use in the first place, and furthermore for the
accommodation of their haulers and, perhaps, for such profit as might
accrue to these sales. Buying gas of these contractors is not at all
significant of working relationship, Without gas supply and a fit outfit
Mowatt could not qualify either for service or to serve. It wis necessary
for him to present his equipment at the conveyor ready for practical use
as it is for the man who works with his hands to present himself for
duty In form for its requirement.

The case claimant submits of a man given award for disability sus
tained in caring for his own team out of working hours is an outstanding
example of unique judicial opinion. Had Oscar Root in Shadboldt &
Middleton employ been killed by one of his horses away from his field of
employment, it seems certain that here in lowa his widow could not have
recovered for his death,

It is fundamental everywhere in compensation jurisdiction that the

—-— -
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workman cannot recover for injury sustained going to or returning from
nis working place, The employer {8 not held for injury to his person
in any self-serving performance apart from his employment. In order
to meet service requirement it was necessary for this claimant to put
gas in his tank. It is also necessary for the laborer, szelling only his
personal gervice, to buy clothing for protection and food for consump-
tlon, but in their purchase he is not under compensation coverage.

Upon this record it is held that:

1. At the time of his injury September 13, 1929, John Mowalt was in
independent employment; furthermore that

2 If his working relations were found to be as of ordinary wage carn-
ing his injury did not in a statutory sense arise out of employment,

The arbitration decision is aflirmed.

Dated at Des Moines, Towa, this 26th day of June, 1930

A. B. FUNK,
lowa Industrial Commissioner.
Affirmed District Court.

GRAVEL HAULING—INDEPENDENT EMPLOYMENT

Elsie M. Woods, Claimant,
VA,
Bumgardner & Schroeder, Employers,
Employers Mutual Casualty Company, Insurance Carrier, Defendants,
Morrison & Morrison, and L. J. Kehoe, for Claimant;
Miller, Miller & Miller, for Defendants.

In Review.

From an arbitration decision denying award, filed October 26, 1929,
action in review is brought by claimant. By agreement case was sub-
mitted upon arbitration record without argument.

J. R. Woods, husband of this clalmant, sustained fatal injury Seplem-
ber 1, 1928, while hauling gravel on a contract betweon these defendants
and the state highway commission,

Defendants allege that at the time of this injury the employment re-
lations between Woods and Bumgardner & Schroeder were not such as
to impose compensation lability.

The record shows that for some time prior to his death the decoased
had been hauling gravel on highway work in charge of these defendants.
He owned the truck he was using in this service. He was duly charged
with gas and oil and truck repairs furnished by these contractors. He
was paid by the vard for all gravel he delivered In this highway con-
struction.

Claimant features the faet that the truck used by Woods had heen
sold to him by the defendants who seem to have had sort of a string
tied to its possession, but these circumstances gimply imply a seeurity
precaution rather than any right of ownership further than that existing
between a mortgagor and a mortgagee. Since supplies furnished by the
contractors were all paid for by the workman, they cut no figure at all
significant of employment relationship.
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The loading of the trucks from the cars was scheduled to begin g
7:00 A. M. While it was evidently desirable that a full force of haulery
equal to the capacity of the loading equipment should appear at that time,
Schroeder, one of the contractors, testifies that no arbitrary rule was
applied. It further appears that the haulers were at liberty to drop om
at their own convenience or pleasure for an hour, or half a day or day
at a time. The only detail as to employment direction was that the
hauler was to locate his truck conveniently for loading and to dump the
load at a point designated on the developing grade.

Decisions of the Iowa Supreme Court clearly define the boundarjes
separating independent employment from ordinary wage earning

In Pace vs, Appanoose County, 168 N. W. 916, the Court lays down these
rules:

“The test oftenest resorted to, in determining whether one is an em-
ployee or an Independent contractor, is to ascertain whether the em-
ployee represents the master as to the result of the work or only as to
the means. If only as to the result and himself selects the means, he
must be regarded as an independent contractor.

“The mere fact that the owner may have an overseer or architect to
see that the work complies with the contract or that the work is to be
to the owner's satisfaction does not change the character of the cuntraet,
if it meets the test stated.”

As shown by the record these conditions were duplicated in the per
formance of J. R. Woods.

From Norton vs. Day Coal Company, 180 N. W. 905, the following s
quoted:

“It is elementary doctrine, and it would fill many pages to cite the
support it has, that one 18 not an employee if he may choose his own
method of working—the mode and manner of doing the work.

“It ds put cuvugh thatl theie be puwel Lo see Lo 1L that the woik is deae
to the satlsfaction of the one who gives it. This power is control over
ultimate results and not over methods, means and details.

“The mere making of suggestions as to the methods of work to be
pursued will not establish the relationship of master and servant, even
though the suggestion be as to details or as to the co-operation neces
sary to bring about the larger general result.”

This record seems conclusively to show that the working relations of
these parties were well within the diagram of independent employment
developed in these decisions, which are strictly in line with judicial
opinion generally in other jurisdictions.

Further exemplification of industrial employment is payment on &
commission or plece basis, and the manifest right of the workman to
come into and go out of service for any day or part of a day at his
conveni The exist of these additional conditions in the working
situation at the time of this fatal injury seems clearly to identify the
employment as distinctly independent and not subject to compensation
coverage.

Wherefore the arbitration decision denying award is affirmed.

Dated at Des Moines this 6th day of December, 1929,

A. B. FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner.

No appeal.
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INDEPENDENT EMPLOYMENT—INTOXICATION—FAILURE TO
ESTABLISH

J. C. Heissler, Claimant,
VS,

Strange Bros. Hide Company, Employer,
Employers Mutual Casualty Company, Insurance Carrier, Defendanits.
Henderson, Hatflield & Wadden, for Claimant;
Jepson, Struble & Sifford, for Defendants.
In Review

In an automobile collision occurring February 16, 1929, this claimant
sustained rather serious hand injury.

Alter paying compensation for a period of six weeks the defendant
insurer denied all obligation alleging that injury did not arise out of
employment.

Arbitration at Sioux City, December 5, 1929, resulted in award in the
sum of $416.256 together with statutory costs and charges in addition
to compensation payment already made.

Defendants contend that at the time of injury claimant was not in the
line of his employment; also that his injury was due to intoxication,

Case history is substantially as follows:

In his engagement with Strange Bros. Hide Company, J. C. Heissler Is
on the road as a buyer of products handled by his employer. He travels
out of Sloux Clty. On the day of his injury he had been among the
farmers in the vicinity of Battle Creek. At about six o'clock in the
evening he started for Sioux City. About an hour later at or near Mo-
ville his car collided with another going in an opposite direction and
hence the injury.

In support of the intoxication defense, it is alleged that at the time of
the accident claimant was on the wrong side of the street; that he gave
other evidence of being seriously in liguor. A number of wilnesses
testify that claimant was and that he was not in a state of intoxleation.
He states himself he was on the left side of the streel for the reason
that it appeared to him the oncoming car was about to turn into an
oil station. Says he was not intoxicated. He did telephoning and was
otherwise busy soon after the accident in a way not indicative of drunk-
enness. While the evidence on this point is conflicting, from the record
it seems likely that claimant had been drinking. It is not eonclusively
shown that he was drunk and if he was it must be further shown that
the injury occurred with intoxication as the proximate cause. Evidence
at this point is insufficient.

The other defense requires more serious consideration. Claimant testi-
fles that he was going to Sioux City for the week end. He was at that
time unmarried and was making his home, in so far as he had a home,
with his parents on a farm six or seven miles out of Bronson, some
seventeen miles southeast of Sioux City.

The fact that it does not appear that claimant intended to go to the
farm of his parents and that he did not go to Sioux City for the pur-
pose of turning in a report that night is emphasized by the defendants
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in the endeavor to show that at the time of his injury he was going 1o
the city for reasons personal and therefore he was without the scope
of his employment.

A traveling salesman or canvasser is assumed to be under coverage
after the completion of his work for the day or for the week when he
shall have reached Iis home or a place that may be reasonably regarded
as his headquarters. In the usual sense this man had no home, though
he put in odd time with his parents and his boy on the farm. It was not
unreasonable that he should spend the week end at his business head-
quarters in the city. Sloux City was the practical end of his route
The record shows that since hiz injury he has married and now eon-
sistently has a home in Sioux City.

In his testimony the claimant seems exceedingly frank and ecandid, If
disposed to trifle with the truth he might have removed any possible
doubt as to coverage at the time of his injury. Under such circumstances
it Is not unreasonable to apply the terms of the statute without too much
of technical precision.

Finding as follows is recorded:

1. At the time of his injury February 16, 1929, J. C. Heissler was in
the scope of his employment.

2. 8aid injury did not occur with intoxieation as the proximate cause

.The arbitration decision is affirmed.

Dated at Des MoMmes this 12th day of March, 1930.

A. B. FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner,
Appeal pending.

INDEPENDENT EMPLOYMENT NOT ESTABLISHED

Marvin Benson, Claimant,
va.
Polk County, Defendant.
R. R. Nesbitt, for Claimant;
L. 8. Forrest, Assistant County Attorney, for Defendant.

In Review

Award was made in arbitration February 21, 1930, in the sum of §37.71
and for other statutory rellef.

This claim is resisted on the ground that at the time of his injury
Marvin Benson was without the scope of his employment.

The record tends to show that for a considerable period prior to the
date of this injury, E, B. Benson had been in the employ of Polk county
as road patrolman. This is a position created by statute and its duties
are quite comprehensive. While a patrolman is chiefly a highway care-
taker, he may under the law perform a variety of service. Under the
broad terms of this relationship with Polk county Benson was by the
Board of Supervisors authorized to serve the emplover fn phases of
highway construction.

Consistent with this program in connection with work on Highway
No. 5 near the town of Campbell, for some time previous to this accident,
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. this patrolman had in charge the building of detours, filling around cul-

verts, the moving of tile, ete.

For several years this claimant had been engaged by the patrolman,
who was his father, and worked under his direction at anything that
turned up as sort of a man of all work, .

On the day of the injury Marvin Benson was filling in around a eulvert
during the forenoon. At noon he says he told his father he had been
asked by the tilers to plow across the road where digging was difficult.
Says his father told him to do the plowing as requested, The father in
direct examination says he told him to do it. In cross examination he
is mot sure as to just what he had said as to the plowing, but his evi-
dence tends to show that by arrangement similar work had previously
been done on at least two occasions and that the statement of the son
as to direction at the time is not inconsistent with working poliey.

Defendant denies that E. B. Benson had anything to do with county
work aside from road maintenance; that hauling tile, plowing or other
work necessary to construction was entirely outside his line of duty or
responsibility. The record plainly shows that Benson had right along
been attending to such matters and for many months the son under his
direction had done such work, that the county had paid many bills for
such services with full knowledge from statements submitted and through
its authorized agents as to what was being paid for.

It does not clearly appear whether the plowing work in which elaimant
was injured did or did not devolve upon the county. It does appear,
however, that such work had previously been done, as it was done that
day, under direction of one authorized to direct and control pn the part
of Polk county. Obviously it was undertaken by the workman in good
faith as county service and in accordance with working arrangement he
was consistently within the scope of his employment.

It is possible so to interpret this situation and to construe the law as
to deny relief to this workman, but in so doing there would be distinct
departure from the direction of the Iowa Supreme Court in its holding
that the compensation statute “is to be liberally construed so as to get
it within the spirit rather than within the letter of the law.”

The arbitration decision is affirmed,

Dated at Des Moines this 14th day of March, 1930,

A. B. FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner,
Commissioner affirmed District Court.

INDEPENDENT EMPLOYMENT—HOUSE PAINTING JOB
E. A. Allard, Claimant,

VB,
Allen L. Brady, Defendant.
C. W. Harvey, for Claimant;
Jos, F. Smith, for Defendant,
In Review

Claimant sustained injury resulting in substantial disability while in
service as a painter March 20, 1929,
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This action Is brought to recover under the compensation statute for

such resulting disability from A. L. Brady as the employer.

T. R. MeNeal was doing quite an extensive business in the building and
selling of houses, In August of 1928, he entered into engagement with
this defendant which resulted in the painting by Brady of some sixteen
houses,

Claimant Allard was injured while working with Brady on one of the
McNeal houses,

It is alleged by the defense that in all his painting work on these
houses Brady was an employee of McNeal and that he set Allard to work
for McNeal and not on his own account, This record must discloge
whether or not Brady was working in the capacity of an independent
eontractor and whether or not as such he employed this elaimant to work
for him.

The testimony of A. L. Brady in cross examination tends clearly to
establish the employment relations of McNeal, Brady and Allard
Witness says he started painting houses for McNeal August 16, 1928
McNeal told him that whoever he (Brady) hired would do the painting
There was conversation about painting a certain house. Brady told Me
Neal he would paint it for $225.00, furnishing material and labor. Me
Neal said he would pay $210.00 and then Brady went ahead with the
work. Says same arrangement was made for painting the next house
and there was no different arrangement as to other houses, Says Me
Neal kept no track of the time worked. Brady gave his personal check
for material and labor. Never turned in any time sheets on additional
labor emplpyed.

This record tends to show thal MeNeal exerclsed no authority as to the
method of painting performance. He seems to have visited the work
frequently in the capacity of inspection rather than of direction. He
exercised no more supervision than would seem to have been necessary
in order to secure satisfactory service, He was looking to results in
finished work, not as to the details of working method, He wanted
painting so to proceed as not to interfere with sales of the houses, so
he would send Brady from one job to another to facilitate delivery
without in any manner interfering with the process of independent em-
ployment.

Employment relationship must be established by eonditions and cir
cumstances developed in case history. It is well said by high authority
that “it is not possible to lay down a hard and fast rule or to state
definitely facts by which the status of men working and contracting to-
gether can be definitely defined in all cases as employee or independent
contractor. Kach case must depend on its own facts’

It appears to be fundamental, however, that in cases where a work:
man contracts to do a plece of work according to his own method with-
out being subject to the control of the employer, save as to the results
of his work, he is an independent contractor. Our own high court has
said “the power to direct must go beyond telling what is to be done—
to telling ‘how it is to be done'"; also “it is not emough that there b¢
power to see to it that the work is done to the satisfaction of the obe
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who gives it. This power is control over ultimate results and not over
methods, means and details.”

It is well understood that employment relationship “may depend en-
tirely upon the conduct of the parties.”

Case history herein indicates that the time method was used merely
as a basis for arriving at cost conclusion. It appears from the testimony
of Brady that he agreed to paint the first house for $210.00, a sum sug-
gested by McNeal, and that this method was pursued in the later rela-
tionship. In all consideration as to labor, it was understood that $1.00
an hour should be the basis, whether or not the work was done by Brady
or by another engaged by him, regardless of the price paid for addi-
tional help. In settlement there was no accounting on a time basis, a
fact strange to ordinary employment. All material used in painting was
furnished by Brady and paid for by him. All additional labor was paid
by check of his own issue. Evidently MeNeal felt no coneern as to how,
when or where Brady or any other painter on these jobs worked, so long
as the work was up to standard and his plans for delivery on sale of
houses was not interfered with.

So in this case developments point with emphasis to this defendant as
an independent contractor and “the conduct of the parties” plainly indi-
cate that McNeal cannot be identified as the employer of Allard and that
Brady easily qualifies as such employer at the time of injury, March
20, 1929,

It therefore appears that the arbitration hoard did not err in its hold-
ing. Its decision that E. A. Allard is entitled to receive from the de-
fendant, A. L. Brady, the sum of $15.00 a week for a period of 60 weeks
and that the defendant is charged with costs as ordered s hereby affirmed.

Dated at Des Moines this 3d day of January, 1520,

A. B. FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner.
Appeal pending.

BOY SCOUTS UNDER THE LAW—EMPLOYMENT NOT CASUAL
Ray C. Stiles, Jr., a minor, by Ray C. Stiles, his father and his next
friend, Claimant,
V8.
Des Moines Council of Boy Scouts of America, Employer,
Federal Insurance Company, Insurance Carrier, Defendants.
Miller, Kelly, Shuttleworth & McManus, for Claimant;
Parrish, Cohen, Guthrie, Watters & Halloran, D. , Nolan, appearing,
for Defendants.

In Review

As appears in defendants’ Exhibit 1, the Des Moines Council of Boy
Scouts of America is organized to promote the boy scout program. This
program includes physical and other development through the mainte-
nance of boy scout camps.

The arbitration record shows that Ray C. Stiles, Jr., was employed for
service at a camp located near Woodward, in June of 1928, by men duly
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authorized. On June Sth, under specific direction by one in authority,
he was required to take out a horse for working out in order to make
him safer for scouts at eamp training in horsemanship. During this
working out process a horse ridden by another boy in like service
kicked elaimant on the leg, inflicting serious injury resulting in sub
stantial disability.

Upon this reeord the Deputy Industrial Commissioner in arbltuuo.
held Ray C. Stiles, Jr., entitled to statutory P ion b

Defendants contend that the ployment was purely casual and not for
the employer's trade or business, a statutory bar to recovery. This con-
tention is evidently based on the assumption that the Des Moines Couneil
of Boy Scouts of America has no trade or business and is engaged in no
industrial or gainful occupation. This is true in a technical sense only,
but no more definitely true as to the defendant employer than as apply-
ing to employment sponsored by the state, a county, a eity, or a school
district, neither of which has in a technical sense any trade or business,
or is engaged in any gainful occupation,

It is further contended that as a charitable organization the defendant
employer is not in compensable relationship with its employees. De
cigions of the supreme court of Massachusetts are submitted in support
of this contention. So far as is understood no other state has announced
this peculiar doctrine. To adopt it here would be seriously to disturb
the spirit and purpose of, and protection under, the Towa statute and
the Industrial Commissioner declines to follow this unigue leading.

The record is held to show that:

1. The Des Moines Council of Boy Scouts of America gualifies as an
employer within the meaning of the lowa compensation statote; that

2. Claimant was duly employed by men authorized to make contracts
of service for the defendant employer: that

3. The disability sustained by Ray C, Stiles, Jr., arose out of and in
the course of this employment.

The arbitration decislon is affirmed,

Dated at Des Molines this 224 day of July, 1929,

: A. B. FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner.
Commissioner affirmed District Court; Commissioner reversed Supreme
Court.

DROWNING AS ARISING OUT OF EMPLOYMENT
Marie K. Gee, Claimant,
V8,
C. R. Crabh, Defendant.
L. L. Duke & R. R. Ramsell, for Claimant;
Jaques, Tisdale & Jaques, for Defendant.

In Review
C. R. Crabb has for many years heen operating a hoat house and resort
near the city of Ottumwa. June 19, 1928, George W. Gee, husband of this
claimant, lost his life by drowning in the Des Moines river while in the
employ of this defendant.
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Circumstances immediately preceding this drowning are substantially
as follows: In connection with his boating business, Crabb invited bathing
patronage. He rented bathing suits, ehecked clothing, furnished towels
and other usual conveniences, It was also understood to be an im-
portant feature of the business to safezuard bathers from river peril
while in the water. This appears to have heen especially important
because of the existence of a dam across the river not far below the
pathing grounds, which constituted an additional menance,

Miss Beatrice Freeman, who had recently entered the water, ecalled
for help as she was suffering from cramps. In a boat near at hand was
Gee who responded to this call. In his endeavor to 1ift Miss Freeman
into the boat the craft filled with water, Gee fell into the river and
according to evidence he was drowned almost without appearing on the
surface.

On the part of the defense obligation is denied, chiefly on the zround
that at the time of his death George Gee was without the scope of his
employment in disobedience of express working orders, and therefore his
untimely death did not arise out of and in the course of his employment
in a statutory sense.

In support of this contention it is alleged that the deceased workman
was employed “for work around the boat house and grounds in connec-
tion with keeping the ground clean and keep boats clean, and do geperal
chores In connection with said boat house and grounds,” Furthermore
it is alleged that he was not emploved as a life gnard, but in fact was
forbtdden to act as such. ;

As to the circumstances preceding the drowning: Crabb testifies that
he and Gee were working on a boat near the boat house Called away,
as he says, to wait on customers, he instructed Gee to keep on at the
boat work in his ahsence and to keep away from the water. It was early
in the seazon and business was so light he could not, as he says, afford
to and did not have in service one or more regular 1ife guards as in the
busy season., Crabb says it was hls purpose and practlee at this time
to act as life guard himself. He declares that Gee had rarely been on
the water In one of his boats and never authorized as a guard. Assum-
ing to act in this capacity at n single time, he was threatened with dis-
charge if this offense was repeated.

As has appeared herein Crabb testifies that at the time he left Gee
working on the boat he igstructed him to stay by this jobh and not to go
on the water. There Is some support to this statement, but much more
to the effect that he gave no such instructions and as tending to show
that he told the workman to wateh the bathers, which must have meant
that he go on the water as this is the way the watching is done.

There is evidence tending to ghow that Crabh went to supper, He
says he had no supper that night and this statement i corroborated by
his wife. It seems he vanished from view when he left the hoat work
until the commotion was raised by the tragedy. Just how much time
bad elapsed does not appear, but the customers he served must have
been off his hands quite a while before he reappeared. He says he was
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to do the guarding himself that day but the people were in the water
and he was not in commission as guard,

Meanwhile Gee had gone to the river and rowed out on the water
Testimony appears Lo the effect that he was called to the other side by
Miss Freeman and Miss King, both in the position of patrons, who had
gone over on a trolley provided for such purposes.

At the time of serving and saving Beatrice Freeman, was Gee without
the scope of his employment in a statutory semse? This is the rea
question to determine here. In this connection it is necessary carefully
to consider the nature of his employment, the conditions under which
his work was required and performed and all circumstances attending
the drowning. .

This record contains more than 700 pages of evidence. Much of It is
irrelevant and immaterial. Some of. it Is incredible. Comparatively
very little of it Is of value in reaching a coneclusion. In this mass of
testimony, that of Miss Beatrice Freeman most consistent, defi-
nite and convincing. Asked to recite briefly and slowly just what hap-
pened at the time of the accident, on page 133 of depositions taken on
behalf of clailmant, Miss Freeman states:

“1 started across the river and Mr, Gee was in a boat ahead of me and
he was going to go across with me to help me across because [ didn't
know how to swim well enough to go over and we started out with the
boat and T was hanging on the back end of the boat. T would swim four
or five strokes and then hang on, 1 was out about fifty feet from the
shore and 1 was selzed with cramps and I called to Mr. Gee and told
him I had cramps and for him to come get me, and he started to row
back toward me and I told him not to pull me into the boat but to take
me over to the shore but instead he arose in the bozt and tried to pull
me in over the back end and he threw his weight to the right side of the
bout and tipped it so the boat shipped water and he did pull me o e
boat, though, and we were both in the boat when it went down.”

Witness further states she understood Gee was rowing among the
bathers on that occasion for the purpose of affording protection to per-
sons who might get cramps. She understood he was acting as life guard.
She feels that if Gee had not come to her rescue she might have drowned.
She had on Lwo other occasions a few days earlier seen the deceased
rowing among the bathers and she felt he was acting as a life guard.
Said on these occasions she saw Crabb when he could see what Gee was
doing.

Miss Freeman testifies further that on the gvening of the drowning
“there were three of us started across the river and Mr. Crabb told Mr.
Gee to take the boat as he was going in to supper and told him to watch
us;" also "Mr. Gee got into the boat and followed us across the river.
We went over on the trolley.”

The witness was accompanied on this visit to the resort by Miss
Everts King. Miss King testifies on page 196 of claimant's depositions:
“We went across on the trolley and I asked Mr. Gee if he would tow me
across in the boat and Bee said for him to tow her aeross because she
could not swim, so he took her across.” That is, he towed her from
the south shore toward the boat house or north shore. Miss King fur
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ther testifies she did not hear what Crabb said to Gee while at the boat
work.

Edwin Anderson was in the swimming party with Miss Freeman and
Miss King. Called by the defense on page 2 of defendant's deposition
he says: It could not have been more than five or ten minutes after he
first saw Gee on the river when he saw Miss Freeman hang on the buack
end of the boat that was being rowed by the deceased. On page 14 he
says he supposed Gee at the time of the accident “was a life guard there.”

The Crabbs and the Gees are copiously in evidemce in this record.
Counsel on each side cast reflections upon opposing witnesses, perhaps
with more or less of foundation in fact or plausible inference. If the
Gees are moved to color their statement by the dire need of the de
pendents, the Crabbs would seem to be just as desirous of avolding com-
pensation obligation, in both cases, perhaps, without the finest diserimina-
tlon as to the exaet facts. It is possible, however, Lo reach a decision
without attempting to weigh and evaluate this conflicting and self-serving
or prejudiced testimomy.

It is impossible to fit into the frame work of this case much of the
testimony of C. R. Crabb. He insists he had given George Gee absolute
instruction to keep off the water. That only once had Gee appeared in
@ boat among the bathers, and then he was told that he would be dis-
charged if he again so disobeyed. Further he declares that in leaving
the boat work to wait on bathing customers, as he explains, he told Gee
to stay by the work and keep off the water,

Gee had moved his wife and baby into quarters on the Crabb premises.
He was in destitute circumstances. His job, even with its meager pay,
was vital to present subsistence. But if the story of Crabb is true, when
the employer had his back turned Gee dropped his tools and sneaked
down to the river for his own amusement as the defendant says, and
took out a boat, all unmindful of the impending discharge, which would
have meant disaster to his wife and baby. The story I8 absolutely in-
eredible,

Sound inference cannot be exercised in support of this story, but there
is more definite denial, In support of the statement of Mrs. Gee, claimant
hereln, that she heard Crabb tell her husband, as he left the boat work,
to watech the bathers, Miss Freeman definitely says she heard the same
instruction to Gee by Crabb, Counsel says Miss Freeman is contra-
dicted by her friend, Miss King. The record does not so indicate. Miss
King merely says she did not hear such instruction. This may have
been due to contact more remote with the situation or to having her
attention otherwise attracted or to other cause. But in the case of Miss
Freeman, she actually heard this instruction to Gee or she is gullty
of conscious perjury and nothing appears in the least to suggest sueh
violent assumption.

Moreover the record affords substantial support to the stat t that
on a number of occasions Gee had appeared in a boat among the bathers
and on at least one occasion Crabb is shown to have been a witnesa to
this situation. Gee's appearance on the water just before the tragedy
was evidently natural and necessary. While Crabb says he was that day
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acting as guard himself, he had vanished, either to get his supper or tor
some other reason. People were going into the water with no Buard
other than Gee in sight. The peril of the situation has been described.
Appearing on the river both Miss King and Miss Freeman appealed to
him to come across the river and tow them back alter they had gope
over on the trolley. Crabb was out of commission, though he claimed 1p
be doing guard work. He remained out of sight until he came out of
some building when the drowning commotion aroused him. Who bat
Gee could have been expected to do the most necessary guard work?

Futile emphasis is given to the manuer in which Gee conducted the
rescue of Miss Freeman., It Is contended that he wzs drowned because
he pulled Miss Freeman into the boat; that he mizht have survived ff
he left her to cling to the rear of the craft. This may or may not be
true, but the matter is of no importance. Workmen are never penalized
for errors of judgment or for miscaleulation in emergency service, Manl
festly Gee met this emergency in good faith and purpose. He may have
paid with his life for faulty management, but even if this is true it
cannot figure in this dependency case.

The employer has falled in his endeavor to show that George Gee was
acting contrary to express order in going on the water just prior to his
drowning.

Equally futile is his determination to prove that in the service of sav-
ing from drowning a patron of the business Gee departed from the scope
of his employment, This is o question of law as well as of fact, The
lowa supreme court has in a number of cases submitted such interpreta-
tion of the meaning of “arising out of and in the course of the emplay:
ment” as to afford no support to thig defense on the part of defendant
In this connection attention is expressly directed to:

Young vs. Missisxippi Power Co., 180 N. W. 986,

Grant vs, Fleming Bros., 176 N. W. 640,

The evidence of C. R. Crabb at the review hearing consists chiefly in
giving emphasis to his very improbable story of the employment rela-
tions involved, and in further attempts to discredit all statements and
all witnesses of the claimant,

The arbitration decision in favor of claimant is affirmed.

Dated at Des Mgines this 26th day of March, 1929,

A. B. FUNK,

. lowa Industrial Commissioner,
Appeal pending. =

NOTICE OF INJURY IRREGULAR BUT SUFFICIENT
Newton Cross, Clalmant,

Vs,
Economy Coal Company, Employer,

Bituminous Casualty Corporation, Insurance Carrier, Defendants.
John T. Clarkson, for Claimant:

Havner, Flick, Huebner & Powers, for Defendants.
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In Review

This claim is based upon injury allezed to have oceurred on or about
March 12, 1928,

Pleadings indicate general denial on the part of defendants as to any
injury arising out of employment and in arbitration there was much con-
troversy as to detafls of injury and its consequence. The record, how-
ever, establishes by a preponderance of the evidence that due to injury
as alleged, Newton Cross was deprived of earnings for a considerable
period. At the review hearing this fact is not seriously controverted.

In opposing this claim defendants rely chiefly upon the contention that
the clalmant failed to comply with the requirements of section 1383 of
the code relating to notice of injury.

As Exhibit A appears in the record the following notice:
12:;’051':;'0“ Cross got hurt in mines 1ifting a ear the 12th of March and
laid off until the 20th of March and then went back to work and tried
to work and was only able to work five duys or more.”

This notice was written by Helen Guinn, duughter of the claimant.
She testifies that she wrote it within the week following Easter Sunday
which oceurred last year April Sth; that she gauve the note to a neighbor
named George Woodfork for delivery at the office of the employer. Al
the review hearing Woodfork testifies he received the notice ng stated
and delivered it to Clifford May, in the absence of F. O, Ewing, bhook-
keeper and cashier, who usually handled compensation cases for the cwm-
ployer,

Mr. Ewing was at this time in the hospital. Says in evidence that In
his absence Mr. May was to handle such matters requiring attentlon.
After Ewing returned he says he found on his desk with other accumu-
lation the note of claimant heretofore appenring. Indicates that con-
versation with May at the time disclosed that the latter had knowledie
a8 to the alleged injury. He may have told Ewing he found note deposited
under the office door. Employers' notice of injury appearing as Exhibit
C-6 together with the note from Cross was sent by Ewing to the defendant
insurer, by whom it was received, as appears in evidence, May 28, 1928,

Defendants contend that the note relied upon by claimant as sufficient
notiee of injury does not in fact constitute notice within the meaning
of the compensation law; that it is unsigned “and does not advise the
employer that the claimant’s alleged injury was received in the course
of the employment at or near a certain place.”

Section 1384 declares “no particular form of notice shall be required
but it may be substantially as follows:” Here is inserted, evidently
merely for the convenience of parties interested, suggestions as lo words
and figures that may be used. This suggestion is followed by this in-
Junction:

“No varfation from this form of notice shall be material if the notice
is sufticient to advise the employer that a certain employee, by name,
received an Injury in the course of his employment on or ahout a
specified time, at or near a certain place.”

This qualification plainly means a final safeguarding of the workman
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against Injustice that might occur through too strict construction op
technical requirement.

Exhibit A, the notice sent to the employer as notice of injury, is con-
spicuously wanting in grace of expression and in technical diasgram as
to all details involved. It does, however, get over to the employer all
needful Information as to facts and circumstances necessary to his
reasonable protection which the statute assumes to afford. It plainly
indicates that on or about March 12th Newton Cross “got hurt in mines
lifting a car” It was not essential to full justice to defendants tha
any particular mine be specified or that claimant was in regular employ-
ment, as these facts were obviously in their possession. The note was
unsigned, but when it was received no doubt existed in the minds of
these defendants as to the who and what and where and why of the
situation,

It is commonly understood that the statutory provision of seection 1381
relating to notice of injury is for the protection of the employer against
possible imposition, The terms of the statute, however, makes clear the
legislative purpose to guard against possible injustice to the workman
in the exercise of this process. This section indicates that the employer
should be notified of injury within fifteen days, but that failure to obtain
knowledge or to receive notice for a period of thirty days shall not he
a bar to compensation payment unless the emplover shall show that he
was prejudiced thereby, and then only to the extent of such prejudice,
but a further limit of sixty days is still given under a wide range of
statutory indulgence,

Evidently the note written by Helen Guinn was sent to the employer
not later than April 12th, & month after the injury. Just as evidently
it had for weeks laid unopened on the desk of Ewing. With Mr. Ewing
in the hospital, this compensation service had broken down temporarily,
asg Clifford May, the man who would seem to have been designated by
Ewing to attend to such matters, failed to function. In spite of this
office dereliction the notice reached the eve of Ewing well within the
ninety-day limit, and under the record prejudice may not be successfully
plead.

In arbitration it was held that claimant is entitled to payment in the
sum of $1252 a week for a period of ten weeks, together with medical,
surgleal and hospital benefits, as well as costs of this action.

Defendants contend that:

1. As opportunity was not afforded for defendants to furnish medical,
surgical and hospital service, this charge cannot legally be assessed to
them.

2. Under the law the paying period cannot begin before the date
notice was given,

It was the fault of defendants that knowledge of this injury was not
sooner obtained, but when it was no move was made to assume obliga-
tion or even to investigate. Furthermore it appears that defendants
were not prejudiced by developments in this connection, therefore they
are not relleved from this medical, surgical and hospital charge.

There may be force in the contention as to the beginning of the paying
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period, but since there is evidence that the disability period extended
peyond the date to which award was made, the award will not be dis-
turbed.

It is therefore held that the notice of injury as set out in Exhibit A
practically meets statutory requirement, and that the Deputy Industrial
Commissioner did not err in the arbitration decision which is hereby
affirmed.

pated at Des Moines, this 15th day of April, 1929,

A. B. FUNRK,
Towa Industrial Commisvioner.
Appeal pending.

HEAT EXHAUSTION IN IRON FOUNDRY CAUSE OF DEATH
Elsie Schueler, Claimant,
V8.
Hart-Parr Company, Employer,
The Fidelity and Casuvalty Company of New York, Insuramce Carrier,
Defendants.
J. W, Kintzinger, for Claimant;
J. €. Campbell, for Defendants.

In Review ’

As u result of arbitration hearing at Charles City November 21, 1927,
award was made on the basis of fatal heat exhaustion arising out of and
in the course of employment in the sum of $15.00 a week for three hun-
dred weeks, together with statutory burial benefit and cost of ltigation,

Hearing in review occurred at the department September 21, 1528,

Defendants deny that the death of George Schueler was Lo any extent
due to conditions or circumstances of employment. A number of the
Hart-Parr Company employees testify that working conditions at the
Hart-Parr plant were not at all suggestive of heat prostration. They
insist that the temperature of the large room in which the deceased was
working was not condueive to collapse based upon heat exhaustion, They
allege that the atmosphere in these working gquarters was lo praectical
intents and purposes comparatively pure. .

Case history in this connection is substantially as follows:

At elght o'clock In the morning of February 3, 1925, George Schueler
began work as a molder in the plant of the Hart-Parr Company. As Is
usual in working plans of the defendants, he put in his time until about
3:30 In the afternoon in preparation for the pouring of molten steel into
casting molds.

This work of preparation would seem to have been rather more than
ordinarily str idered in tion with usual labor require-

ment. At about the hour of 5:30 in the afternoon he suddenly collapsed
while In his round of duty. Taken into an adjoining room, he was pro-
nounced dead in less than thirty minutes.

The deceased was thirty-nine years of age. It is contended that he
was a particularly ablebodied man, for vears without any disabling
allments, and that on the morning of February 3rd, when he began his
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last engagement, there is good reason to believe he was sound in healty
and in every way physically fit, except that he had not been strenuously
engaged for some months last past and was not inured to the heary
service required of him as a molder. This contention is nowhere dls
turbed by record evidence,

About an hour previous to his death the process of pouring began,
This consisted of the conveying of truck ladles filled with molten metal
along the platform or floors occupied by the molders, this metal being
poured Into hand ladles in the hands of the molders,

These hand ladles, according to claimant’'s testimony, weighed when
filled about ninety to ninety-five pounds. The defendant's witnesses glye
this weight at about sixty pounds. This ladle has a handle of gas pipe
about four feet in length. Upon filling this receptacle, the molder con-
veys its contents to the particular molds he desires to fill.

The record shows that the molten metal handled is at a temperature
of about 3,000 degrees Fahr. The opening in the truck ladle is about
twenty inches across and the molder must face this opening when his
ladle is being filled.

A number of witnesses, most of whom are familiar with general eon-
ditlons at this plant, testify to seriously vitiated atmosphere. They say
the molding room is partially heated by steam pipes but that in cold
weather it is necessary to supplement the steam heat. Therefore four
salamanders had been installed for this purpose. The salamander, It
would seem, is made by the bending of heavy sheet iron into cireular
form. Fires are kindled with wood and upon this wood is placed guan-
tities of coke for heating purposes. These fires are connected with no
chimney and such smoke and fumes as are generated are discharged in
the working quarters, as a matter of course,

It is also in evidence that the quantities of sand used in the molding
process is necessarily wet by the sprinkling of water on the same and
in the process of molding much steam is created.

Claimant’s witnesses further testify that on February 3, 1925, ventl
lators provided in the roof of the molding room were closed us were the
outside windows. Testimony for the iefense says the ventilators were
open, .

Claimant’s witnesses also testify to very excessive heat created by the
ladling process which grows exeeedingly intense in the vielnity of mold-
ing operations as the process proceeds, It is several times stated that
this intense heat sometimes burns the halr from hands and arms of the
molders and produces blisters thereon.

They uniformly testify to personal experience as to the depressing
effect of temperature and atmosphere in this Hart-Parr molding room
while pouring is In progress.

Testifying for the defendants, Drs. W. L. Griffin and C. W. MeQuilien
state that they are absolutely unwilling to express any opinion as to the
cause of this workman's death and record the belief that medical science
I8 necessarily unable to-give any valid opinion relative to such cause.

Called by the claimant, Dr. Schrup, of Dubugue, in response to hypo-

‘P"
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thetical query outlining conditions precedent and existing, definitely ex-
presses the opinion that this death was due (o heat exhaustion.

Dr. Loizeaux, also of Dubuque, definitely coincides with this opinion

It is impossible to reconcile to any practical extent the conflicting
testimony in this record as to facts and circumstances wnd conditions
involved. The defense would have us believe that the molders’ work is
comparatively easy and agreeable and that the usual working situation
in the Hart-Parr plant leaves little to be desired, and that there was
absolutely nothing In temperature or atmospherie conditions that might
suggest impurity or excessive heat.

Witness after witness called by claimant testify from long cxperience
and actual contact that the molders’ work is severely strenuous, that it
calls for the full strength of stalwart manhood, that the heat s so
excessive as frequently to drive him to seek relief from fts intensity,
that on the day of this death gas fumes, smoke and steam tended to make
working conditions particularly trying.

Evidently exaggeration has been indulged on both sides and it is im-
possible to give full credence Lo either line of testimony. It seems
necessary, therefore, in reaching conclusion to exercise the eletment of
inherent probability, In such exercise the weight of evidence as to
eredibility and consistency favors the case of claimant.

After scrutinizing every page of this bulky record, this impression
exists:

On the morning of Februury 3, 1925, George Schueler took on this work
of molding. It was Iuevitably a trying job, particularly to one who had
not been recently engaged in strenuwous employment. When the work
of pouring began at about fourthirty I». M. he was weary and with
lowered resistance. He had to connect with the truck ladle in its regular
round of supplying the molten metal to the molders. In the distribution
of some fifteen tons of this red hot metal in a considerable area the heat
must have been excessive and in the close proximity necessary to the
filling of the hand ladle and carrying its contents was sorely trying to
a weary man. After an hour of such exposure he collapsed and passed
out of life, !

Here we have on our hands a dead workman, the support of a wife
and four small childven. Industry must be protected from Imposition
but it must be held in obligation to these dependents If its labor require-
ment deprived them of support,

There is no attempt to discount the elaim that the deceased workman
began the day an able-bodied man, a man without organic ailment but
in what might be considered a “soft” condition because of recent lack
of contact with heavy work. The requirement of the situatlon wae a

severe straln upon his physical resources not Inured to such demand.

It is easlly conceivable from the record that the atmosphere was
vitiated to a greater or lesser extent from burning coke in the salamanders
and from steam rising from the moist sand in contact with the hot metal.

It is impossible to conclude that this death did not arise out of em-
ployment. Is it presumable that this workman would have succumbed
as he did under working conditions of the average laborer of the com-
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munity? Is it at all likely that had he been husking corn or doing
ordinary shop work or using a shovel under usual conditions, he would
have been deprived of his life at that time? Is it not reasonable to
assume that he would have gone on indefinitely in earning capacity but
for the unusual stress of labor requirement that day?

The medical testimony as to the cause of this death is also seriously
conflicting. It has been shown that the two doctors testifying for the
claimant positively express the definite opinion, based nupon recital of all
conditions and circumstances involved, that the deceased came to his
death as a result of heat exhaustion due to working conditions.

It also appears that the two doctors called by the defense utterly refuse
to express an opinfon as to the ecause of death and assert the practieal
Impossibility of any physielan being able intelligently to decide this
gquestion. They do not say it could not have happened and did not
happen as contended by claimant, but merely that they do not know and
it may not be known how this death was caused. This attitude is not
acceptable nor reasonable in view of experience not at all uncommon.
In cases similar to this in many states of the Union awards are made
to dependents of workmen losing their lives under similar conditions.

All through this medical testimony and in its consideration, it Is
manifest that counsel seeks to establish the contention that without
post mortem examination no diagnosis of value could have heen made.
It nowhere appears that there was any effort on the part of the defense
to secure such examination, though claim for compensation was made
upon the employer within a few weeks after this death. Tt is evidently
the thought of the defense that post mortem would have developed some

organic ailment and in such development would vanish the right of
claimant to recover.

This is erroneous assumption. Had such examination developed or-
ganic impairment, it would have made recovery all the more certain for
the reason that the physical strain and enervating conditions would have
been successfully emphasized as a contributing factor to the death of
n workman manifestly unable to meet strenuous requirement,

In this record the claimant has fairly met the burden of proving that
the death of her husband arose out of and In the course of his employ-
ment. The case of claimant is established by a preponderance of evidence
as this term is clearly defined in Honnold on Workmen’s Compensation,
page 467. Quoting:

"By o ‘preponderance of the evidence' fs meant such evidence as, when
weighed with that opposed to it, has more convincing force, and from
which it results that the greater probability is in faver of the party on
whom the burden rests.”

While the burden is on the claimant, it {s not necessary to prove beyond
all possibility of doubt that heat exhaustion was the cause of this death.
In the absence of absolute knowledge as to such cause, it is only neces
sary to establish inherent probability. It is not enoungh to say that the
workman may have died from some other cause.

As Honnold further states on page 471:

“Evidence conclusively showing an injury adequately accounted for by
acts of the workman in the course of his employment is not overcome
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by the fact that the injury might by some possibility have resulted from
some other cause not shown to exist. In such case the issue must be
determined in the light of the greater likelihood."

Consistent with case history and with holdings of the courts, the arbi-
tration decision must be and hereby is affirmed.
Dated at Des Moines, lowa, this 27th day of September, 1928,
A. B. FUNK,
Iowa Industrial Commissioner.
Affirmed District Court; no further appeal.

FREEZING OF FINGERS DUE TO EXTRA HAZARD—AWARD
Dscar W. Gehlen, Claimant,
V8.
Hurd Creamery Company, Employer,
Maryland Casualty Company, Insurance Carrier, Defendants,
Tinley, Mitchell, Ross & Mitchell, for Claimant;
J. lalph Dykes, for Defendants,

In Review

This action is for recovery due to disability from the freezing of
fingers,

Arbitration holding is for award in the sum of $79.97 representing
eleven weeks of compensation payment; also for medical, surgical and
hospital benefits and for costs of litigation,

In cases of compensable injury by freezing it is a common rule that
a workman shall have been exposed to hazard not common to workmen
of the community. The degree of temperature must be unusual and
exposure must be distinetly suggestive of hazard, .

The official weather report appearing in the record by stipulation shows
that at noon on January 17th mercury registered thirteen degrees helow
ReTo,

The record shows that on the 17th day of January, 1930, Oscar Gehlen
wis engaged in harvesting ice on an artificial pond in the vicinity of
Council Bluffs. His particular tusk was floating lee with the pike pole.
He wus wearing two pairs of gloves. Continually gripping the pole inter-
fered with the eirculation and Inecreased exposure of the fingers. The
working premises were guch as to afford no protection from such wind
#8 might be blowing. There was no opportunity to seek rellef from the
cold during the working hours of the day. Claimant testifies there was
no chance to warm himself within a distance of a half mile,

Gehlen began work about seven-thirty in the morning. He quit about
three o'clock in the afternoon, when he says the foreman said to him
“Gio home and see if you can get these fingers thawed ont."

This entire situation would distinctly indicate a measure of hazard
not common to workmen of the community.

The fact that other workmen on the hazardous job sustained no freezing
Injurles does not serve to bar this claimant from recovery., He may have
been more susceptible to such misfortune, but in freezing as in other
fources of disability susceptibility eannot be successfully plead in defense,

Citations submitted by the defense would seem to afford substantial
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support to the arbitration holding for claimant. In these cases it quite
uniformly appears that under circumstances analogous to these the courgs
are disposed to sustaln award. One of these cases is

State er. rel Nelsan vs, District Court, Ramsey County, Minnesotq,
164 N. W, 917,

In this case the freezing of a big toe resulted in the loss of a leg by
amputation, In connection with his work as janitor the claimant was
required to clear a sidewalk of snow and in this service the freezing
occurred. The district court denied compensation. In reversing this
decision the supreme court of Minnesota so far exhausts citation resources
as to say “we find no other freezing cases.” In this case the temperature
is not glven but even if mercury ran lower the workman was much less
exposed to frost danger than was Gehlen in the case at bar. Nelson's
duties as janitor required him to go inside oceasionally during his snow
shoveling to attend to furnace fires, while it was impossible for Gehlen
to relleve himself all day because of the remoteness of his work from any
heat supply.

It is therefore held that in the freezing of his fingers on January 17,
1930, this claimant sustained injury in a statutory sense arising out of
employment,

The arbitration decision Is affirmed.

Dated at Des Moines, lowa, this 20th day of June, 1930.

A. B. FUNK,
Impa Industrial Commissioner,
No appeal.

OFFICIAL OF COMPANY NOT UNDER COVERAGE
Nell Dawson, Claimant,
Vs,
Pratt-Mallory Company, Employer,
American Mutual Liability Insurance Company, Insurance Carrier, De-
fendants,
L. B. Forsling, for Clalmant;
Havner, Flick, Powers & Huebner, for Defendants.

In Review

The Pratt-Mallory Company is a wholesale grocery concern in Sioux
City. After some ten years of employment relationship with this de
fendant, Roy E. Dawson, husband of this claimant lost his life in an
auntomobile accident.

Circumstances of injury are thus related: On the Sth day of July, 1925
Dawson was proceeding to Sioux Falls by automobile to attend a meeting
of salesmen, such meeting having been scheduled to occur on each and
every Saturday.

Defendants deny obligation under the compensation statute on the
ground that at the time of his Injury the deceased was holding an offieial
position and was also standing in a representative capacity of the em-
ployer.

Records of the corporation show that at a meeting of stockholders held
January 17, 1927, Roy E, Dawson was duly elected a member of the board
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of directors. Nothing appears in these records to indicate any change
in this relationship at any time prior to the death of Dawson.

On the part of the claimant, it iz alleged that in order to qualify
pawson for election as director a single share of stock was transferred
to him by L. W. Mallory, president of the corporation, and upon his
glection the sald stock was re-conveyed to its former owner. Upon this
allegation it is contended that the directorship of Dawson was fictional
in character, and, therefore he cannot he considered as one holding an
official position.

The evident purpose of Mallory in electing Dawson to his board was to
meet the requirements of his articles of incorporation, made a part of
this record. 1f there was no payment for the stock and the certificate
was returned, these facts are not of record in any way tending to dis
qualify Dawson for board membership. Evidently this was not the
intention of the president. The motive that prompted this election could
not have been served by the immediate voiding of said election. No one
was elected in his place. Furthermore, whatever may now be stated In
this explanation is without force for the reason that the corporation
record attests a regular election and it contains no statement, even
suggestive of fallure in payment for the certificate nor of its reconvey-
ance to Mallory, and hence it must be understood that at the time of his
death, Roy Dawson was a director of the eorporation for all purposes
contemplated by law or otherwise and no secrel understanding may now
be plead in nullification of this controlling record.

It is further contended by the defendants that at the time of his fatal
injury Roy Dawson was standing in a representative capacity of the
employer and was therefore without the range of compensation reécovery.

Claimant resists this contention. Witnesses testify that the deceased
was at all times subject to the direction and control of Mr. Mallory,
While he was the head of a department and authorized to make purchuses
for the same and to direct selling agencies, all such exercise of authority
was subject to the approval of the president. For this reason therefore,
it Is urged that Dawson did not stand in a representative capacity of
the employer.

The arbitration record indicates that the Prati-Mallory Company was
a good deal of a one-man concern. This is usually true of all successful
commercial and Industrial enterprises. The action of subordinates, even
those exerclsing large discretion in matters of management, I8 of course
subject to revision and change by the head of the business. Because Roy
Dawson did not go it alone in ordering goods and directing sales—that
he was to a degree subject to the leadership and direction of Mallory—
cannot obscure the faet that he did to an Important degree represent
the employer in the performance of his regular duties. It was not neces-
sary that he act independently of Mallory in the buying, selling and
directing, In minimizing the relationship of the deeceased it is exploited
as a fact that the right to employ and discharge did not reside in Dawson,
It Is shown, however, that this function was exercised by men subordinate
In rank to Dawson. Merely a matter of administration organization.

The secretary of the company testifies that the duties of Dawson were
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those of “buyer and department manager;"” that his salary was $250.00
a month. L. W. Mallory, president of the corporation, says Dawson was
Ya department manager and that his duties as such were to purchase
goods on the market for supplying the needs of the departments whieh
were in his hands; also to sell, after making the proper addition for
profit, through the efforts of our salesmen.” The importanee of this
position is further indicated by the fact that the business of the tea, coffes
and spice departments annually amounted to $300,000.00, and this and
other departments were under the supervision and direction of Dawsen,

The arbitration decision finds for the defendants on the ground thst
at the time of his fatal injury, Dawson was holding an official position
in the Pratt-Mallory Company. This decizion is affirmed.

It is held further that at the time of his fatal injury, Roy E. Dawson
was standing in a representative capacity of the employer.

Under the provisions of the statute as interpreted by the Iowa supreme
court In Kutil vs. Floyd Valley Manufacturing Company, 218 N, W. 613,
it 18 necessary to deny relief to this claimant.

Dated at Des Moines, this 14th day of March, 1929.

A, B. FUNK,
TIowa Industrial Commissioner,
Appeal pending.

DEATH DUE TO HEAD INJURY—PRE-EXISTING SYPHILIS NOT
CONTRIBUTING FACTOR

Laura Wells, Cluimant, e
va.
Kelly-Atkinson Construction Company, Employer,
U. 8 Fidelity & Guaranty Company, Insurance Carrier, Defendants.
Carl H. Lambach, for Claimant;
Cook & Ballufl, for Defendants,
In Review

Fdward Wells, husband of this claimant, died January 27, 1927, due,
as alleged, to Injuries sustained December 14, 1925,

At the latter date the deceased was engaged in connection with the
reconstruction of a viaduet in the city of Davenport as a siructural iron
worker. A fellow workman, Carl A. Martin, thus relates circumstances
attending this injury:

Q. What occurred at that time, just describe?

A. Well, we was putting in new floor beams, one of them I beams that
goes underneath the rallroad to hold the ties up and we was up on 2
scaffold and Eddie Wells was on one side and I was on the other side
with this fellow named/Davis, was pushing the work. He was in 8
hurry, fidgety and very nervous, and he told the engineer to go ahead,
and we had the beam on a single weight line pulling it up with just oné
line. He holload to go ahead and the beam got caught in between there
and he holload, “go ahead with it."” and just then he vanked the beam.
shoved the beam and it hit Mr, Wells in the chest and caught his head
In hetween the top of the beam and the ties, and the engineer stop
before it crushed his head all the way out and the blood was oozing out
of his ears, nose and mouth and we took him down off the scaffold and
took him to the hospital,”

WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION SERVICE 153

After about two weeks in the hospital and a few weeks at home, the
workman was pronounced able to resume labor,

The record justifies the assumption that before this injury, Ed Wells
was an able-bodied man with a steady working reputation. It also sup-
ports the conclusion that never afterward was he able o work continu-
ously and that he was ailing continually until his death about eighteen
months later, He seemed gradually to lose flesh and vigor during this
time.

Defendants contend that evidence as to traumatic impairment and the
long period intervening do not indicate causal connection between Injury
and death,

Arbitration award is justified by the record. A sound man—a man
who had worked steadily for years with hardly a break in his health
sustnined what is shown to have been a serious injury. Though he
returned to work within perhaps a month, he was never again the same
man physically. He complained continually of distress at the site of
injury and no explanation or suggestion is offered as to his failing
powers and untimely death.

At the review hearing a new defense is introduced. Some six months
after death autopsy was performed upon the body of Wells by Dr. K. R.
LeCount, an eminent pathologist of the University of Chicago, He ap-
pears in evidence to relate the post mortem findinzs. These ure outlined
in detail and thereupon Dr. LeCount reaches the conclusion that this
workman died of “syphilis of the central nervous system.”

This s an interesting development. Other doctors assisting In the
autopsy seem doubtful as to the conclusion of Dr. LeCount. This doctor
has had to do with more than ten thousand post mortems and his diag-
nosis must be given subgtantial weight. But this testimony by no means
disposes of the case of claimant, Assuming that Wells died with syphilis
as the proximate cause, this fact, taken with circumstances of Injury
and subsequent developments, must be considered in practical relation
to compensation obligation.

In this connection it is interesting to consider the case of Hanson wvs,
Dickinson, Receiver, ete, 176 N. W. 823. In the employ of the Rock
Island Rallway Company at its shops at Manly, Hanson sustalned what
feemed to be a rather trivial injury. Extended disability resulting was
evidently due to syphilitic infection. The defendant contended that he
conld not be held for incapacity due to a cause so evidently extraneous,
Award followed which on appeal was affirmed by the courts. In its
decislon the supreme court makes this convineing observation.

Quoting as to Hanson:

“The disease with which he was afflicted might have been found to
have heen dormant since dried up by treatment about six years previous
and awakened into activity shortly after the injury. That its activity
during the two months following the injury was such as to infest the
knee joint afid prostate gland with gonococci bacilll does not obviate this

“ conclusion. Dr. Powell expressed the opinion that anything that would

devitalize tissue would cause gonorrheal trouble such as experienced by
the plaintiff, and Dr. Graham was of the opinion that “hidden gonorrheal
trouble can be lighted up by a bruise.,” Though both physicians indicated
that there might be other causes, the record is vold of any evidence
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suggesting any other than the injury, and, as we think, was some evidence
sustaining the Industrial commissioners’ conclusion that the disease was
lighted up or accelerated by the accidental slipping of the hammer from
the chisel and striking complainant.”

Furthermore, says the court:

“The claim is not based on disease but what the bruise did to the
disease.” .

Dr. LeCount testifies that in the instant case the workman “might have
been treated and fancied he may have been cured. He may have had it
a8 a young man."”

In the Hanson case there had been no recent evidence of the presence
of infection but a flareeup was evidently producd by the injury. So it
may well have been with Wells. There is nothing whatever in the record
to show that at any time previous to the injury he was struggling with
malignant germs. Deduction in the Hanson case has even more logical
basis herein as to the process of lighting up dormant infection by trau-
matie experience,

Upon the record before the deputy industrial commissi award was
plainly justified. In this case as so frequently occurs it was impossible
absolutely to establish causal relation between injury and death, but
inference strongly favors award, In view of all the circumstances it is
mueh more reasonable to assume that the injury was than it was not
the cause of death,

If further explanation were needed more definitely to account for this
causal connection, the contention of the defendants as to the presence
of venereal infection seems further to fortify this claim.

It is therefore held that, due to injury of December 14, 1925, the death
of Bdward Wells January 27, 1927, arose out of and in the course of his
employment by the defendant construction company.

The arbitration declsion is affirmed.

Signed at Des Moines this 21st day of June, 1929.

A. B. FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner.
No appeal,

MINER FAILED TO CONNECT INJURY WITH EMPLOYMENT
Tony Turk, Claimant,
V8.
Adelphi Coal & Mining Company, Defendant.
John T. Clarkson, for Claimant;
R. R. Nesbitt, for Defendant.

In Review

Claimant seeks to recover for disability alleged to have been sustained
in the mine of the defendant on or about September 22, 1927. He testifles
that on this date he was wedging down coal from the roof of a mine
entry and a large segment fell on his left leg injuring the knee.

Claimant says this Incident occurred shortly after noonm; that after &
brief rest he resumed work for awhile; that he worked in the mine the
next day about six hours and on the day following which was pay da¥
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he worked four hours. He then quit this job. Whether this quitting was
or was not due to incapacity does not appear. His buddy, Andrew
vVidmer, at review hearing, testifies he quit at the same time beeause the
working situation was not satisfactory.

On the 20th of September, a week after the alleged injury, Turk
went to Dr. H. J. Marshall who testifies in claimant’s Exhibit A. From
this date forward there is substantial proof of actual disability as alleged.

This case is weak in its history of disabling injury. Claimant testifies
that the chunk of coal wedged down was about four feet wide, five feet
long and eight inches thick. He says it weighed 500 or 600 pounds.
The testimony of the defense shows that a chunk of coal this size would
weigh more than a thousand pounds. In arbitration Turk says this mass
fell on his knee. He does not indicate he had any difficulty in extricating
the leg upon which the mass lay. At the arbitration hearing nothing
whatever is said in explanation of this strange fact or of the further
fact, even as remarkable, that the leg was not ahsolutely crushed,

At the review hearing claimant testifies volubly in explanation. He
says that piles of coal and refuse on each side had left sort of a trough
for his leg, shielding it from disaster. He does not claim nor does It
anywhere appear that there was on the knee any abrasion whatever or
evidence of any sort of bruise.

In the arbitration record there is little evidence in corroboration of
injury as alleged or otherwise. At the review hearing appears Andrew
Vidmer, who for a few days prior to September 22, 1927, had been work-
ing as a buddy of Turk. This witness testifies to rather intimate knowl-
edge of the incident of September 22nd and stresses a second injury two
days later to the same knee. Of this second injury claimant makes no
mention either before or after he hears the testimony of Vidmer. Turk
does not remember seeing his buddy the day of the injury but thinks
Vidmer must have been there because he says so.

It is within the range of possibility that claimant truly relates his
experience with the falling slab of coal. Perhaps this huge mass fell,
as he relates at the review hearing, just so as to permit him to withdraw
his leg without difficulty. Furthermore this fall may have so occurred
as to be the source of substantial disability without breaking or bruising
the skin and to permit him to work in the mine on the two succeeding
days. It may be that the only witness testifying to anything like definite
knowledge of any such accident was with him and talked with him at
the time without any recollection of the circumstances on his part, and
that he relies on this witness, Andrew Vidmer, because he said he was
there at the time. Surely all these things may have happened as appear
in this record, but to rely on this evidence as sustaining the burden of
proof in support of this claim requires exercise of conjecture to an extent
not permitted In established jurisprudence.

Due allowance should be and is made on account of the broken speech
and imperfect understanding of this foreign claimant, but with such
allowance it cannot be made to appear that Tony Turk has by a pre-
ponderance of the evidence shown that disability for which he seeks




B A

136 REPORT OF INDUSTRIAL COMMISSIONER

to recover I8 due to Injury sustained in the mine of this employer
September 22, 1927,

The arbitration decision denying award is affirmed.

Dated at Des Moines, this Sth day of May, 1929.

A. B. FUNK,
Iowa Industrial Commissi

Appeal pending.

DEPENDENCY NOT ESTABLISHED ON SHOWING OF
CONTRIBUTION
Alex Mendina, Claimant,
- vs.
Scandia Coal Company, Employer,
Bituminous Casually Exchange, Insurance Carrier, Defendants,
John T. Clarkson, for Claimant;
Havner, Flick, Huebner & Powers, for Defendants.

In Review

This action iz brought to establish a claim for dependency due fo the
death of Tony Mendina, September 11, 1928, in the employ of the Scandia
Coal Company.

The defendants deny that claimant was wholly or partially dependent
upon this son for support in legal sense at the time of his accidental
death,

In order to establish legal dependency in this case it i3 necessary to
show that:

1. The deceased son contributed of his earnings to family support;
that

2. Such contributions were necessary to the maintenance of the family
in a manner befitting its class and position in life.

Minor members of the family of Alex Mendina were a son in his
eighteenth year and a daughter almost fifteen. The mother died years
ago and these minor children were living with a married sister, Mrs
Sophia Nelson, in Novinger, Missouri. At the time of the death of the
mother this married daughter assumed charge of the family in a domestic
sense, continuing in the family home after her marriage in 1926,

It appears in evidence that the daughter was to receive from the father
after her marriage $5.00 a week for the care of the two minor children
It 1s stated furthermore, though with much less emphasis, that the father
was also to furnish provisions for these children and the married sister,
and also for the son-inlaw and his child. Though frequently interrogated
witnesses declined to make any estimate as to the cost of these provisions.

At the date of this untimely death, the father and the deceased son had
for some nine months been in the employ of the defendant coal company
near Madrid, lowa. During this period they had been “baching” paying
$7.00 a month rental which with table board and other household ex-
penses amounted to between $50.00 and $60.00 per month, as testified by
this defendant.

It Is alleged that during hig minority and since reaching his majority,
Tony had turned over to claimant his entire earnings and that all these
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earnings were expended by the father in the support of members of his
family in accordance with arrangement heretofore stated.

puring a period of eight months prior to this death, the joint net
earnings of the father and the son were in excess of $1,700.00. It is
alleged by the father and daughter that this entire sum was so inadequate
for such support as to make it necessary to incur family indebtedness
during this period.

In reaching a conclusion as to the legal merit of this claim, these
questions arise: 3

1. In view of common knowledge and experience in these later days,
it taxes credulily to accept the statement that any young man well past
his majority and in possession of ordinary intelligence and independence
of spirit delivers all his substantial earnings over to his father, depend-
ing upon him for every element of support and for spending money. All
evidence in this connection is self-serving as well as unreasonable,

2 The record contains the positive statement of the father that the
$5.00 a week received by the daughter was the entire sum paid for the
food and keep of the two minor children. Later he and the daughter both
seem to say that the father supplied provisions, not only for these children
but for the daughter, her child and the son-in-law. It seemed impossible
to get from these witnesses any estimate whatever as to the cost of these
provisions or of the expense of clothing William and Helen.

3. In his eighteenth year should a young man sound and strong be In-
cluded among those dependent in a statutory sense? AL the age of six-
teen years children are by law excluded from among those legally de-
pendent upon a parent in case of the death of the latter under com-
pensable circumstances. Willlam had earnings which are ghown to have
been expended toward his own support.

4. The statement that the entire joint net earnings of the father and
the deceased son amounting to more than seventeen hundred dollars were
spent and that more was needed in family support 8 so incredible as lo
invite reasonable challenge.

5. The earnings of this claimant for eight months prior to this death
are shown to have been In excess of one hundred and thirteen dollars a
month. All figures submitted as to living expenses paid do not Indicate
& sum equal to these earnings and all requirement to maintain living
standards consistent with the class and condition in life of this famlily
wonld not seem to have been in excess of this sum.

It is therefore held that claimant has failed to establish a legal claim
for loss of support due to the death of his son, Tony Mendina.

The arbitration decision s reversed and the Scandia Coal Company and
its insurer is released from all obligation in this connection in the way
of compensation payment.

It is further ordered that each party to this action shall pay its own
cost of ltigation,

Dated at Des Moines this 5th day of July, 1929.

A. B. FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner,

Appeal pending.

i
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DEPENDENCY OF FATHER NOT ESTABLISHED
Peter J. Riley, Claimant,
V8.
Dallas Products Company, Employer,
Bituminous Casualty Corporation, Insurance Carrier, Defendants,
John T. Clarkson, for Claimant;
Havner, Flick, Huebner & Powers, for Defendants.

P In Review

John Riley, son of this claimant, lost his life in a coal mine of the
defendant employer November 23, 1927. This action is brought by Peter
Riley to establish a claim for compensation based upon alleged actual
contribution to his support by the deceased son.

In arbitration claimant testifies that from March, 1927 to the date of
his death, November 23rd of the same year, a period of eight months,
John Riley gave him as support the sum of $700.00.

Defendants deny that the claimant was either wholly or partially de
pendent for support upon the earnings of John Riley at the time of his
fatal injury,

Questions involved in this controversy are:

1. Does the record show that Peter Riley was, during the period of
alleged contribution, in a condition of actual dependency for support?

2. If he was in such condition, does the record show, or tend to
show, that John Riley actually contributed to such support, and if so to
what extent?

On behalf of clalmant it is alleged that failing physical powers had
reduced his capacity for earning. He was during the alleged contribu-
tion period 61 years of age, a fact urged in support of this contention. He
had a year or so previous sustained hernial injury and this fact is also
submitted as tending further to support the plea of lowered vigor.
‘There is no disinterested corroboration of this enervated condition.
From November 23, 1926 to March 1, 1927, a period of fourteen weeks,
Peter Riley is shown to have earned $306.04. He testifies that he then
suspended earning for physical reasons, but on the whole the record
does not support this statement. Assumption as to decrepitude on the
part of Peter Riley is not justified. Many miners of his age and beyond
have full earning capacity, He was offered an operation for his hernia
which was declined as he preferred to use a truss, which he says he
still uses “sometimes.” This hernia would not seel'; to have been any
:erlous handicap in view of later earnings and strenuous labor. Evi
: ::;;:;l;i.mam declined work in the mine for reasons other than physical
“;\mﬂon. E‘d. worked in a mine room adjoining that of Peter Riley, His

ngs were less than those of the father. Peter says his own earn
lfm_a were increased because of help from Ed in heavy work and that
Ed’s were reduced because of this fact. Claimant declares that this son,
so willing to increase his burdens and reduce hiz own earnings when
John was sald to be making such heavy contributions to his support.
gave him no aid after he was deprived of contributions from John.
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Claimant admits that he had $400.00 or $500.00 saved up at the time
of John's death. Personal earnings and a little inheritance may easily
account for this possession without contributions from other sources.
Evidently he had no call for relief from developing needs.

Now as to evidence of actual contribution on the part of the deceased
son:

In such cases justice demands the exercise of liberal allowance in
case of failure to produce complete documentary or other definite evl-
dence as to all alleged contribution. Family bookkeeping is not usually
done and such family disaster is, of course, always unexpected, so the
holding that such claims must be so evidenced would be manifestly unfair,
On the other hand, claims for dependency cannot be allowed merely on
the assertion of the claimant. The general situation must susgest de
pendent relationship. There must be, and in successful cases there al-
ways is, in evidence more or less of definite proof of actual contribution
and there must be established ground for substantial inference that the
claim is well founded to greater extent than may be shown in actual
figures, Presumption may be exercised only to supplement substantial
evidence of actual contribution.

In this case there is no substantial evidence to support the statement
of Peter Riley that he received as support from his son John §700.00 or
any other substantial sum. No letter, or check, or receipted hill is sub-
mitted to prove that any part of this large alleged aggregate contributed
ever passed from son to father. Naturally it would seem that in cases
for necessary contribution for support subsistence would be the chief
concern, It appears, however, that during the period of alleged con-
tribution, Peter bought his own clothing and John paid only his con-
tributive share of the “baching” expenses. Peter pald some rent, John
paid just a little more, and Ed paid some. No witness is Introduced to
show that John Riley paid for his father any bill for merchandise or any
other mccount that might be considered as contribution for support, No
date or Incident or circumstance is in evidence tending to sustain the
claim of Peter Riley and no basis for logical inference in his favor I
created. Such evidence was available to a greater or less extent if these
contributions were actually made as alleged, and its absence is of muech
significance.

Furthermore, it is utterly inconceivable that It was in the range of
possibility for John Riley to make any such contribution as alleged. The
earnings of Ed Riley were nearly as large as those of the deceased, and
on page 22 of the transcript Peter says “I know it took every cent Ed
made to keep himself.” With earnings almost equal and with personal
needs comparatively identical, why should one son have been able to
contribute out of his earnings more than $20.00 a week while it took
every cent the other made to keep himself?

In Serrano vs. Cudahy Packing Company. 190 N. W. 132, the lowa su-
preme court makes Its only dellverance of opinion broadly applieable to
this controversy. Both parents of a son killed in employment testified
that the deceased had contributed weekly as support to the extent of

e
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$15.00. Affirming department holding the court in its decision makes
plain the rules necessary to apply in swch cases. Quoting:
“Dependency s an Issue and must be established by the ¢
any other material issue; in other worde, the ‘guestions of d?n::lm o
:ﬂ w{lmle or i;l part shall be determined in accordance with the fact a¢
e fact may be at the time of the injury. Section 2477Tm16
Code Towa 1913 G
“What is the meaning of dependency? Clearly a person cannot at the
same time be dependent and self-sustaining. The definitio “depend-
ent” as found in Webster's Dictionary is: 06-%
“‘Relying on or subject to something for su rt; not ab exist
or sustain self; not self-sustaining.’ PR .
“This definition hus found judicial approval in many cases.
Bee
Rack Island Bridge & Iron Works vs. Industrial Com.,
BT e 287 11 648, 122
“No person can be regarded as a dependent *whose financial
at his command or within his power to command by the exercia:e:gusr::;
efforts on his part as he reasonably ought to exert in view of the existing
conditions are sufficlent to sustain himself and family in a manner
befitting his class and position in life without being supplemented by the
outside assistance which has been received or some measure of ft'
MacDonald vs, Pocahontas Coal & Fuel Co., 120 Me. 52, 112 Atl. 719,
“Unless the Commissioner has applied an illegal standard or found a
fact without evidence, this court will not review his finding. The mere
fact that the parents nsed certain earnings of the deceased son does not
prove that they relied upon those earnings as their means of support,
MeDonald vs, Great Atlantic & Puacifie Tea Co., 95 Conn. 160, 111 Atl, 65,
No one Is a dependent within the meaning of our Compensation Act who
has sufficient means at hand lo supply present necessities, rating them
according to the dependent's class and position in life. Blanton vs,
;i;:r::'!r-r & Howes Co, et al, 91 Conn. 226, 99 Atl. 494, Ann. Cas, 19188,

These rules are common throughout eompensation jurisdietion.

It is plain that under this record it cannot be said that Peter Riley
during the alleged payment period was dependent in accordance with the
definition of this term In Servano vs. Cudahy Packing Company. It ean-
not be said that he had “not at his command or within his power to
command,” resources to support himself—that he had not “sufficient
means at hand to supply his present necessities.” In view of this record
and in compliance with the statute and the ruling of the supreme court
it becomes necessary to hold that

1. Peter Riley has not submitted testimony establishing a condition
of dependency as alleged, and

2. The record fails to prove, or to afford basis for logical inference,
that John Riley contributed $700.00 or any other substantial sum to the
support of Peter Riley as alleged by claimant.

The arbitration decision is reversed and award is denfed.

Dated at Des Moines, this 15th day of April, 1929,

A. B. FUNK,

Iowa Industrial Commissioner,
Appeal pending.
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DEPENDENCY BASED ON CONTRIBUTIONS NOT ESTABLISHED
J. D. Porter and Mrs. J. D. Porter, Claimants,

vs.
Town of Afton, Employer,
Fidelity & Casualty Company of New York, Insurance Carrier, Defendants,
0. M. Slaymaker and R. E. Kilimar, for Claimants;
B. 0. Montgomery, for Defendants.

In Review

These claimants allege loss of support due to the death of their son,
George Porter, June 14, 1928, as arising out of employment by the town
of Afton.

Defendants deny the existence of any legal- claim for dependency on
the basis of actual contribution by the said deceased son.

George Porter became of age in January of 1%27. He had then been
lving in Chicago for some months and returned to the Afton home in the
following September, He lived with a sister while in the eity with earn-
ings apparently barely sulficient for his own support. Il was necessary
for the father, J. D. Porter, to send him money with which lo pay ex-
penses on the trip home. He worked in the implement business of the
father from date of his return until about May 8, 1928, when he entered
the employ of the town of Afton, of which J. D. Porter was mayor,

At the time of his accidental death, June 14, 1928, George had received
but one paymwent on his engagement with the town which amounted to
$51.34. He personally cashed this check. Out of the proceeds he would
seem to have paid his father $10.00, as money personally borrowed, He
would also seem to have paid his father the further sum of $35.00 to
apply on & lurge family store bill, a substantial portion of which bill was
for merchandise purchased by himself,

Serutiny of this record is by no means reassuring In support of this
elaim. No clulm I8 made for contribution from the son until he came
home from Chicago. He then stayed in the parental home helping his
father in his implement business until the following May. For this he
received board and spending money only and there was no wage agree-
ment. Since at the time of the first payment from the town he owed
his father §$10.00 Lorrowed money and psid much of the proceeds of his
first check on & family store bill for merchandise used by himsell, it I8
evident that in family caleulation there had been no consideration of
carnings in the Implement service. It is not clear as to whether or not,
at the dull season of the year in this trade there were carnings in excess
of board and spending money, or that George Porter took another job
as soon as an opening offered.

This record I8 searched in vain for substantial evidence that George
Porter made any such contribution to family support as might afford a
basls for dependency under the compensation statute, Counsel for clalmant
in argument secms disposed to regard as reflection upon the deceased
the finding that the record does not show aid in support of his parents.
A8 i matter of fact the father seemed able to support himself and his
dependents, In using all his earnings to take care of himself George
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Porter did only what Is usually done under like circumstances by the
young men of the period.
The arbitration decision in denial of award is hereby affirmed.
Dated at Des Moines, this 18th day of June, 1929,
A. B. FUNK,
Iowa Industrial Commissioner,
Appeal pending.

DEPENDENCY OF PARENTS BASED ON CONTRIBUTIONS
Milo Stevens and Bessie E, Stevens, father and mother of the deceased,
Donald E. Stevens, Claimants,
V8.
National Construction Company, Employer,
Southern Surety Company, Insurance Carrier, Defendants.
Shaw & Yoder, F. M. Beatty, for Claimants;
Parrish, Cohen, Guthrie, Watters & Halloran, for Defendants.

In Review

Arbitration finding was for claimants in an award of $6.02 a week for
a period of 300 weeks, as dependency based upon conclusive presump-
tion, together with costs of litigation.

Stipulation of record shows that Donald E. Stevens lost his life as
arising out of employment and this controversy involves only the matter
of parental dependency,

Defendunts deny that these clalmants were receiving the earnings of
their decensed son, Donald E, Stevens, within statutory meaning; also
that the earnings of the deceased at the time of his fatal injury were
$15.06 o week,

Both claimants testify positively that the deceased son turned over
for family use all his eninings; that his personal spending was covered
by contributions from time to time from the mother or the father.

A. W. Milliken testifies that in making payment for work performed by
the father and this son, Donald told him to pay his earnings to his father.

John A, Ritter declares he employed M. E. Stevens and two sons to do
a job of work and that all payment including that of Donald was made
to the father. There is other direct evidence tending to support claim of
parents,

In support of its position the defense features the purchase of two
automobiles, one at a time, in which Donald appears as the buyer. The
record tends to show thal these purchases were made with the co-opera-
tion of the parents, the father signing with the son paper for deferred
payments, Clrcumstances developed indieate that these cars were used for
family purposes, chiefly for carrying the father and sons between their
home and jobs at a considerable distance. This situation is not at all
inconsistent with mutuality of family arrangements in which the son
gave substantially all he earned into the family fund.

Among those conclusively presumed to be wholly dependent upon the
deceased employee under the provisions of section 1402 of the Code is—

“A parent of a minor who Is receiving the earnings of the employee at
the time when the injury occnrred.”
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Under usual family relationship in these latter days this situation
does not frequently exist. If this record, however, does not qualify these
parents for consideration under this provision it is difficult to concelve
of any purpose for which it remains in the statute.

In the Stevens family were six children. Donald at seventeen was the
gecond from the head. The family surely needed all the earnings that
could be gathered during the year by all its members with intermittent
employment. Evidently Donald was a loyal son disposed to do all he
could in helping to keep the family clothed and fed. The amount con-
tributed is not as important as the spirit and practice manifest. Record
disclosure makes it inherently probable that the terms of the statute as
to conclusive presumption are substantially met in this family situation.

Exhibit No. 1 herein is a signed statement of M. E. Stevens introduced
by the defense in support of demial of dependency obligation. This
statement was taken in the early afterncon of October 3. the day of
the fatal injury, by a representative of the insurer. '[:he scene of this
proceeding was the office of the undertaker. In an adjoining room
lay the broken body of the boy who had a few hours earlier entered upon
his daily duty. Taken as of full value in its phraseology this statement
does not defeat this claim. It relates chiefly to the automobile purchases
which are more fully set out in the evidence of several witnesses. The
father, however, repudiates its validity on the ground that he was In no
state of mind coherently to diagram the circumstances and conditions
involved, One of his assertions on the witness stand—"you put yoursell
in my place and have something like this happen and see how mueh you
will remember”—appeals to deliberate judgment as well as to humun
sympathy,

In this connection it is interesting to examine the testimony of de-
fendant’s witness, Sam Beardsley, undertaker, introduced at the review
hearing. He says he went with the insurance adjuster to the home of
the deceased boy about noon of the day he was killed: that appointment
was made for meeting between the father and the adjuster at the under-
taker's office right after lunch. Witness says the statements appearing
as Exhibit No. 1 are in substantial accord with the talk between the
father and the adjuster.

He tostifies that he thought the interview and the statement were for
the. purpose of deciding as to who would pay the undertaking bill and
he was therefore interested. Says “there was talk about how I was to
get my money.” *1 was wanting my money.” Slevens sald he did not
have money enough for burial purposes. The adjuster did not tell wit-
ness that they would pay him until after the statement was signed,

“Q. Was it explained to Mr. Stevens why they wanted him to sign

]
lhi:‘s‘ pa;?:rr.mo to get my money. Wanted my money. 1 wasn't taking

Stevens for it."

Beardsley says Milo Stevens, the father, remarked that his father had
a lttle farm and he thought he could get money from him. Says in lhﬂ
meantime this grandfather of the deceased “came up and had no money,
After statement was signed the adjuster made statutory payment.
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Disclosures in evidence plainly indicate that the dependent father way
under stress of painful circumstances during his interview with the
adjuster who was making up Exhibit No. 1. Evidently he was pg
thinking about what he was to get out of this disaster but how he was o
bury his boy. He had no money.

Of course the adjuster knew from the beginning there was no doupt
as to insurance liability for burial charges, at least, but he dil not re
lleve the suspense of the father until the statement was gizned.

As already stated this exhibit by no means defeats this claim but if its
expression were much more unfavorable it could not be given much weight
in view of circumstances attending its preparation and execution,

The deputy eommissioner would seem to have used due diligenee in in-
forming himself as to the earnings of the deceased and his conclusion rela-
tive thereto should not be disturbed.

It is therefore held that the arbitration decision does not err at either
point upon which this appeal is founded; that at the time of the desth
of Donald Stevens family relations were such as to make these claimants,
Milo Stevens and Bessie Stevens, in a statutory sense, wholly dependent
upon the deceased employee on the basis of conclusive presumption.

The arbitration decision js affirmed.

Dated at Des Moines this 9th day of April, 1930,

A. B. FUNK,
Iowa Industrial Commissioner,
Commissioner affirmed District Court; settled,

AWARD BASED ON SHOWING OF FAMILY CONTRIBUTION
Lawrence and Jennie Vignorali, Claimants,
V8.
Norwood White Coal Company, Employer,
Bituminous Casunalty Corporation, Insurance Carrler, Defendants,
John T, Clarkson, for Claimants;
Havner, Flick, Huebner & Powers, for Defendants.

In Review

This action is brought to establish parental dependency based on the
death of Santine Vignorali who lost his life in the service of this em-
ployer August 27, 1928,

In arbitration January 30, 1929, award was made in the sum of $2.00 a
week during a period of 300 weeks.

From this holding claimants appeal.

The parents, Lawrence and Jennie Vignorali, both testify that the de
ceased son turned all his earnings into a family fund from which he re-
celv:d his support. Their daughter, Lucy Vignorali, jolns in this state-
ment.

This family arrangement is practically unknown in our experience,
except among some groups of our foreigm born citizens, but in view
of known developments it is not at all inconceivable that this son at the

age of 24 may as a member of the héusehold have made contribution
substantially as testified.
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gantine Vignorali had worked with his father in the eoal mines of this
field since boyhood. He seems Lo have had no other abiding place than
in this family home, except when temporarily out of the state, He was
otherwise unattached in a domestic sense during his life time, and he
would not appear to have had much social inclination which took his
attention or his earnings to any considerable extent.

It seems to bave been the way of the Vignoralis to live largely within
theriselves and to be mutually helpful as needs developed. It appears to
be established that when the deceased son was without earnings and on
expense on account of seriously disabling injury a few years before his
death the situation was met as an additional family burden. It seems
also true that when additional family expenditure was ereated by medical,
surgical and hospital charges for the relief of the mother, Jennie Vignorali,
Santine bore a share of this financial burden.

When claims based upon contribution are made it is always diffienlt
to get at the actual existing situation. If it were held necessary to reach
a conclusion upon the basis of vouchers produced recovery would be rare
and usually in small degree. Few families, indeed, and especially among
the wage earning classes, are at all methodical in the matter of family
receipts and expenditures. Of course the ealamity which makes acute the
demand for proof is always unexpected and hence the claimants are usu-
ally unprepared for grilling as to details of support contributed.

In this situation it becomes necessary to establish certain reasonable
conclugions. It is first important to show that family relationship and
attending circumstances were such as to make it inherently probable that
contribution more or less substantial was actually made. It is also Im-
portant to show that if made, contribution was required for the reasonable
support of claimants in the scale of living consistent with their station
in life. With these guestions answered in the affirmative the extent
of support may be approximately understood.

Good falth on the part of claimants is essential to such understanding,
With this in evidence the problem is much simplified. In the pending
proceeding this vital element seems rather outstanding. On the witness
stand the parental claimants were seriously handicapped by lack of
familiarity with our language. They had difficulty in ecomprehending
queries and in expressing themselves in reply. Close attentlon to thelr
statements and to their manner on the witness stand, however, was re-
assuring as to general integrity. The daughter, Lucy Vignorali, eigh-
teen years old, understands readily and expresses herself well. Her bear-
ing was that of honesty and of deliberate painstaking in frankly meeting
all interrogation. She substantially supported the claim of her parents in
statements tending to show general family relationship and as to facts
relative to the actual situation. These facts in brief are important to
actnal proof favorable to the contention of claimants:

In order to get understanding as to related conditions and circum-
stances, it is in order to take up a train of events covering a period longer
than one year prior to this death. The main reliance, however, must be
upon developments of the year last past.

In April of 1927, a strike served to suspend mining until the October
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following. During this period the father's earnings were nominal, When
mining was resumed Lawrence Vignorali began subsiantial earning. From
this date until the middle of July, 1928, he is on the company books
credited with earnings in the mine to the amount of $1,100.40 net, (See
Exhibit 42.)

The record discloses that when the mine was closed in April, there
was considerable hang-over of family debt. Money borrowed to meet
family expenses was only partly paid. Payment for further borrowing
on account of an automobile purchased was still necessary, This auto-
mobile as a family expense is clearly justified because the father and
the deceased son used it to reach their mine work ten to seventeen miles
distant. Showing that during the strike period family debts and family
needs accumulated 18 by no means ineredible. When work was resumed
in October these deficits received practical attention and there was the
father and mother, Miss Lucy, aged 17, and two younger brothers to
support, all without earning except the father, Manifestly there was
pald out in the months succeeding the resumption of earning in October
much more than the $1,100.00 recelved by the father for his mine work

Santine, the deceased son, had been in Detroit the latter part of 1926
and in 1927 until in October. On his return he had little in the way of
earnings here until in December when he was again taken on by the
defendant operator. From this time in December of 1927, until his
death In August of 1928, he is credited with net earnings of $757.27.
(See claimant’s Exhibit 1.)

In view of the fact that there was no other source of family supply
except from the deceased son and merely nominal contribution from a
son, Richard, it seems more than a matter of surmise or conjecture to
agsume that Santine made liberal contribution to the payment of family
debts and family needs, all qualifying as family support.

Counsel contends feebly if at all that contribution was not made to
family use by Santine Vignorall. He seems to rely in defense upon the
assumption that such contribution was not required to meet reasonable
family needs. He submits a long Hst of perfectly good decisions tending to
afford support of this concluslon as to requirement. Tt may be readily
assumed that if earning on the part of the father were sufficient to meet
all reasonable family demands shown to have existed, then the case of
claimants must fail. The record appears by no means to justify any
such assumption. Existing needs substantially exceeded the earnings of
the father. Tt = not shown that living expenses were in the least ex-
cesslve for comfortable and decent living.

The estimate of counsel that fixes obligations at compensation maximum
Is not tenable. Nelther does it seem reasonable to assign for the use
and benefit of the d d out of the family fund only an amount equal
to that expended each for the mother, the young daughter and the little
boys in the home, If it is assumed that all expenditure is taken from &
family fund.

On the other hand we note the substantial earning of the deceased, the
absence of all proof tending to show accumulation or free spending on

.
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his part and the manifest inadequacy of the earnings of the father to
meet family needs,

In view of this entire situation as to earning and requirement, and
other factors important to proximate conclusion, it appears inherently
probable that the contributions of Santine Vignorali in the year previous
to his death to the family fund and which was required for consistent
family support affords substantial basis for award In the sum of $5.00 a
week for a period of 300 weeks,

The arbitration decision is therefore modified by increasing the award
from $2.00 to $5.00 a week and as so modified said decision Is hereby
affirmed.

Dated at Des Moines this 31st day of December, 1629,

A, B. FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner,
No appeal.

POLICE PENSION BYSTEM EXCLUDES WORKMEN'S
COMPENSATION
Paul H. Ogilvie and Maxine Ogilvie, Infants, by Valley Savings Bank, a
corporation, as Guardian of the Estate of sald infants and next friend,
Claimants,
V8.
City of Des Moines and State of Towa, Delendants,
H. W. Hansgon, for Claimants;
Chauncey A. Weaver, Gerald 0. Blake, C. J. Stephens, for Defendants,

In Review

Harry Ogilvie came to his death by violence July 11, 1930, in the
attempt to make an arrest as a policeman of the City of Des Moines,

This action is brought to establish lHability in the State of Town under
the provisions of section 1422 of the code.

The only issue involved is a single question of law.

In section 1361 of the code, it is provided that the compensation statute
shall not apply

“4,  As between a municipal corporation, eity, or town, and any person
or persons receiving any benefits under, or who may be entitled to
benefits from, any ‘firemen’s pension fund’ or ‘polieemen’s penslon fund’
of any municipal corporation, city, or town, except as otherwise pro-
vided by law."

Section 1422 of the code provides specific rellef to police officers or
thelr dependents in case of injury or of death under circumstances set
out, Definite exception is made as to policemen "pensioned under the
policemen's pension fund created by law.”

The defense rests its case upon what is assumed to be plain statutory
nts of exclusion as quoted herein.

Counsel contends the wording of the statute does not bar claimants

from compensation benefits, He submits that the exclusion applies only

to cuses in which policemen involved are actually receiving pension relief

at the time of injury or of death, The legal expression is in the past

tense, Legislative journals recording the enactment of the statule now
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appearing as section 1422 are introduced to show that at all stages the
excluslon cited was made to apply only to “policemen pensioned,” that
is to say, policemen actually on the pension rolls as present participating
beneficlaries and as having no relation whatever to policemen who may
hereafter be entitled to receive such benefits. It is shown that the de
ceased officer was never on the pension roll as receiving payment there
under and hence, it is contended, his dependent children are not to be
denfed statutory compensation benefits. The question of legislative intent
is by the defense interpreted as meaning to reserve all compensation
rights in such cases as this to these policemen or their dependents,

Where the statute Is obscure and its meaning involved in reasonable
doubt it is well to summon collateral evidence in the endeavor to under-
stand fits actual significance, This situation, however, seems quite
clearly to afford its own interpretation. In its original form the compen-
sation statute did not exclude policemen from compensation coverage
Later it was so amended as to exclude from such coverage all policemen
eligible to rellef from the policemen’s pension fund as preseribed in that
portion of 1361 previously quoted. This provision excludes all policemen
“receiving any benefits under, or who may be entitled to benefits from
any * * * policemen's pension fund.”

It seems clearly apparent that in providing the relief afforded in sec
tion 1422 it was the legislative purpose to make this provision consistent
in terms and conditions with the policemen fund execlusion as outlined in
section 1361, It was not intended to qualify that provision by dividing
policemen In pension fund cities into two classes in direct departure from
the plain terms of the existing law. It is only by strained construction
that we could interpret section 1422 as contended by claimant in view of
its well understood history In relation to the situation under consideration.

Moreover, it is a matter of common knowledge that under the provi-
sions of the Towa statute a policeman in service never qualifies for pen-
sion relief. He must be on the retired list before he has any relation to
the pension fund except as a contributor. He then automatically becomes
an ex-policeman, and as such he could not “in line of duty” or * while in
the act of making or attempting to make an arrest or giving pursuit” be
come eligible to relief under section 1422 of the code. Therefore, if the
expression “except those pensioned” in section 1422 refers only to those
who have been retired on pension it is meaningless. It could not have
been put in the law for the purposge of excluding these already excluded
policemen, It must have had some other meaning. It must have been in-
tended to embrace under the word “pension” others than the ex-police
men actually retired on pension, and to those who are in the larger class
of active officials who are under the pension system and entitled to its
benefits,

Furthermore, an active policeman who has been injured and is thereby
in position for retirement on pension, does not get the penslon auto-
matically but only on his application: and if he does not choose to take
the municipal pension. but rather applies for relief under the workmen's
compensation law, he is therefore in the position of having the right of
election as to whether he would take under the one or the other. Did
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the legislature give him this right? Can he voluntarily take himself out
of the class of recognized pensioners In order to get the larger benefits
of workmen's compensation?

It is therefore necessary to hold that the compensation statute affords
no relief to these dependent children of Harry Ogilvie because the said
statute specifically excludes all Des Moines policemen from the applica-
tion thereof.

The arbitration decision denying award is affi rmed,

Dated at Des Moines this 11th day of September, 1930,

A. B. FUNK,
lowa Industrial Commissioner,

Aftirmed District Court; pending in Supreme Court.

DEPUTY CITY ASSESSOR EXEMPT AS AN OFFICIAL

H. N. Child, Claimant,

V8.
City of Des Molnes and Polk County, Defendants,
W. C. Hoffman, for Claimant;
Chauncey A. Weaver, for City of Des Moines;
Alexander M. Miller, for Polk County,

In Review

Hearing and argument in review is waived by counsel and decision
rests wholly upon the arbitration record,

No Issue of the fact is in controversy. Stipulation of record shows that
on or about January 22, 1929, H. N. Child was in service as deputy as-
sessor in and for the city of Des Moines and county of Polk, under ap-
pointment by Elza H. Higglns, City Assessor., 1t further shows that
this appointment was approved by the Board of Supervisors of Polk
county,

On said January 2Znd, claimant sustained Injury in the total loss of
vision in his left eye.

In arbitration it was found that sald injury arose out of and In the
course of employment. It was further held that award must be denled
for the reason that the said depuly assessor was by statute barred from
recovery as an official appointed,

Amoeng those persons “who shall not be deemed ‘workmen' or ‘em-
ployees' " section 1421 of the code Includes “an officlal elected or ap-
pointed by the state, connty, school district or municipal corporation.”

This language is plain. 1t wonld seem to suggest but a single meaning.
It remains only to be established as to whether or not Child was an ap
Mointed official. Here the record permits of no doubt. The clulmant
was appointed as deputy assessor by one authorized Lo make the appolnt-
ment. This appointment was subject to approval of the Board of Super-
Visors and such approval is plainly In evidence, After such appointment
and approval the oath of office was duly administered by the county audl-
tor. After all this formal and significant procedure it is fairly incon-
ceivable that this deputy assessor is to bé omitted from the exclusion
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the statute applies to an official elected or appointed in section 1421 of
the code.
The arbitration decision is affirmed,
Dated at Des Moines, Iowa, this 19th day of September, 1930,
A. B. FUNK,
lowa Industrial Commissioner,

MINE INJURY ESTABLISHED AS COMPENSABLE

George Ansley, Claimant,
V8.
Central Iowa Fuel Company, Defendant,
John T, Clarkson, for Claimant;
Sargent, Gamble & Read, A. B. Howland appearing, for Defendant,

In Review

At the arbitration hearing March 25, 1920, claimant gave this case
history.

March 10, 1929, while running a mule-drawn car in the mine of the
defendant employer, he caught his foot in a track switch, He was unable
to wrench it loose until the foot was struck by a wheel of the moving
car when he was released. The contact almost wholly ripped the sole
from a new shoe he was wearing.

The moving car gave him a severe bump on the right hip and side.
There was some paln but Ansley soon resumed his driving, While he
continued in service he says he had considerable distress much of the
time which was more severe with the strain of his various tasks. Three
days after the accldent he consulted Dr, Fisher who he says: “taped me
up."” 8aw Dr. Fisher for treatment five or six times.

Clalmant worked on until June 12, 1929, when he says he was unable
longer to continue. He then appealed to the claims manager for relief
and was taken straightway to Dr. Jackson at Chariton who advised him
to go to bed using hot packs, Later upon advice of the employer he was
examined by Dr. T. E. Gutch, of Albia, and by Drs. Glomset and Throck-
morton, of Des Moines. Up to this time all doctors consulted seem to
have made negative report. They are to a considerable extent in a agree
ment as to findings unfavorable to this claim. They appear to find no
pathology accounting for alleged pain and no connection between any
existing disability and the incldent of March 10, 1929,

The deposition of Dr. Leo J. Miltner, of the Unliversity Medical Stafl.
appears In this record. He says:

“Mr. George Ansley was first seen August 5, 1929. * * +* At which
time he was admitted to the house for study. Our record states that on
August 13th a quite complete study was made, On August 14th he was
transferred to the nose and throat department for treatment. According
to the records he apparently returned to us again on August 31, 1929, al
which time physiotherapy treatment was started. This treatment gave
the patient considerable improvement and he was discharged September
6, 1929, to return in four months for observation.” (Dep. page 2.)

Furthermore (page 3) “our diagnosis was right sacro-iliac strain with
possible selatic involvement,”

Witness further states:

W’
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“In my opinion it is possible for the injury
scribed to have caused symptoms which were i
that he sought medical attention two or three days after the injury and
possibly continued to work with intermittent pain, the condition might
perfectly well have been aggravated until he was of necessity forced to
quit work on Jume 11th.” (Page 13.)

“The patient might perfectly well continue to work having mild pain
in the sacro-illac joint until approximately 32 days after the Injury as
you have stated.” (Page 14.)

The doctor's testimony concludes as follows:

“A. In my opinion the condition was due to the Injury received be-
cause | was given no reason to believe that the patient was a mallngerer.

Q. I take it you have tests by which yon satisfy your own mind as
to whether a patient is malingering?

A. To an experienced physician it is quite easy to detect a malingerer.

Q. And did you find anything to indicate this man was malingering.

A. We found nothing at that time” (Page 24.)

Defendant insists the testimony of four doctors, all more or less un-
favorable to claimant as against anything submitted by the single lowa
City physician constitutes a preponderance of medical opinion. Weight
of evidence is not determined by abundance of words or measures of ink.
The well established rule as to burden is understood to be “such evidence
as when weighed with that opposed to it has more convineing force and
from which it results that the greater probability is in favor of the party
on whom the burden rests." It is a matter of rather common experience
that doctors skilled and honest are mistaken In diagnosis. The human
structure is a very intricate organism and in the endeavor to discover
all its strange developments it is easy to err.

This case presents these phases:

There is definite history of accident from which a workman was fortu-
nate In escaping with his life or without loss of limb, The account of
the workman as to circumstances of injury is sufficlently supported by
a fellow workman who was an eye witness. Good faith, that most im-
portant element in compensation cases, is substantially In evidence, A
workman of steady habits and evident industry is not disposed to shirk
when able to earn and he continues until his condition forbids. There ls
manifest connection between the incident of injury and subsequent dis-
ability. No other cause of disability is suggested. When he quits work
it is to surrender earnings of $5.80 a day for a chance to win $2.50 per day.

Four doctors of repute failed to discover the cause of physical in-
capacity. They apply little treatment and provide no effective relfef.
A ffth doctor discovers what has evidently been overlooked by others.
He applies a remedy and gets substantial results in returning the work-
man to full usefulness in a few weeks. It seems safe to say the diagnosis
of this doctor supported by devel ts and ful treatment in
accordance therewith outweighs the testimony of his professional brethren
who fafled to effect relief because they failed to locate the trouble,

such as the patient de-
ntermittent and the fact
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In the exercise of the important element of inherent probahility ihis
claim is substantially supported by the record,

The arbitration decision Ig affirmed.

Dated at Des Moines, Town, this 13th day of August, 1930,

A. B. FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner,
Not appealed.

MINE INJURY RESULTS IN COMPENSABLE DISABILITY
Wm, Danfels, Claimant,
VB,
Red Rock Coal Company, Defendant.
John T. Clarkson, for Claimant,
Sargent, Gamble & Read, A. B. Howland appearing, for Defendant.

In Review

Defendant makes general denial as to injury of March 19, 1027, as
alleged. In further resistunce it is plead that if injury ocenrred at that
date it was without notice on the part of claimant or knowledge on the
part of defendant.

Wm. Daniels gives this statement of fact and circumstances in con-
nection with his alleged injury. On or about March 19, 1927, in the course
of his employment it became necessary to track a derailed coal car. In
Ufting for this purpose he placed his back against the ear and his hands
under it. As he was in the strain of lifting his foot slipped causing the
car to give him a heavy bump in settling back to the ground. He says
that a bolt projecting from the car structure hit him near the spine
causing a considerable lump.

Clalmant worked several hours until quitting time at four o'clock. At
the suggestion of a son working with him he went to the company office.
There he told the bookkeeper, Archie Metz, charged with the duty of
reporting injuries, as to the lifting incident. Says he pulled up his shirt
showing the visible effects. Asked if he wanted the matter reported,
said "I don't know whether or not. It probably may come out all right”
“Had not had much pain. 1 did not regard the Injury as at all serious,”
he says. He was given liniment to apply on the bruise.

Clalmant worked right along a week or so after the lifting incident
with slight pain, as he states. In the forepart of April Dr. Reiter advised
him to apply u poultice with hot applications. Next day an abscess at
the point of injury was lanced by the doctor. In a few days healing
seemed complete,

There is history of intermittent developing, breaking and healing of
abscesses, all at the point of injury. At each healing recovery was
believed to have occurred. For several months in 1928, and 1929, there
was u considerable period of dormancy but in the spring of 1920, the
situation became acute.

Most of this history Is from the testimony of the claimant. Now it
becomes necessary to consider elements of corroboration.

On the witness stand Dr. Reiter gives evidence of remarkable lapse of
memory. He seems vaguely to remember that Daniels consulted him.
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Admits hazy recollection as to being told of some sort of an injury.
Doesn’t remember that he did or did not use the lance on the claimant.
May or may uot have advised poultices. It seems he did not fall to
remember to collect for services rendered, the bill Indicating more than
negligible treatment.

Dr. T. E. Gutch examined claimant March 12, 1928, In his deposition
dated January 24, 1929, the doctor definitely expresses the opinion that
the developing abscesses were due to trauma. Out of a wide range of
professional experience he gives substantial support to this claim,

Examination by Dr. J. W. Martin, in May of 1920, is developed in
deposition that does not substantially discredit the contention of elulmant.

The most searching analysis in the entire physienl situation is found
in the deposition of Dr. W. J. Alcock of the University of lowa. This
witness proved quite a handful for counsel. He wss more or less recal-
citrant and arbitrary as to legnl proceedings but he holds the nqulry to
actualities of fact and circumstance and squarely submits peofossional
diagnosiz clear and convineing,  After a thorongh understanding of case
history in its relation to causes and effects he inslsta that regardless of
the story of claimant the condition he found was due to trauma, The
doctor makes this very importunt statement:

“Now he has had in the same region from the time of this accident at
least four abscesses, therefore there muost he something there to cause
the recurrence of this same abscess information, [ discovered that he
had a sinus communicating with the kidney and in this sinus this
calenlus, and theréfore the explanation of all the abscesses.” (Page 23.)

Asked if the condition he found clearly indicated that there had been
trauma the witness answered, “I can see no other explanation.”

The defense resists Dr. Alcock’s conclusions but does not assall his
statements of fact as being inconsistent with the record.

Serutiny of every page of this extenzive record leads to the deliberate
conclusion that there- was no error in arbitration award,

The testimony of claimant is not seriously disturbed in rigld cross
examination. It is consistently supported by several members of his
family. Diserimination is necessarily exercised in the consideration of
self-serving evidence and this precaution is not neglected herein.  Evi-
dence of good faith is very diffienlt of manufacture. It takes a witness
of rare genius serionsly to decelve a tribunal accustomed to welghing
evidence. Minor discrepancies in the record of claimant does not tend
to indicate intent to deceive. While it Is well to serutinize thoe story of
claimant In an Involved case lHke this hasty assumption as to fraud and
falsehood may lead to a miscarriage of justice, The lowa supreme court
is on record with this striking expression:

“It ought to go withont saying that it is still possible for a claimant
of compensation to be an honest man, and that his testimony may be so
candid and so inherently probable as to command the confidence of a
fair-minded court or juror even though he Is unable to produce any
other witness to corroborate him."

The record conclusively shows that there was an injury from lifting
in March of 1927. It clearly appears that the record is sufficlent as to
notice to the employer. Evidence of Metz supports statement of clulmant.
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Recurring abscess development at the point of injury is strongly signig.
cant of relationship with injury as alleged. The contention of claimapt
is substantially supported by medical testimony,

It may be frankly admitted that this case has its elements of weakness,
If dead moral certainty were the rule in claim establishment ft must of
course fail. It is only necessary, however, that evidence in support shall
outweigh evidence opposed. The necessary preponderance Is established
when it appears that the element of greater probability is shown to fayor
the claimant.

Counsel generously admits in argument that it is well to resolve ord)
nary doubts in favor of a claimant. He insists, of course, that the con-
sistent exercise of this rule will not Justity award herein. The record
is here otherwise interpreted.

The arbitration decision is affirmed.

Dated at Des Moines, Iowa, this 15th day of August, 1930,

A. B, FUNK,
lowa Industrial Commissioner,

Appealed to District Court.

BAD AIR—-MINER'S WIDOW GIVEN AWARD
Elenora Dille, Administratrix of the Estate of W. 0. Dille, deceased, and
Elenora Dille, widow of the deceased, W. 0. Dille, Claimants,
VB,

Plainview Coal Company, James Hupton, Albert Nelson and Morgan

Vance, co-partners, Employer,
Bituminous Casualty Corporation, Insurance Carrier, Defendants.
John T. Clarkson, for Claimant;
Havner, Flick, Huelmer & Powers, for Defendants,

In Review

October 22, 1929, W. O. Dille became unable to continue with his work
of coal mining in the mine of the defendant employer, This action ls
brought to establish a claim for disabllity and death as arising out of
and in the course of the employment.

Arbitration hearing was opened at Albia, December 17, 1929. At this
time the deposition of claimant was introduced and made a part of the
record, Mr, Dille being physically unable to appear in person and testify.
The Albia hearing was adjourned for hearing in argument and otherwise
;sl l:n:s ;leparlmem. and in the meantime W. 0. Dille died, on December

" g

January 4, 1930, amendment to petitfon for arbitration with motion
to substitute this claimant was filed.

January 7, 1930, defendants filed motion to dismiss and strike amend-
ment to petition,

June 30, 1930, arbitration decision was filed by the Deputy Industrial
Commissioner denying award to Elenora Dille as administratrix and
widow of the deceased W. O, Dille for failure to sustain the burden of
proving that the disability and death of her husband arose out of and in
the course of employment,

Before proceeding with the record as it relates to whether or not this
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death arose out of ployment, it ¥ to ider the issue
raised by the defense as to the right of this widow to recognition as sub-
stituted claimant.

It is the contention of the defendants that with the death of W. O.
Dille his claim for compensation died with him and cannot be made to
survive for the benefit of this claimant. This view is repugnant to a
sense of justice and wholly inconsistent with the spirit and purpose of
the compensation service. While it may be sald that the object of first
importance in case of personal injury is the care of the injured and pro-
vision for his support in physical infirmity, hardly less Important is the
statutory expression conslderate of the interests of those dependent upon
him. In case of death due to the injury compensation in full measure
continues to run to a surviving widow or children under sixteen years
of age. If the law and the facts developed in this record tend finally to
show that this injury and death are such as to entitle the workman to
relief in his life time, travesty upon plain justice seems definitely sug-
gested in the contention that through legal technicality the elaims of the
widow to the right and relief automatically afforded in such circumstances
must he denied, The statute makes it the duty of this department in
official action to “make such investigation and inguiry in such manner
as is best suited to ascertain and conserve the substantial rights of all
parties thereto,” To hold with counsel at this point would be gross
neglect of official duty,

The defense Is able to submit citation favorable to its theory of the
law but the weight of authority would seem to afford substantial support
to the official view herein expressed. It is therefore held that this claim-
ant is well within her rights in asserting legitimate claim to rellef in
these premises if it shall finally appear that the injury and death of her
husband arose out of employment.

As a general thing lowa coal is brought to the surface through a shaft
oceupled by an elevator. This shaft is important in mine ventilation
as well as transportation uses. Usually mine development begins by the
construction of a run-way cut obliguely from the surface to the coal
level. This run-way affords the only approach to and manner of egress
from the mine and the only opportunity for ventilation. To this situa-
tion the term slope mining is applied and this process usually continues
only until development shall have proceeded to the point of practical
shaft ventilation. In the Plainview mine a shaft was nearly completed
at the time of the injury of Mr. Dille as alleged.

It I8 a matter of knowledge common among those who understand
mine development that in a slope mine the opportunity for ventilation is
limited, The mining statutes give recognition to this condition and im-
pose Important restrictions as to ventilation and otherwise pending
slope operation.

In the review record R. H. Rhys, inspector for the first Towa mining
district during the past twenty-four years, upon inquiry in which the
physieal situation at the Plainview mine was diagramed goes into detail
in relation to mine ventilation. He explains why in slope mining the
matter of ventilation is more difficult and less satisfactory. He further
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states that the ventilating tube of 12-inch hoards was not of such dimen.

slon as to afford adequate fresh air provision. Furthermore that the fan

device was lacking in capacity for necessary relief by reason of the
inadequate intake leading from the fan. It Is the opinion of Inspector
Rhys from description submitted to him by counsel that the situation at
the Plainview mine In October of 1920 was strongly significant of gas peril
to workmen therein, .

Miners testifying show conclusively that In the days intervening pe
tween the opening of the mine in September and the collapse of Dille
late In October, noxious gasses had been distinctly in evidence, several
cases being so serious as to drive individual workmen temporarily off
the work.

The record substantially indicates that whatever the cause of Dille's
breakdown, the mine situation in its relation to ventilation and the
existence of noxious gasses was such as to menace the workmen in sery-
ice. Evidently the husband of (his claimant might have and indeed may
have been sacrificed to this peril but it remains to be seen whether or
not such sacrifice was inherently probable from all facts and circum-
stance relative to his collapse, his subsequent experience and ultimate
death,

It is in evidence that Willlam Dille had heen in previous years amd
until quite recently in a very good state of health, He had through the
summer labored strenuously and evidently without lack of strength, In
recent weeks he had complained of not feeling well at times, due, as con:
tended, to occasional increasze of Eas exposure. The record, however,
does not tend to indicate substantial loss of strength,

This breakdown ocenrred October 29nd. In the last ten days worked in
September, Dille's production welghed 5,300 pounds daily. His fellow
workman, Kolling, exceeded this output but Wilkon working near aver
aged for the nine days he worked, 3,700 pounds, while Oliver, the only
other employee reported, averaged 3,260 pounds. In October Dille's aver-
age per day was 6,000 pounds while Wilson’s was 3,600 and Oliver's
6,200 pounds. The morning of the 22nd when Dille went down he loaded
a car {n twenty-five minutes. This record does not indicate that Dille
gradually faded away and finally fagged out.

The testimony of W. 0. Dille must be given substantial weight, He
Was a man of high standing in the community. His deposition was taken
December 14th when he knew he stood before a grave open to receive
his mortal remains, His death oecurring December 28th was - definitely
foreshadowed. A man who ever tells the truth would mot be expected
to falsify at such a time. His statements bear the imprint of candor.

Dille says in this mining experience there were days when the gas
“didn't seem to bother to amount to anything,” and “other days we
could not work all day.” “Three of us went home on four different days”
Other times “we would go hack where we could get a little alr and stay
there awhile aud then try it again “Several times nien went on top.”

On the morning of October 2214 Dille went to his work as usual about
7:30. Says “it was affecting me before 1 got the first car loaded,” “Made
me weak.” After filling this car he sat down about twenty minutes at

o,y
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the mouth of his room while the driver was coming with another empty.
While using his pick to mine out his shot his “breathing was short."
“It got so 1 had to gasp for breath.” In the later work of shoveling “1
got so weak I couldn’t stand up,” with terrible pains in his chest. With
difficulty he reached the bottom of the slope where he gave way and was
helped into the car and to his home where he died as related, December
28th, the immediate cause being heart dilitation,

The record shows there was no break through in Dille’s room, He was
working about thirty feet from its mouth, the only opening for air. After
loading the first car in mining off his shot, as the miners say, with his
pick he broke through into a powder crack which emitted a distinet odor
indicating what is known to miners as “stink damp,” the only noxious
gas which so announces its presence, This incldent tends to Indicate
menace in addition to that of the other noxious elements due to poor
ventilation.

In the presence of such a situation doctors are disposed to marvel and
to disagree as to conclusions in detail. Careful reading of thelr testl
mony in this case, however, does not tend to break down this claim,
All medical witnesses seem to agree that the contention of claimant is
wholly within the limit of possibility and much of the medical evidence
with painstaking analysis gives substantial support.

Defense counsel manages to draw from a number of these witnesses
the admission that since all the miners “breathed the same air” or “air
of the same quality” it is difficult to see how Dille could have succumbed
from noxious gas while the others were not at that time seriously affected.
This admission makes no convincing appeal since it is based upon as-
sumption wholly unsound. It is within the knowledge of all in any way
informed that the tendency of mine gas In lowa mines (and all have it
in some degree) is to settle or abound or exist more or less In pockets
where conditions are most favorable to its development and where ven-
tilation is less effective. A miner in one room may suffer while another
a few feet away may nolt have any sensation indicating gas presence. It
is also well to understand that some men are far more susceptible than
others to its deleterious effects. This Is known to be true in this field of
peril as in cases of freezing or heat exhaustion and other menacing ex-
posure,

Where inherent probability tends so strongly to favor award iL nat-
urally behooves the defense, if not actually incumbent, to submit evi-
dence and logical contention tending to establish some other eause of
disability or death. Realizing this situation counsel comes forward with
A proposition, On Sunday, the 20th, two days before the breakdown
claimant went with his car two miles west of Albla on account of the
burning of the home of a brother-indaw. Reaching there he found the
house in ruins. After a stay of twenty minutes, without any physieal
activity, he drove back to Albia, Claimant admits he did some coughing
after this experience. He even admits he spit up some colored mucous.
Reading carefully the record in this connection, however, the Incident
seems Inconsequential, merely serving to emphasize the difficulty of the
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endeavor to offer some plausible explanation for this collapse other than
that alleged by claimant.

Counsel seems to contend that if this mine was an unsafe place to work,
in accepting employment there a miner assumed all risk involved and was
barred from relief in case of Injury due to unsafe conditions. This js
important if true, but the theory s foreign to the spirit, purpose and
practice in compensation administration.

The defense assumes that since holding here was against award in
Muck v. Central Imwa Fuel Company, decision in this case must deny
relief to this claimant. In asserting this to be a weaker case counsel
speaks without the record. The mine of the defendant in the former
case was not of the slope kind which is commonly understood to be
suggestive of gas trouble. It had ventilation of approved character which
the Plainview mine had not. There was in the room of Muck a break
through favorable to air conditions. Dille’s room had no friendly air
hole other than its mouth. Furthermore a searching air test in the
Muck room made shortly after the alleged injury was most favorable to
the defense. There was in the Muck case much less evidence In support
of the rule of Inherent probability.

This record is substantially strengthened at the review hearing. The
testimony of State Mine Inspector Rhys is very convincing as to peril
from bad air in the Plainview mine. Herman Bitterman made a good
impreasion as a candid witness, Though fairly overwhelmed by a mass
of technical detail as to air currents, ventilation in general and personal
experience, on the whole his testimony affords support to the contention
of claimant. Dr. Glomset adds to his former support.

This case cannot be decided in any cocksure way. If the claimant
were required to prove her case to a dead moral certainty she must fail,
but this is by mo means the rule.

After careful conslderation of this very large record the conclusion is
deliberately reached that under the rule of inherent probability this claim
is established. It Is reasonable to conclude that but for the condition of
this mine as to noxious gasses and inadequate ventilation and for the
effects of the consequent noxious gasses upon W. O. Dille, he would
have continued in earning indefinitely.

The arbitration decision in denial of award, filed June 30, 1930, is
hereby reversed,

Defendants are ordered to pay to this claimant, Mrs. W. 0. Dille, the
sum of $8.86 a week for a period of 300 weeks with interest at & per cent
on all deferred payments from Oectober 22, 1920, Defendants must also
pay statutory medieal, surgical, hospital and burial charges together with
the costs of this action.

Dated at Des Molnes, Towa, this 14th day of October, 1930,

A. B. FUNK,
Iowa Industrial Commissioner.

W W S————
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KILLED ON STREET IN DISTANT CITY -AWARD

Mabel J. Walker, Claimant,
Ve,
Speeder Machinery Corporation, Employer,
Continental Casualty Company, Insurance Carrier, Defendants.
Havner, Flick, Huebner & Powers and Calhoun & Calhoun, for Claimant;
Carl F. Jordan, for Defendants.

In Review

Charles E. Walker was in the employ of the defendant corporation as
demonstrator and expert repairman., Most of the time he was on the
rond attending to the duties of his employment under the immediate
direction of the home office at Waterloo. Under such direction he trav-
eled about this country and was once sent even to Russia by the em-
ployer.

In February of 1930, Walker was sent to Cincinnati to deliver a ma-
chine. He was further directed from that city to Columbus, Ohio. On
February 22nd he was wired to go to Pittsburg for expert service,

Arriving at Pittsburg Sunday, February 22nd, along in the afternoon,
he registered at a hotel and went to his room. In the early evening he
started out to get a meal at a restaurant as advised by a hotel clerk.
In crossing a street directly en route he was run down by an automobile
and fatally injured.

The ground of protest on the part of the defense is well stated in the
following inquiry submitted by counsel: “Was Walker exposed to the
danger on the streets of Pittsburg by reason of anything that arose out
of or was connected with his employment?”

Counsel emphasizes the fact that at the time of his injury Walker was
not at work. He was using the streets where he had no work to do. A
workman may be in service at times when he {8 not using any tools of
his employment or at the moment making any definite contribution of
physical exertion in the interest of his ployer, This stat L needs
no argument.

Our supreme court has several tlmes gone on record with this em-
phatic statement: “The accident arises in the course of employment If it
occurs while the employee is doing what a man ko employed may rea-
sonably do within the time during which he Is employed and at a place
where he may reasonably be during that time'

The record shows that Walker was on the road most of the time. His
salary was $200.00 a month with all expenses pald. When he took his
grip and left the home office he came under the protection of the com-
pensation statute, Now when was this protection suspended. Not while
he was going to the rallway station, not while enroute, not when going to
his hotel. All this would be admitted by counsel. He would not deny
that In going from Columbus to Pittsburg and to his hotel Walker was
covered but it is insisted he was on his own In his hotel room and in
seeking nourishment,

His very act and occupation recorded was due wholly to his employ-
ment which sent him away from home to encounter extra hazard, -Eating
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and sleeping is vital to service in promotion of the employer's business,
Under such circumstances as herein recited we may well paraphrase and
apply an old proverb—"they also serve while they eat and sleep.” If this
man was not doing anything for his employer except when actually
experting or while traveling why should his expenses have been paid
covering the entire period of his service trip.

The fact that this accident occurred on Sunday and out of working
hours affords no substantial defense since Walker was pursuing a line
of conduect entirely consistent with the promotion of his employment.

Counsel seems disposed to admit that as a traveling salesman, Walker
might have been under coverage but that he could not be so classified.
This is a distinction without a difference. How can any line consistently
be drawn between men who are employed to travel in the interest of
employment, whether as salesmen, collectors, demonstrators or me
chanical experts.

The arbitration decision in its holding for all statutory benefits is
aflirmed.

Slgned at Des Moines, lowa, this 14th day of October, 1930,

A. B, FUNK,
Towa Industrial Comauissioner,
Appealed.
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DEPARTMENT RULINGS
APPEAL NOT TAKEN IN TIME

J. A. Williams, Guardian of Wayne Paxton, William Paxton, and Ilene
Paxton, minors, Claimant,
" vs.
R. W. Bogardus, Employer,
Federal Surety Company, Insurance Carrier, Defendants.
J. A. Williams, for Claimant;
Swanson & Perkins, for Defendants.

Ruling on Time Limitation

On the 16th day of December, 1929, there was filed with this depart-
ment by Ralph Young, deputy industrial commissi , & decision making
award to claimants in this case.

December 24, 1929, there was filled with the department by counsel for
the defense a “notice of appeal” from the award of the deputy Industrial
commissioner to the district court in and for Fremont county, Iowa,

Section 1447 of the code provides:

“Any party aggrieved by the decision or findings of a board of arbitra-
tion may, within ten days after such decision is filed with the industrial
commissioner, file in the office of the commissioner a petition for review,

and the commissioner shall thereupon fix a time for the hearing on such
petition and notify the parties.”

Since the instrument filed December 24, 1929, giving notice of appeal
to the district court in no sense and to no degree complies with these
requirements, it seems necessary to hold that said instrument is wholly
without force or effect and that it must be denied recognition for any
purpose whatever by the Iowa industrial commissioner.

Signed at Des Moines this 21st day of January, 1930.

A. B. FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner.

COMPENSATION PAYMENTS APPORTIONED UNDER SECTION 1403
John Weiler, Employee,

’ V8.
W. L. Yokom Company, Inc., Employer,
Massachusetts Bonding & Insurance Co., Insurance Carrier, Defendants.

Apportionment of Compensation Payments

Memorandum of agreement between the W. L. Yokom Company, Inc.,
and Mrs. Lorraine Thompson Weiler filed for record February 17, 1930,
recites:

John Weiler of Dubuque, was fatally injured in the employ of this
defendant, December 30, 1929. His earnings of $23.76 per week entitled
his dependent widow, claimant herein, to weekly payments in the sum
of $14.26 for a period of 300 weeks.

Information of record discloses that Mary Jane Weller, aged about
eleven years, daughter of the deceased workman by former marriage, is
living with her grandparents at Decatur, Illinois. This daughter will

— A L T ———
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continue to live separate and apart from the surviving widow, the claim-
ant herein.

It 18 also shown that a child of the deceased and this claimant wij
share with its mother in the compensation payments due her as the
widow of the deceased John Weiler.

Appeal is made to the Iowa Industrial Commissioner to make equitable
apportionment of the compensation payments to be made on account of
the death of the sald John Weller under the provisions of section 1403
of the Code of Iowa. In recognition of equities involved order is fssued
as follows:

For the use and benefit of the daughter by the first marriage, Mary
Jane Weiler shall recelve out of the weekly payment of $14.26 the sum
of $4.00 a week.

The surviving widow, Lorraine Thompson Weiler, for the use and
benefit of herself and her aforesaid child shall receive the sum of $10.26
a week, with the understanding that out of this allowance the said de
pendent widow shall pay all expenses of burial of the deceased John
Weiler in excess of the statutory allowance of $150.00 due from the
employer.

The Massachusetts Bonding & Insurance Company is hereby directed
to make weekly payments to the dependent widow direct in the sum of
$10.26. Payment to the dependent daughter, Mary Jane Weiler, in the
sum of $4.00 weekly, in accordance with section 1409 of the Code of
Iowa, must be made through the Union Trust & Savings Bank of Du
buque, lowa, trustee for the Incompetent for the county of Dubuque.

Dated at Des Molnes this 17th day of February, 1930.

A. B. FUNK,
Towa Industrial €

S e
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RE-OPENING AND REVIEW OF SETTLEMENT

DISABILITY PERIOD ESTABLISHED BY MEDICAL EVIDENCE

Joseph F. Hall, Claimant,
V8.

Des Moines Coal Company, Employer,
Standard Accident Insurance Co,, Insurance Carrier, Defendants,
John T. Clarkson, for Clalmant;
Sargent, Gamble & Reed, for Defendants.

Re-Opening Decision

Due to the fall of a huge mass of slate in the mine of the defendant
employer, February 25, 1927, this workman sustained very serious injury
to his spine and otherwise,

Obligation admitted on the part of the insurer is to the extent of 25
per cent of total and permanent disability, and this action is brought for
additional recovery.

The offer of defendants is based on estimates of Dr. 0. J. Fay and Dr.
J. W. Martin,

In deposition Dr. D. J. Glomset expresses the opinion that 35 per cent
of loss of function has been sustained, and Dr. L. D. Powell also testifies
in deposition that an estimate of 356 to 40 per cent of loss is justified
by the condition of claimant.

At the hearing in re-opening Joseph Hall was rigidly examined on the
witness stand. His bearing is that of an honest man. His replies to
searching questions suggest painstaking fidelity to veraeity. Case history
indicates that claimant made unusual endeavor to promote all possible
efficiency and earning capacity. Many men in his condition have so far
yielded to impairment distress and discouragement as to sacrifice much
capacity that might have been developed by courage and determination.

In this situation we must depend largely upon the doctors in the effort
to establish justice. We must not lose sight of the estimates of Dra. Fay
and Martin, but on the other hand we cannot ignore the opinions of Drs.
Glomset and Powell.

In the endeavor to reconcile these reports and in conslderation of other
developments of this record, the conclusion Is reached that settlement
should be made on the basis of 20 per cent of total permanent disability
requiring payments for a period of 120 weeks, less payments already made,
and it is hereby so ordered.

Dated at Des Moines this 24th day of December, 1929,

A. B. FUNK,
Towa Industrial Commissioner.

DISABILITY FOUND TO BE PERMANENT

R. J. Even, Claimant,
VB
Wagner-Erling Company, a corporation, Employer,
Southern Surety Company of New York, Insurance Carrier, Defendants.

Gt
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Re-Opening Decision

This claimant suffered injury to his left arm, left leg and foot and his
back, July 29, 1929, in accident arising out of and in the course of hig
employment by defendant employer. Under tentative settlement agres
ment entered into by the parties the claimant received compensation from
defendant insurer at the rate of $10.38 per week for 31 weeks.

Upon the record in re-opening proceeding, petitioned for by the claim-
ant, it i{s held that as a result of the injuries sustained in his employ.
ment by defendant employer, July 29, 1929, the claimant is permanently
disabled 331/3 per cent. Wherefore, the defendants are hereby ordered
to pay additional compensation at the rate of $10.38 per week for a period
of 1021/3 weeks. Defendants are also ordered to pay the costs of the
hearing.

Signed at Des Moines, Iowa, this 3rd day of June, 1930.

RALPH YOUNG,
Deputy Industrial Commissioner,

VISION AND HEARING LOST—COMPENSATION EXTENDED

Paul Hyland, Claimant,
V8.
John Gebuhr, Employer,
Employers Mutual Casualty Co., Insurance Carrier, Defendants,

Re-Opening Decision

In this case, heard in re-opening proceeding at Council Bluffs, the
claimant suffered injuries about his head February 16, 1928, in accident
arising out of and In the course of his employment by defendant em-
ployer. The defendant insurer furnished the statutory medical, surgical
and hospital benefits and in installments paid the claimant $15.00 per
week for forty-five weeks,

Upon the record the defendants are held for one hundred weeks of
compensation, including the forty-five already paid, such award belng
for a substantial permanent loss of vision In the right eye and a more
or less indefinite permanent loss of hearing In the left ear. Wherefore,
the defendants are hereby ordered to pay the claimant fifty-five weeks
additional compensation at $15.00 per week. Defendants are also ordered
to pay the costs of the hearing.

Signed at Des Molnes, Iowa, this 23rd day of December, 1929.

RALPH YOUNG,
Deputy Industrial Commissioner.

DISABILITY HELD NOT DUE TO COMPENSABLE INJURY
C. 0. Gregory, Claimant,

Vs,
Sinclair Refining Co., Defendants.

Re-Opening Decision
In accidental strain, arising out of his employment by defendant em-
ployer, the claimant in this case on February 4, 1928, suffered a ventral
hernia at the site of an old abdominal scar., He was operated May T
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1928, at an expense to the defendant of $221.50. Repair was complete.
Under settlement agreement entered into by the parties and approved
by the Commissioner the claimant received from the defendant compensa-
tion for 17 weeks of temporary disability at $15.00 per week or a total
of $255.00.

The case was heard at Oskaloosa, lowa, February 28, 1929, in re-opening
proceeding petitioned for by the claimant who alleged continuing dis-
ability as a result of the hernia.

Upon the record it is held that the claimant has failed to discharge
the burden of proving that the disability, suffered by him as a result
of the hernia and operation for the repair of the same, exceeds that for
which he has been paid by the defendant under settlement agreement.
The symptoms are all subjective, and if actually existent, are suggestive
of adhesions, which according to the preponderance of medical testimory
in the record, would be the result of the earlier operatlon for appendicitis
which had no connection with employment. It is pointed out in the record
that adhesions could not result from the herniotomy as in this operation
in this case there was no inecision of the abdominal wall and no stitching
through. Recovery is denled and the costs of the hearing are taxed to
the claimant.,

Signed at Des Moines, Iowa, this 12th day of March, 1929,

. RALPH YOUNG,
Deputy Industrial Commissioner,

CONTINUING DISABILITY NOT DUE TO INJURY
Lester Joy, Claimant,
VA,
Marshall Canning Company & Western Grocery Company, Employers,
U. 8. Fidelity & Guaranty Co., Insurance Carrier, Defendants.

Re-Opening Decision

Under settlement agreement entered into by the parties and duly
approved by the Commissioner the claimant in this case received from
the defendant compensation at the rate of $12.97 per week up to January
20, 1928, for injury suffered by him November 21, 1927, in accident arising
out of his employment by defendant employer.

In re-opening proceeding, petitioned for by the claimant, and had at
Des Moines, January 29, 1930, it is held that the claimant has failed to
discharge the burden of proving that the disability resulting from his
injury in the employment exceeded that for which he has already been
pald, It appearing as the greater probability that his present complaints
and allments are wholly independent of his injury in the employment and
have no connection therewith. Wherefore, recovery Is denled and costs
of the hearing are taxed to the claimant.

Signed at Des Moines, Iowa, this 6th day of February, 1930.

RALPH YOUNG,
Deputy Industrial Commissioner,
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DISABILITY FOUND TO BE PERMANENT

William Hockman, Claimant,
vs.
0ld King Coal Company, Employer,
Bituminous Casualty Corp., Insurance Carrier, Defendants,

Re-Opening Decision

The claimant in this case suffered a fracture back injury, February
21, 1929, in accident arising out of and in the course of his employment
by defendant employer. Compensation was paid by defendant insurer
for 32 weeks at $15.00 per week under tentative settlement agreement
entered into by the parties.

Upon the record as made in re-opening proceeding at Centerville, May
23, 1930, petitioned for by the claimant, it is held that the claimant is
permanently disabled 1214 per cent as a result of his injury in the employ-
ment. Wherefore, the defendants are ordered to pay additional compenr
gation in the amount of $270.00 which represents 18 weeks at $15.00 per
week. Defendants are also ordered to pay the costs of the hearing.

Signed at Des Moines, Iowa, this 28th day of May, 1930.

RALPH YOUNG,
Deputy Industrial Commissioner.
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